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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF FULTON COUNT

STATE OF GEORGIA
CIVIL DIVISION
DARRYL WALLACE AND ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED | oePT ciee surerog coumr
SHARRON MANGUM )
}
Plaintiffs )
} CIVIL ACTION
Vs. } Vo
} FILENO. 2)aD3CV T 797
THE COCA-COLA COMPANY, }
DOUGLAS DAFT, CORETHA RUSHING,  }
FRED YOCHUM, STEVEN BUCHARETI,
AMANDA PACE, TRACY KOLL, }
JAMES GARRIS, MILAGROS TOMEI, }
RAYMOND SHERMAN AND )
JOSEPH COSTOLNICK }
}
Defendants }

PLAINTIFFS’ ORIGINAL COMPLAINT

COME NOW Plaintiffs, Darry] Wallace and Sharron Mangum, In Propria Persona,

hereby file their original complaint and states:
JURISDICTION

1. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to GA Const. Art 6, § 4,1, OCGA §
9-4-2 ef seq., and OCGA § 16-4-6.

2. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the parties pursuant to OCGA § 9-10-91.

3. Venue is proper pursuant to OCGA § 9-10-31.

PARTIES

4. Plaintiff Darryl Wallace is an adult citizen of the United States, Fulton County,
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Georgia residing at 445 Fitzgerald Place, Atlanta, Georgia He is 37 years old.

5. Plaintiff Sharron Mangum is an adult citizen of the United States, Paulding County,
Georgia residing at 94 Crestbend Lane, Powder Springs, Geoigia. She is 37 years old.

6. At all times relevant 1o this lawsuit, plaintiff Dasryl Wallace was, until November 22,
2002, employed by defendant The Coca-Cola Company (“TCCC™). Most recently, until being
criminally and maliciously fired, plaintiff was the Senior Financial Analyst at the Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant (“ABBP”) in the Consumer Product Supply (“CPS™) Division of defendant
TCCC.

7. At all relevant times, plaintiff Darryl Wallace worked for defendant TCCC in Atlanta,
Fuiton County, Georgia. He spent two years employed by defendant TCCC.

8. At all times relevant to this lawsuit, plaintiff Sharron Mangum was, until March 15,
2003, employed by defendant The Coca-Cola Company (“TCCCT). Most recently, until being
cnminally and maliciously fired, piaintiff was the Human Resources Training Cocrdinator at the
Atlanta Beverage Base Plant in the CPS Division of defendant TCCC.

9. At all relevant times, plaintiff Sharron Mangum worked for defendant TCCC in
Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia. She spent 9.1 years employed by defendant TCCC.

10. Defendant The Coca-Cola Company is a Delaware Corporation headquartered in
Atlanta, Fulton County, Georgia. The defendant may be served with process by delivering a copy
of the Summeons and Complaint to its registered agent for service, C.T. Corporation System,
1201 Peachtree Street, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30361.

11. Defendant Douglas Daft is the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of defendant

TCCC.
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12. Defendant Coretha Rushing is the Senior Vice President of Human Resources of
defendant TCCC.

13. Defendant Fred Yochum is the Vice President of the Consumer Product Supply
(“CPS™) Division of defendant TCCC.

14. Defendant Steven Buchareti is the Director of Equal Employment Office for the
Corporate Division of defendant TCCC.

15. Defendant Tracy Koll is the Director of Employee Relations for the Corporate
Division of defendant TCCC.

16. Defendant Amanda Pace is the Ombudsman for the Corporate Diviston of defendant
TCCC.

17. Defendant James Garris is the General Manager for the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
(*ABBP”), CPS Division of defendant TCCC.

18. Defendant Joseph Costolnick is the Financial Services Manager for the Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant, CPS Division of defendant TCCC. At all relevant times, defendant
Costolnick was the manager of plaintiff Darryl Wallace.

19. Defendant Milagros Tomei is the Senior Client Services Consultant for the Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant, CPS Division of defendant TCCC. At all relevant times, defendant Tomei
was the manager of plaintiff Sharron Mangum.

20. Defendant Raymond Sherman is the Engineering Manager for the Atlanta Beverage

Base Plant, CPS Division of defendant TCCC.,

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Summary: the Defendants’ Racketeering Enterprise
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And Sale of Drinks with Contaminates

21. Over the past two years, plaintiffs’ Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum repeatedly
identified to defendant TCCC’s senior management — including the individual defendants —
various illegal and fraudulent schemes and discriminatory misconduct at the Atlanta Beverage
Base Plant, CPS Division.

22. The illegal activities included: (a) the promotion and sale to customers and
consumers, including children, carbonated beverages that defendant TCCC knows contain
plastic shavings that may be potentially harmful; b) the promotion and sale to customers and
consumers, including children, carbonated beverages that defendant TCCC knows contain
contaminates from a weather storm that may be potentially harmful; (¢} the promotion and sale
to customers and consumers, including children, carbonated, non-carbonated and juice beverages
that defendant TCCC knows contain contaminates from the Atlanta City Water supply that may
be potentially harmful; (d) a multi-million dollar fraud on women and minority owned
businesses ratified by members of defendant TCCC’s Board of Directors; (e) the intentional
overstatement of defendant TCCC’s inventory; (f) illegal discrimination against African
American vendors in delayed invoice processing in an effort to eliminate their business; (g) the
continued violation of Fair Wage and Hour practices in improper calculation of overtime pay and
mis-classification of exempt positions; and (h) the continued intentional discrimination by
defendant TCCC against African-American and Hispanic employees.

23. The defendants conspired to and ran The Coca-Cola Company Atlanta Beverage Base
Plant as an illegal racketeering enterprise. They executed their illegal activities using theft,

fraud, and deception to cheat shareholders, customers, consumers, and competitors; the
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defendants used extortionate threats, intimidation, bribery and fear against TCCC employees to
coerce their compliancy in the racketeering enterprise; and the defendants obstructed justice to
cover-up their crimes, influence potential witnesses, conceal the availability of information from
official proceedings, and hinder and prevent the communication to law enforcement of
information relating to the commission of these offenses.

24. When plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum reported these illegal activities
to senior TCCC management, including defendant Dafi, the plaintiffs were simply trying to
protect the customers, consumers, shareholders, and employees of defendant TCCC, including
the illegally discriminated against minority employees.

25. Nevertheless, the defendants criminally colluded to and with malignancy used lies
and extortionate intimidation, fear, coercion and bribery to ruin plaintiffs, Darryl Wallace and
Sharron Mangum careers, destroy their professional reputation, and punish them and their
families emotionally and psychologically - all as part of the defendants’ continued operation of
The Coca-Cola Company Atlanta Beverage Base Plant as a criminal enterprise through a patten
of racketeering activity.

26. During the past two years, plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum repeatedly
challenged management for, among other things:

L DEFENDANT TCCC'S PATTERN OF ILLEGAL RACKEFTING ENTERPRISE

INCLUDING THE SALE OF BEVERAGES WITH CONTAMINATES AND

CROOKED ACCOUNTING PRACTICES TO INFLATE AND MISSTATE ITS TRUE
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN VIOLATION OF S.E.C. RULES

A the promotion and sale to customers and consumers, including children,
carbonated beverages that defendant TCCC knows contain plastic shavings
that may be potentially harmful;
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B. the promotion and sale to customers and consumers, including children,
carbonated, non-carbonated and juice beverages that defendant TCCC
knows contain contaminates from the Atlanta City Water supply that may
be potentially harmful,

C. the promotion and sale to customers and consumers, including children,
carbonated beverages that defendant TCCC knew contained contaminates
from a weather storm that may be potentially harmful;

D. the promotion and sale to customers and consurners, including children,
carbonated beverages that defendant TCCC knew contained the wrong
ingredient thus depreciating product shelf life;

E. the intentional overstatement of defendant TCCC’s inventory;

F. the intentional unreported cash items totaily $4 million affecting
InterCompany balances;

G. the intentional capitalization of expensed spare parts to the balance sheet
not amortized;

Il. DEFENDANT TCCC’S PATTERN OF OCCUPATIONAL, SAFETY AND
HEALTH VIOLATIONS AT ITS ATEANTA BEVERAGE BASE PLANT

H. improper storage of large quantities of Cane and Ethyl Alcohol
L unsafe working conditions

Hl. DEFENDANT TCCC’S PATTERN OF ILLICIT FRAUD ON WOMEN AND

MINORITY OWNED BUSINESSE
J. a multi-million dollar fraud on women and minority owned businesses

ratified by members of defendant TCCC’s Board of Directors;

K. illegal discrimination against African American vendors in delayed invoice
processing in an effort to eliminate their business

IV. DEFENDANT TCCC’S PATTERN OF VIOLATION OF FMLA AND FLSA
REGULATIONS

L. the violation of FMLA regulations in medically disabled employees working
while on leave;

M.  the violation of FLSA regulations of improper calculation of overtime pay and
mis-classification of exempt positions;
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V. DEFENDANT TCCC’S PATTERN OF CONTINUED DISCRIMINATORY
PRACTICES IN VIOLATION OF TITLE VII

N. the continued intentional discrimination by defendant TCCC against African-
American and Hispanic employees.

27. These facts authenticate TCCC’s continued practice of trickery and scam artistry of
the unsuspecting investor, shareholder, customer, consumer and employee. Furthermore,
investors, shareholders, customers, consumers and employees cannot trust TCCC when it comes
to revenue numbers, expense numbers, asset numbers, safety numbers, market-share numbers,
efficiency numbers, and eamings numbers, fair wages and treatment regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, or national origin as the United States Constitution upholds.

28. In the face of rampant corporate illicitness at defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base
Plant, plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum tried to protect the shareholders,
consumers, customers, and employees of defendant TCCC. So the defendant TCCC annihilated
them murdering their careers, demolishing their reputations, and commandeering their

financial future.

Defendant TCCC'’s Tradition of Crookedness
29. In defendant TCCC’s Code of Conduct, it states that all employees are to “act with

honesty and integrity in all matters.” In fact, “integrity” is one of defendant TCCC’s nine core
values. Additionally, the Code of Conduct demands that “every company ﬁn_ancial record . . .
must be accurate, timely, and in accordance with the law.” These simple injunctions rightly echo
state and federal prohibitions against fraud and the S.E.C.’s insistence that the financial records

of publicly-traded companies comply with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) —
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especially in the post-Enron era.

30. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum are individuals of unyielding integrity
and ethical strength as their performance consistently substantiated. They regarded these
fundamental principles as their duty as good corporate and public citizens. The defendant TCCC
saw them as a mockery for stockholder meetings, and, sadly, the defendant TCCC acted
accordingly.

Defendant TCCC's Conceals Contaminates in its Beverages

31. Defendant TCCC has been selling carbonated beverages to children and adulits
throughout the United States knowing these beverages contain plastic shavings, on information
and belief, are potentially harmful to kids. Defendant TCCC has known about the problem since
at least November 2001, And defendant Dafi, the CEQO and Chairman of defendant TCCC, has
known since at least May 2002. Nevertheless, defendant TCCC has refused to notify the
consuming public and intentionally refusing to write-off impaired assets over the past several
months.

BACKGROUND: November 2001 James Garris, General Manager learned that

one of its suppliers providing the main ingredient for Fanta Strawberry, contained

plastic shavings from its container. The 55 gallon metal drums contained plastic

lining which deteriorated from the acidic base of the citric fruit contained in the

ingredient.

February 2002 James Garris, General Manager learned there was a repeat problem

with Fanta Strawberry; however, due to a rush order, Garris approved the release

of Fanta Strawberry for its fountain dispensing equipment despite, Haywood Hill’s

(Production Operator), warning that the filtration process did not filter out the

particles and that the plastic shavings were so thick that they would need to be

shoveled off the product before packaging,

32. Defendant TCCC has been selling carbonated, non-carbonated, and juicc beverages
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and sports drinks 1o children and adults throughout the United States, knowing these beverages
contain contaminates from the Atlanta City Water supply that may, on information and belief, be
potentially harmful to kids. Defendant TCCC has known about the problem since at least May
2000. And defendant Daft, the CEO and Chairman of defendant TCCC, has known since at least
May 2002. Nevertheless, defendant TCCC has refused to notify the consuming public and
intentionafly refusing to write-off impaired assets over the past several months.

BACKGROUND: The Atlanta City Water system notifies the general public

when its water supply fails its normal filtration process, and warms the general

public to boil water and/or consume bottled water. Although, James Garris,

General Manager, received these same warnings, the continued practice of mixing

and pasteurization process for product was continued. However, signs were

posted inside the employee lounge forbidding employees to consume fountain and

juice beverages dispenrsed through TCCC fountain equipment. Additionally,
Dasani bottled water was provided for employees as an alternative.

33. Defendant TCCC sold carbonated beverages to children and adults throughout the
United States, knowing these beverages contained contaminates from a weather storm that may,
on information and betief, to be potentially harmful to kids. Defendant TCCC has known about
the problem since at least June 2002. And defendant Dafi, the CEO and Chairman of defendant
TCCC, has known since at least June 2002. Nevertheless, defendant TCCC has refused to notify
the consuming public and intentionally refusing to write-off impaired assets over the past several

months.

BACKGROUND: June 2002 a Laboratory Technician, Willie Jones, was
assigned to run a number of tests of a railroad tanker containing alcohol prior to
its use in processing Sprite. Jones found that the opening to the tanker’s contents
had been compromised. The Internal Deviation Report reads, “Hatch on the top
of tanker was left open over weekend, no seal on hatch. 1t rained two days during
weekend.” The lid was left unsecured and was removed from the opening.
Fearing that the weather storms over the weekend had contaminated the alcohol,
Jones notified the Laboratory Manager, Alanna Barfield, immediately. She
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instructed Jones to test the alcohol and when it didn’t pass the tests administered,
Barfield ordered him to use other measuring devices to force the alcohol to pass.

Jones reported the deficiency anonymously to the Ombuds 1 800 line. The
Corporate Audit team conducted an internal investigation into the report. Instead
of recalling the product, Corporate Audit concealed the wrongdoing and
instructed Karen Klansek, the Quality Assurance Manager, to incorporate
procedures to prevent the incident from occurring again in the future.

34. Defendant TCCC sold carbonated beverages to children and adults throughout the

United States, knowing the “formula for beverage preparation . . . was incotrect {(wrong

ingredients and weights)” thus depreciating product shelf life. Defendant TCCC has known

about the problem since at least December 2002. And defendant Daft, the CEQ and Chairman of

defendant TCCC, has known since at least December 2002. Nevertheless, defendant TCCC has

refused to notify the consuming public and intentionally refusing to write-off impaired assets

over the past several months.

BACKGROUND: December 2002 TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant was
audited for The Coca-Cola Quality System (“TCCQS™) Phase 111 Certification,
which is based on ISO 9000 standards. The Corporate Audit Team comprised of
Michael Ferrell, Grant Smith, Daniel Goossen, and Dr. Ala Srekowski learned
during the audit that there were several critical errors in the laboratory affecting
the manufacture and testing of beverages. The final audit reports shows:

a.

b.

C.

d

“The formula for beverage preparation . . . was incorrect (wrong ingredients
and weights).

The carbonated beverages were prepared without carbonation.

The end point of NaOH standardization was set up as ph=8.6 not 8.3 as is
required.

The color analysis of S-601 was performed using a 1-cm cell, nota 10 cm as
is required.

The performance of GC method to analyze Part 2 of Sprite was not verified
before the sample analysis.”

Despite this critical assessment (“Any issue having a potential or real significant adverse

impact on product quality, image and trademark . . .”) and the substantial risks associated with
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concealing these problems which had gone on two years consecutively, defendant TCCC audit
team provided the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant’s Laboratory with a passing grade. (Attached as
Exhibit A and made a part of this complaint for al) purposes pursuant to OCGA § 9-11-10(c) is
the report of defendant TCCC that details its audit assessment.)

35. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles require that “impaired™ assets be written
down from their historical cost basis to their fair market value. An impaired asset is one whose
value on the books may not be recoverable. The underlying premise for GAAP’s treatment of
impaired assets is that worthless or substantially devalued assets on a balance sheet create a false
snapshot of the company’s true financial picture. An accurate tally of assets and write-offs is
crucial in determining a company’s net worth, debt/equity ratio, and earnings-per-share, just to
mention a few formulas by which investors measure financial risk.

36. Defendant TCCC through its Ombudsman, Amanda Pace, and Director of ER, Tracy
Koll, has known a2bout these contamination problems since at least on or about May 2002.
Defendant Daft, the CEO and Chairman of defendant TCCC, Rushings, Buchareti, and Yochum
have known since at least October 2002. James Garris, the General Manager of defendant TCCC
Atlanta Beverage Base Plant, has known about these problems since 2000 and consented to the
continued paeckaging and shipping of contaminated products.

37. Defendants TCCC, Daft, Rushing, Pace, Koll, Buchareti, and Garris have kept the
consuming public ignorant about these potential dangers because defendant TCCC has never
disclosed them. Additionally, the defendant TCCC having complete disregard for Federal Drug
Administration regulations and most importantly, public welfare, released product for public

consumption.
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38. Had TCCC honestly applied GAAP ~ not to mention revealing to the consuming
public that its product contained contaminates then defendant TCCC would have 10 write-off all
of that inventory and incur a total expense of several hundred million dollars for inventory and
outstanding purchase orders.

39. The truth is that defendant TCCC is once again putting profits over the public’s right
to know and also delaying recognition of a material expense, covering-up fraudulent accounting

and inflating earnings by artfully amortizing the contamination problems.

Defendant TCCC'’s Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
Crooked Accounting Practices

40, Plaintiff Darryl Wallace repeatedly advacated complete compliance with GAAP’s
impairment rules for the contaminated product as well as the unrecorded cash items,
capitalization of expensed spare parts, and the overstatement of inventory.

BACKGROUND: May 2002 it was reported to Bridgett Wise that there were

cash items not recorded from January 2002 affecting the intercompany balances.

The total receipts were approx. $172,000. It was further leamed from Kim

Gilliam, Corporate Service Source Accountant, that over $4,000,000 million had

not been properly recorded by Elizabeth Hayes, Accountant If. At the time of

plaintiff Wallace’s termination, there were intercompany balances of over

$157,000,000 that have not been cleared from The Minute Maid Company and

TCCC Fountain Division,

41. Defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant did not properly expense its spare
parts, resulting in $240,000 dollars currently sitting on the balance sheet with no accounting
treatment [depreciation].

42. Defendant TCCC through its Ombudsman, Amanda Pace, and Director of ER, Tracy
Koll, has known about fraudulent accounting practices since at least on or about May 2002.

Defendant Daft, the CEO and Chairman of defendant TCCC, Rushing, Buchareti, and Yochum
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have known since at least October 2002. James Garris, the General Manager of defendant TCCC
Atlania Beverage Base Plant, has knowingly participated with Joseph Costolnick, Finance
Manager I11, in concealing these irregularities.

43. Defendants TCCC, Daft, Rushing, Pace, Koll, Buchareti, and Garris have kept these
practices concealed from the public, SEC and the Federal Government in an effort to protect
their own personal interests ignoring the investors, customers, consumers and employees’ rights
to know that their financial investments were at stake.

44 Plaintiff Darryl Wallace reported these fraudulent schemes repeatedly. Several times
in 2001 and again October 2002 to Albert Jackson, an attorney with Bashen Consulting Firm, an
organization hired by defendant TCCC to assess its liability at the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant.
Seven weeks later from the last reporting, defendant TCCC fired plaintiff Darryl Wallace.
(Attached as Exhibit B and made a part of the complaint for all purposes pursuant to OCGA § 9-

11-16(c) are the e-mails between plaintiff Waliace and defendant Costoinick, Wise and others.)

Defendant TCCC'’s Pattern of Occupational, Safety
and Heolth Administration (OSHA) [29 USC § 651 et seq] Act Violations

45. Defendant TCCC has knowledge beforchand that storage of approximately 96,000

pounds of cane and ethyl alcohol inside its plant facility where approximately 125 employees
work would be potentially deadly if not contained properly. Having complete disregard for the
safety of its emplioyees and the public, TCCC led by James Garris, GM of ABBP and carried out
by Raymond Sherman, Engineering Manager, issued orders to Chris Georges, Safety Technician
to move the alcohol internally while the rail tanker car was being cleaned. (Attached as Exhibit

C and made a part of the complaint for all purposes pursuant to OCGA § 9-11-10(c) is the
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Citation and Notification of Penalty issued by U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety

and Health Administration.)

46. Defendant TCCC having complete disregard for employee and public safety did not

inform of the potential danger of such a large quantity of alcohol being stored in its facility and

nearby surrounding of other businesses. Instead, it concealed the problem by all means

necessary including denying the problem existed when contacted by concerned employees.

47. Plainuff Sharron Mangum filed a formal complaint with OSHA July 20, 2002 when

her concerns were discounted and ignored. Plaintiff Darryl Wallace filed an internal complaint

July 24, 2002 when employees reported to him that vapors were leaking from the large quantity

of alcohol stored on the 3™ floor.

48. Defendant TCCC was fined approximately $20,000 for multiple violations, five of

which where considered “serious.” They were:

a.

b.

“29 CFR 1910.106(b)4)(iv)d) Covers not vapor tight to prevent vapor release.
Hazard of overexposure from contact or inhalation.

29 CFR 1910.106(b)}4)(iiXh) Tanks . . . were not provided with overflow prevention
equipment to prevent the overfilling of over 40,000 pounds ethyl alcohol. Hazard of
inhalation or contact.

29 CFR 19190.119(e)X7) Improper process hazard analysis conducted prior to a change
in process for storage of over 40,000 pounds of ethyl alcohol. Hazard of fire or
explosion.

29 CFR 1910.119(1)X 1) Inadequate written program on the management of change to
the process and procedures used to store over 40,000 pounds of ethy! alcohol. Hazard
of fire or explosion.

29 CFR 1910.119(1X3) Inadequate employee training for employees affected by the
changed process for unloading and storing over 40,000 pounds of ethyl alcohol.
Hazard of fire or explosion.

29 CFR 1910.1200{f)(5Xi) Tanks . . . storing over 40,000 pounds of ethyl alcoho}
were not labeled to identify the hazardous chemical. Hazard of fire or explosion.

BACKGROUND: In an cffort to conceal its OSHA violations, James Garris, GM
of ABBP, on direction from Fred Yochum, VP of CPS misstated actual facts to
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OSHA Investigator, Anita Fountain upon her arrival to TCCC Atlanta Beverage
Base Plant during a plant-wide outdoor activity. Fountain was informed by
defendants Yochum, Garris, and Sherman assisted by Karen Klansek, Joseph
Calderara and Milagros Tomei, that employees would not return to work after
lunch, and that the second shift was a skeletal crew that would not be processing
product that evening. Upon learning that she had been misinformed, Fountain
returned to the facility. Again, Garris supported by Sherman, made false
statements regarding employees’ work schedules and product processing that
evening.

Defendant TCCC’s Multi Miilion Dollar Scam
on Women and Minority Owned Businesses

49. Defendant TCCC announced publicly during a press release, December 2000 that it
would spend $1 billion dollars with women and minority businesses over the next five years.

50. Defendant TCCC supported and ratified by its Board of Directors-white male
vendors and/or suppliers began switching their businesses into their wives’ name in violation of
SBA 15 USC §§ 634(b)(11) and 15 USC §§ 687b(a) in an effort to maintain their financial
standing and/or growth potential with defendant TCCC, thereby, substantially decreasing
opportunities for women and minority owned businesses in establishing partnerships with TCCC
to provide goods and services.

BACKGROUND: Orchestrated by James Garnis, GM of TCCC ABBP, camied

out by Raymond Sherman, Engineering Manager, and Bert Lanscy, Maintenance

Manager, these individuals began as early as January 2002 persuading businesses

owned and operated by white-male vendors and suppliers to transfer their

business majority ownership into their wives’ name. April 25, 2002 Charles A.

Morse doing business under the name of M&S Specialty Welding, Inc. since

August 1, 1998 carried through with this scheme while expressing fear of

criminal prosecution to a Maintenance Technician, Robert Davis. In spite of his

fears, Charles A. Morse transferred majority ownership to his spouse, Kerri
Morse. Action Electric is another example of this fraudulent conduct.

(Attached as Exhibit D and made a part of the complaint for all purposes pursuant to OCGA §

9-11-10(c) is the Application for Business Development and Small Disadvantaged Business
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Certification completed and signed by Kerri Morse.)

51. Defendant TCCC through its Ombudsman, Amanda Pace, and Director of ER, Tracy
Koll, has known about this fraud since at Jeast on or about May 2002. Defendant Daft, the CEO
and Chatrman of defendant TCCC, Rushing, Buchareti, and Yochum have known since at Jeast
October 2002. James Garris, the General Manager of defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base
Plant, has been a willing participant in these illegal activities since 2001.

52. Defendants TCCC, Daft, Rushing, Pace, Koll, Buchareti, and Garris having complete
disregard for moral and ethical behavior, let alone integrity, continue this practice today--
allowing these vendors and/or suppliers to continue business as usual with defendant TCCC.

53. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum reported this fraud on numerous
occasions. May 2002, September 2002 and again October 2002 to Albert Jackson, an attorney
with Bashen Consulting Firm, an organization hired to the sum of $500,000 dollars by defendant

TCCC to assess its liability at the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant. Seven weeks later from the last

reporting, defendant TCCC fired plaintiff Darryl Wallace.

Defendant TCCC'’s Pattern of Violating
The Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) [29 USC § 2601 et seq]

54. Defendant TCCC had knowledge that female employees were intimidated to work
while on medical leave covered under the Family Medical Leave Act.

BACKGROUND: Plaintiff, Sharron Mangum, was required to use a laptop while
recovering from a back injury as a result of a ncar fatal vehicle accident June 15,
2001. The HR Manager, Kevin E. Johnson, communicated with Mangum
telephone and the Internet—emailing assignments and discussing priorities during
the four months she was medically disabled. Johnson went as far as stopping by
Mangum’s home to deliver and pickup materials.

Bridgett Wise, Finance Manager [, was required to work in the office atthough her
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doctor had placed her on medical leave for complications to her pregnancy, which
is covered under the Family Medical Leave Act. Joseph Costolnick, Finance
Manager 111, had full knowledge of Wise condition, but offered no relief for her
medical condition, and actually pressured her to work in spite of her doctor’s
orders.

Shumi Islam, Process improvement Engineer, was required to work in the office
although ber doctor had placed her on medical leave for complications to her
pregnancy, which is covered under the Family Medical Leave Act. Raymond
Sherman, Engineering Manager, had full knowledge of Islam’s condition, but
offered no relief for her medical condition, and actually pressured her to work in
spite of her doctor’s orders.

Virginia Dunans, Laboratory Technician, suffered an injury to her foot, which her

medical doctor placed her on medical leave for a period of time to recover. Upon

returning to work, she requested specific accommodations from Alanna Barfield,

Laboratory Manager. Her request was never filled and as a result Dunans had to

take additional time off for her medica! condition. Additionally, she received a

written warning for excessive absenteeism despitc providing documents for her

medical condition.

Priscilla Porter, Planner Buyer, was slated to receive a promotion prior to a

sudden medical leave, as communicated by Tomei, the Human Resources

Manager. Upon returning to work approximately three weeks later an external

candidate was selected for the position.

55. Defendant TCCC, Dafi, the CEO and Chairman of defendant TCCC, Rushing, and
Koll have known about these violations since at least October 4, 2001. Defendant Pace,
Buchareti, and Yochum have known since at least May 2002. Milagros Tomei, the Human
Resources Manager of defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant, has been a willing
participant in these illegal practices since her hiring March 2002.

56. As evidenced by an investigation conducted by Olivia Jones, Investigator for U.S.
Department of Labor, FMLA Division, and a report compiled of her findings, defendant TCCC,

represented by attorney Joe Moan, admitted guiit to some FMLA violations.

Defendant TCCC'’s Pattern of Violating
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The Federal Labor Standard Act (F1.SA) [28 USC § 201 et seq]

57. Defendant TCCC knew that they were violating the Federal Labor Standard Act while
improperly classifying positions as exempt and miscalculating overtime pay for hourly
employees, thereby, bilking its employees of hundreds of thousands of dollars in overtime pay
spanning an approximate ten year period.

BACKGROUND: July 2001 Karen Klansek, Quality Assurance Manager, met
with Kevin E. Johnson, HR Manager at that time, to discuss converting the
Quality Analyst position from non-exempt to exempt status. The motivating
factor for the change was Defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant attempt
to control its overtime dollars to approximately six analysts. Although, the
Laboratory Analyst position failed FLSA exemption criteria, it was stil}
converted. It failed on: a) management, b) decision making, c) hiring and d)
directing two or more employees.

While Defendant TCCC did undo this injustice March 2003 after an internal
complaint was filed by Atlanta Beverage Base Plant Laboratory Analysts June
2002, it did not follow federal guidelines to properly calculate back pay, and it
did not make adjustments to all Laboratory Analyst positions across all of its
entities including, the Minute Maid Company, other manufactuning plants, and
the corporate office.

September 2002 Defendant TCCC issued payments to its Atlanta Beverage Base
Plant hourly employees after investigating a complaint filed in May 2002. FLSA
guidelines require that overtime pay be calculated into any bonus structure for
hourly employees. Defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant had not done so
for the bonus structure implemented for hourly employees in 1998, Although,
Defendant TCCC did address this problem; however, hourly employees did not
recover all the loss wages due them, Defendant TCCC did not foHow FLSA
guidelines to properly calculate back pay.

December 2002 Defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base changed its policy in
allowing hourly employees to dress in uniform after clocking in. This was
normally considered time worked which is consistent with FLSA guidelines.
Hourly employees are now required to dress before clocking to start their shift.
Willie Jones, Laboratory Technician, received a verbal waming from Klansek
when she learned he had gotten dressed after clocking in.

January 2003 Plaintiff Sharron Mangum informed Milagros Tomei and corporate
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officials that upon reviewing the FLSA guidelines to classify positions as exempt

[from overtime], she realized that her position of Human Resources Training

Coordinator and past position of Training and Development Coordinator did not

meet the criteria for exempt. Mangum asked that this situation be investigated

immediately. She also suggested that most Job Grade 6, 7 and 8, and some Job

Grade 9s did not meet the criteria to be classified as exempted. Mangum never

received a response. Three weeks later she was suspended and escorted off the

property pending a corporate investigation.

58. Had Defendant TCCC honestly admitted its mistake — not to mention revealing to
investors, shareholders, consumers, customers and employees — it would have to pay millions of
dollars in back pay to current and past employees. Faced with this possibility, defendant TCCC,
Daft, Rushing, Pace, Koll, Buchareti, and Garris, coliuded to conceal these federal violations
than risk another class-action lawsuit.

59. Defendants TCCC, Daft, Rushing, Pace, Koll, Buchareti, and Garris have complete
disregard for their responsibility to act morally and ethically, let alone with integrity. They have
ignored others basic human rights to be treated fairly and with respect and have continued this
practice through today.

60. Plaintiff Sharron Mangum reported this violation on numerous occasions. May 2002,
July 2002, September 2002, and again October 2002 to Albert Jackson, an attorney with Bashen
Consulting Firm, an organization hired by defendant TCCC to assess its liability at the Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant. Three and half weeks after reporting the violation again, February 2003,

defendant TCCC fired plaintiff Sharron Mangum.
Defendant TCCC’s Continued Pattern of Discriminatory Practices
in Violation of Title VII [42 USC § 2000e el seg] of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

61. In a landmark settlement for a mce-discrimination class action, defendant TCCC
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agreed to pay $192.5 million to a class of black employees and to fund numerous steps that
would prevent future unlawtful discrimination at Coca-Cola.

62. However, as plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum reported to defendant
TCCC Rushing, Pace, Koll, Buchareti and Bashen Consulting Firm on numerous occasions, race
discrimination in violation of Section 1981 of the Civil Rights Act of 1871, as amended by the
Civil Rights Act of 1991, 42 U.S.C.§1981 (“Section 1981"), and discrimination in violation of
Title V11 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Civil Rights Act of 1991,42 US.C.
§2000 er seq. (“Title VII'") continues as a normal everyday practice at defendant TCCC.

63. Defendant TCCC has continued its pattern and practice of race discrimination which
includes disparate treatment and disparate impact due to:

a. Discrimination in Compensation: Blacks, Hispanics and other minorities are paid
less than their Caucasian counterparts

b. Discrimination in Promotions: Defendant TCCC policies for awarding
promotions are not applied uniformly or fairly, preventing Black, Hispanic and
other minorities from having an equal opportunity to compete for and receive
promotions.

c. Discrimination in Hiring: Blacks, Hispanics and other minorities are hired at
lower pay grades and starting salaries than their Caucasian counterparts in
disregard of their education, training and experience.

d “Glass Ceiling”: Blacks, Hispanics and other minorities experience a “glass
ceiling” or a barrier to equal opportunity advancement.

e. Discrimination in Evaluations: Defendant TCCC evaluation system permits
subjective managerial discretion which leads to discrimination on the basis of
ethnicity.

64. Defendant TCCC through its Ombudsman, Amanda Pace, and Director of ER, Tracy

Koll, has known about these violations since at least on or about May 2002. Defendant Daft, the
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CEOQ and Chairman of defendant TCCC, Rushing, Buchareti, and Yochum have known since at
least October 2002, James Garris, General Manager and Milagros Tomei, the Senior Client
Services Consultant of defendant TCCC ABBP, have been willing participants in these

discriminatory acts since 2001,

65. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum reported these violations on
numerous occasions. October 2001, May 2002, July 2002, September 2002, and again October
2002 to Albert Jackson, an attorney with Bashen Consulting Firm, an organization hired by
defendant TCCC for $500,000 dollars to assess its liability at the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant.
Within weeks of Bashen Consulting Finm’s report plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron
Mangum were fired.

66. Here are a few examples of how defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant has
continued TCCC practices of discrimination and disparate treatment.

White Males & Females

(a) Derek Brown (Maintcnance Technician ) — white malc — reccived several
complaints for hostile and threatening behavior within two weeks of employment. On at
least seven different occasions Brown’s peers notified management, Human Resources,
and the Ombuds 1 800 line that this employee had a very volatile temper, which he
regularly exercised verbally and physically. Brown, using obscenities, would berate and
badger his peers almost daily and on at least one occasion it was reported that he threw
heavy equipment in a rage of anger. Brown was never repnmanded for his conduct.

(b) Randy Holcomb (Warehouse Operator) — white male ~ by his own admission, had an
accident with a forklift costing TCCC several thousand dollars. TCCC Atlanta Beverage
Base Plant policy requires all accidents to be investigated, and the employee to undergo
drug testing. Neither occurred with Dobski. However, Dennis Bolton and James Slade
(two black males) who also had forkiift accidents were required to follow procedure and
received verbal and written warnings in their employee files.

(¢) David Higdon — (Laboratory Analyst) - white male — salary ranges from $2,000 to
$5,000 dollars above his minority peers with comparable or more education and
experience than he. Although, this was reported to Human Resources on belief and fact
by Carine Titus, Ayani Momin and John Carter (three minority employees) their salaries
were never adjusted for the difference.

(d) Brian Sumners — (Customer Service Coordinator) - white male - asked for specific
accommodations upon returning to work aficr a medical leave covered under FMLA.
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Sumners recetved his special requests without question, while Virginia Dunans, Bridgett
Wise, Shumi Islam, and Priscilla Porter (minority females) requests were ignored or they
were retaliated against.

(e) Robert Mays -~ (Logistics Supervisor) - white male - salary is approximately $1,500
above Willic Green’s (black male) salary although they share the same job title and was
promoted on the same date. Green has an undergraduate degree; is currently pursuing a
graduate degree; and has more supervisory experience than Mays. Mays has a high
schoo! diploma.

(f) Robert Traylor (Mixer) — white male — during his short employment has busted
several batches and dumped several good batches down the drain costing defendant
TCCC in excess of $300,000 doliars. TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant policy requires
all incidents of this nature to be investigated, documented, and the employee undergo
drug testing. Traylor was never subjected to these policies. However, Anthony Robinson
(black male) was fired for refusing to undergo drug testing for allegedly busting a batch.
Robinson’s argument stated that white employees where not subjected to the same
practices and procedures as black employees.

(g) Tony Davenport (Maintenance Technician II) — white male — assisted by Elizabeth
Hayes - white female - was found to have purposely withheld invoices submitted by black
vendors forcing them to go up to 120 days pass due despite vendors numerous calls to
receive payment. Kidd Shepperd and Charles Cleveland, black male vendors, are two
examples of vendors receiving such abuse at these individuals’ hands. As a result of
these two cmployees behavior, TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant Maintenance
Department was able to drive away all their minority vendors. Neither of these
employees were reprimanded for their conduct.

Additionally, Davenport is known for participating with management in harassing and
threatening employees. On or about January 29, 2003 Davenport threatened to back over
plaintiff Sharron Mangum with his truck. Another employee, Stephen Amolegbe, black
male, witnessed the incident, but was so terrified he was unable to provide supporting
information to Corporate Secunity Investigators, Phil Cox and Leslie Davis during the
investigation.

Davenport receives unlimited overtime compensation for his role as a co-conspirator
while his peers must complete written requests, citing specifically what they will be
doing, before their overtime is approved.

(h) Alanna Barfield (Laboratory Manager) — white female — established the formula for
beverage preparation (Beverage Makeup Sheet) with the wrong ingredients, which had
been used two years consecutively by the Laboratory Analysts and Technicians in the
manufacture and testing of product prior to shipping. No action was taken. However,
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approximately two months later Barfield was promoted into a position vacated by Peter
Simpson, white male.

(i) Tracy Bryant (Environmental Program Manager) - white male - received failing
performance review ratings two years consecutively; however, was never placed ona
Performance Improvement Plan. Additionally, violating its own policy, defendant TCCC
gave Bryant merit increases in both instances while black employees historically receive
0% increases.

{j) Karen Klansek (Quality Assurance Manager) — white female — historically have
discriminated against minority employees (evidenced by a report compiled March 2001
by Kevin E. Johnson), and had been accused of sexually harassing female subordinates
while heavily intoxicated at an after hours business function. Alex Huntebrinker,
Hispanic female and Tangela Gaines, black female, both filed charges of discrimination
and retaliatory conduct on numerous occasions against Klansek. Klansek was never
reprimanded and received a promotion within weeks of the most recent charge filed by
Tangela Gaines.

(k) Defendant James Garris (General Manager) ~ white male - historically have
discriminated against minority employees, and have used terrorist type tactics to frighten
employees into submission. Plaintiff Sharron Mangum and Phyllis Morton, two black
female employees, were excluded from receiving incentive bonuses for the 2001 period.
Plaintiff Mangum received a partial payout only after filing a complaint against Garris.
Morton never received compensation. Garris on numerous occasions during plant
meetings and in closed meeting settings would tell employees if they continued
complaining to defendant TCCC corporate office, the plant would be shut down.
October 2002 Garris stated to Harland Howeli, a black male, that he needed to get nd of
four people [plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum were two of the four].

(1) Defendant Raymond Sherman (Engineering Manager) — white male — is notorious for
terrorizing black employees, and making derogatory comments about them. Karen
Klansek, an informant for Sherman, would notify him when black employees were seen
going into or coming out of Human Resources. Sherman would corner the employee and
interrogate them about their purpose for being in HR. Additionally, Sherman referred to
Phyllis Morton, a black fcmale cmployee, as a slave to another black employee, Albert
Nalls. Sherman took pride in his conduct which was condoned by James Garris. [n one
instance, Sherman taking pleasure in the verbal attacks and physical hostile behavior he
wielded at Plaintiff Sharron Mangum, he stated to a group of employees after Mangum’s
firing, “that’s what she gets for messing with big red [Coca-Cola).”

(m) Defendant Steve Buchareti (Director of EEQ) ~ white male — assisted by defendants

Ombudsman, Amanda Pace (black female) and the ER Director, Tracy Koll (white
female), attempted to coerce black employees to withdraw their Right-to-Sue letters
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issued by the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) stating that their
complaints could not be investigated internally because they had gone outside the
company. Plaintiff Darryl Wallace, Tangela Gaines and Albert Nalls were three
individuals requested to do so. The defendants TCCC, Buchareti, Pace and Koll directed
them to call TCCC legal department to get assistance. Katherine Johnsen, EEOC
Investigator, was identified as Defendant TCCC’s contact, that would be able to have the
Right-to-Sue letters rescinded.

(n) Defendant Joseph Costolnick (Finance Manager 1T) — white male — ignored GAAP
rules and participated in the cover up of defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
accounting fraud despiie concemns voiced by plaintiff Darryl Wallace.

Minority Employees

(a) Willie Jones — black male — was suspended three days without pay for allegedly
sexually harassing Betty Sanders, a black female. Sanders contacted defendant TCCC
Ombudsman, Amanda Pace to have the charges rescinded—confessing that she was coerced by
management under the direction of defendant Garns, to file these false allegations because of a
vendetta against Jones. Jones never recovered any damages.

{b) Cordell Stembridge — black male — was suspended with pay and eventually issued a
written warning with possible termination for allegedly sexually harassing a temporary
employee, Taneisha Dixon. This was in spite of three employees, Robert Davis, Thomas Swem,
and Brian Frazier’s testimony that Dixon had fabricated portions of her story. Also, it was
common knowledge throughout Defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base plant that Dixon is
involved with a hourly employee, Dexter King, for several months and had been romantically
linked 1o several other male employees, and only after the relationship soured did she file sexual
harassment charges against them as well.

{(c) Haywood Hill — black male - was denied the position of Logistic Supervisor although
he had more education and experience than Robert Mays, white male. Hill holds an
undergraduate degree and several years of management experience while Mays holds a high
school diploma. 1ill was also denied the position of Warehouse Operator although he had more
education and experience than his white counterpart, Randy Holcomb.

(d) Damayata Richardson - black female - applied for and was denied the position of
Warehouse Operator although she had more experience, and occupied the position several
months as a temporary employee during the position’s vacancy. Luke Dahls, a white male who
spent his career as a fitness trainer, was hired and less than two weeks later. He quit stating that
the position was beneath him.

(e) Albert Nalls - black maie - has comparable education and more experience than

Michael Soderlund, white male and a newly hired employee; Soderlund starting salary was
approximately $12,000 dollars above Nalis. Despite a salary adjustment in 2002 as & result of
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Nalls filing an EEOC complaint, his salary still remains approximately $3,000 below
Soderiund’s.

(f) Salvadore Jones — black male - has the equivalent education and experience as his
white peers, Joseph Costolnick, Raymond Sherman, and Karen Klansek, however, his salary
compared to theirs is much less. Jones salary ranges from $10,000 to $30,000 below his peers.

Defendants Use Intimidation, Threats, Bribery and Fear to Coerce and Extort Employees to
Participate in lllegal Racketeering Activities

67. The defendants, including Garris, Sherman, Costolnick, and Tomei, on information
and belief, regularly used intimidation and extortionate threats of economic punishment and job
loss to instill fear in the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant employees. The defendants were successful
- especially with the looming company wide layoffs in 2000 and again in 2003.

68. The defendants’ intent and purpose was on information and belief to coerce the
employees to perform the necessary functions to carry out the illegal racketeering activities
outlined above, where simple criminal solicitation failed.

69. The Defendant TCCC uses its Ombuds 1 800 line, and where that fails, its Ombuds,
Employee Relations, and Equal Employment offices as informants, on information and belief, to
respond swiftly to employees’ objections and complaints about the Atlanta Beverage Base
Plant’s illegal racketeering activities. The defendants would and did on information and belief
make illegal and coercive threats of poor reviews, bad performance grades, and termination if an
employee refused to buckle to their threats.

BACKGROUND: September 20, 2003 Defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base

Plant employees attended a meeting at the corporate office, which was organized

by Defendant Yochum and facilitated by Defendants Pace, Koll and Buchareti. In

light of the complaints running rampant at its ABBP, defendant TCCC advised

these employees that there were other alternatives than going outside the company.

Fearing a mutiny after approximately 75% of the employees became very vocal
about their concerns not being addressed, the meeting was halted. Two weeks
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later Defendant TCCC hired Bashen Consulting Firm to the sum of $500,000

dollars to assess its liability under the disguise of an employee survey.

Approximately, two weeks afier Bashen Consulting issued its report mid

November, defendant Garris was instructed by defendant Yochum to regain

control of ABBP “by any means necessary.” Approximately two weeks later

Plaintiff Darryl Wallace was fired, and fourteen weeks later, Plaintiff Sharron

Mangum was fired.

(Attached as Exhibit E and made a part of the complaint for all purposes pursuant to OCGA § 9-
11-10(c) is a report compiled by Bashen Consulting Firm of its findings.)

70. The defendants would and did carry out such threats, including firing honest
employees, in order to demonstrate to other employees that “whistleblowing™ would result in
economic harm to anyone who tried.

71. The defendants warned plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharcon Mangum to cease
complaining about TCCC illegal activities which were reported numerous times from 2001 to
2003. The defendants issued the final threat in October 2002 when defendant Garris issued the
threat of getting rid of four people. The defendants’ message was that plaintiffs Darryl Wallace
and Sharron Mangum should just cooperate and participate in the illegal schemes when
necessary.

72. When plaintiffs Darryl Wallace “blew the whistle™ to defendants, Daft, Rushing,
Buchareti, Koll, Pace, Costolnick and Garris after refusing the defendants’ criminal solicitations
and extortionate warnings, the result was a bogus and coercive below standard performance
review resulting in two attempted Performance Improvement Plans (“PIP”). Plaintiff Wallace’s
exoneration in both these instances led defendants Costolnick and Garris to solicit employees,

Bridgett Wise, Mike Maynard, Angela Page, Elizabeth Hayes and Taneisha Dixon, a temporary

empioyee, and Colleen Green of Account Temps Employment Agency to participate in a
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conspiracy to have plaintiff Wallace maliciously and extortionately fired on November 22, 2002.

73. When plaintiff Sharron Mangum “blew the whistle™ to defendams Daft, Rushing,
Buchareti, Pace, Koll, Garris, and Tomei after refusing the defendants’ criminal solicitations and
extortionate warnings, the result was a bogus attempt to fabricate wrongdoing on Mangum’s part
using a temporary employee, Taneisha Dixon as a co-conspirator, defendant Sherman, Chris
Georges, Tony Davenport and Rosanna Kelly-Adams in her firing on March 15, 2003,

74. The defendants used the firing of plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum to
make clear to other employees on information and belief that “blowing the whistle™ was a fatal
offense at defendant TCCC, and that they would go to unmeasurable lengths to conceal their
wrongdoing. On or about December 18, 2002 it was made known to plaintiff Mangum that
defendants James Garris, Milagros Tomei and Raymond Sherman were discussing her
telephone conversations. Phytlis Morton, black female, told Mangum that from the nature of the
discussion, she suspected her telephone had been taped, and while at work, she should be
careful what she says over the phone.

75. Moreover, defendant TCCC continued its use of threats and intimidation to illegally
influence and coerce employees after firing plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum.
Utilizing the taw firm of Morrison and Feerster LLP, James E. Johnson and Matthew H. Meade
interrogated approximately twenty employees at TCCC’s Atlanta Beverage Base Plant from
April 2003 to June 2003 in an attempt to lead and pressure employees to incriminate plaintiffs
Wallace and Mangum in some wrongdoing to substantiate their terminations after the fact.
These employees were denied their basic right to have representation present during these

interrogations, and were threatened termination if they didn’t cooperate.
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76. Defendant TCCC notified numerous employees with relevant information about the
defendants’ racketeering activities in which plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum had
made many of the foregoing allegations of illegal conduct in the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant.
Defendant TCCC's purpose was on information and belief two-fold:

(a) to terrorize a number of these witnesses that employees who “blow the

whistle” will be considered Judases whose reputations and lives will be murdered
to protect defendant TCCC; and

(b) to subtly influence other witnesses to alter and withhold honest and truthfut

testimony from federal authorities and to prevent the communication of

information to law enforcement.

77. Defendant TCCC specifically identified the “whistleblowers™ and their allegations to
the wrongdoers on information and belief for the purpose of influencing the witnesses’ testimony
in several ways.

78. First, defendant TCCC tipped off the culpable participants in the illegal schemes so,
on information and belief, they could review relevant materials and alter or eliminate their
testimonial and documentary evidence in a way that would protect defendant TCCC.

79. Second, defendant TCCC corruptly communicated this information to the culpable
participants so, on information and belief, they could have time to plan their statements among
themselves in the situation most favorable to defendant TCCC.

80. Third, defendant TCCC tipped off the culpable participants to send the message that

on information and belief testifying against defendant TCCC would turn the company against

those individual defendants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S MALICIQUS RESPONSE TO ITS OWN MISCONDUCT
Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum Reported the Misconduct in Writing

81. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum raised the issues listed above in
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writing to management during the past two years.

82. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum who are individuals of great moral
character wanted to protect defendant TCCC’s financial future, preserve its reputation, and
repair its dysfunctional culture. Plaintiffs Wallace and Mangum wanted to do their duty as good
corporate citizens exhibiting integrity and honesty as in TCCC’s Code of Conduct. But the
defendants turned their backs and their concerns feel on deaf ears.

83. January 2001 began a two-year long correspondence with defendant TCCC’s Daft,
Rushing, Pace, Buchareti, Koll, Garris, Tomei, and Costolnick in hopes of having many of these
problems fixed. (Attached as Exhibit F and made a part of the complaint for all purposes
pursuant to OCGA § 9-11-10(c) are e-mails between these plaintiffs and the defendants.)

84. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum told Pace, Buchareti, Koll and
Bashen Consulting Firm the fraud and malfeasance at Defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base
Plant and shared a detailed account of much of the misconduct. The plaintiffs did so —and made
explicitly clearly — that they were entrusting not only the information, but their livelthoods as
well. However, to their dismay, defendant TCCC orchestrated their termination.

85. Defendant Pace, Buchareti, Koll and Bashen Consulting Firm breached the trust that
plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum had entrusted them by sharing directly and
mndirectly the plaintiffs’ disciosure of racketeering conduct with all the people identified in the
plaintiff’s memorandums.

86. And the defendants’ response was swift, criminal, and injurious. They treated
plaintiffs Darry! Wallace and Sharron Mangum, not 10 mention TCCC’s investors, sharcholders,

customers, consumers and employees, as trash ready for disposal.
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Defendant TCCC Secret Plan to Eliminate
Plainii, i Wallace and Sharron M, m

For Blowing the Whistle

87. In preparation for illegally firing plaintiff Darryl Wallace disguised as “threatening
and intimidating behavior and violating the company’s no weapons policy” TCCC Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant created a new Sr. Financigl Analyst position, and reassigned Wallace’s job
responsibilities to Angela Page, the newly hired Sr. Financial Analyst, twelve weeks prior to
Wallace’s suspension, October 2002.

88. In preparation for illegally firing plaintiff Sharron Mangum disguised as “soliciting
individuals to provide false information regarding your claims of threatening and intimidation in
the workplace . . . as well as surreptitiousiy obtaining access to confidential information,” TCCC
Atlanta Beverage Base Plant entered into lucrative employment agreement with Taneisha Dixon,
a temporary employee, eight weeks prior to Mangum’s suspension, February 24, 2003.

89. This clearly shows TCCC premeditated plan to fire plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and
Sharron Mangum regardless of its “no retaliation policy” in an effort to protect management and
terrorize the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant employees into supporting the defendants’
racketeering schemes.

90. Finally, after the conclusion of the investigation by Bashen Consulting Firm,
November 14, 2002, in which the plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum spent forty-
eight hours recounting the racketeering, malfeasance, fraud, accounting misconduct, and
discrimination problems at defendant TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant, the defendants fearing

another class-action lawsuit led by these two plaintiffs stepped up their plan to fire them.
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91. Thus, by maliciously manufacturing grounds for Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and
Sharron Mangum’s firing for speaking against corporate corruption and violation of basic human
rights the defendants laid the cornerstone for their dismissal, and in the process, violated its

fiduciary duty to protect corporate assets, investors, customers, consumers and employees.

The Defendants Hiegal and Unlawful Means For
Terminating Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum

92. On or about September 20, 2002, defendant TCCC determined that the only means by
which TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant employees could be terminated — other than the
“layofY assessment” process - was pursuant to gross violations of the Code of Conduct after an
appropriate investigation. Historically, TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant had been exempted
from corporate layoffs and downsizing. Defendant TCCC prescribed specific criteria to be used
in making individual termination decisions which were administcred by its separation committee
of which defendant Steve Buchareti, EEQ Director is a member.

93. On or about October 24, 2002, Bridgett Wise, Principal Financial Analyst and
supervisor of plaintiff Darryl Wallace, and under the direction of defendants Garris, Costolnick,
Sherman and Tome:i filed a complaint alleging Wallace’s behavior toward her was prone to
workplace violence. Wise went as far as soliciting her husband’s support, Lance Wise, to carry
out this elaborate scheme to have Wallace fired.

94. On or about October 28, 2002, Taneisha Dixon, a temporary employee; Mike
Maynard, IS Facilitator; Elizabeth Hayes, Accounting Clerk; and, Angcla Page, Sr. Financial
Analyst, under the leadership and direction of defendants, Garms, Costolnick, Sherman and

Tomei and being co-conspirators, provided false statements to corporate Security Investigators,
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Phil Cox and Leslie Davis in support of Bridgett Wise’s complaint.

95. On or about November 6, 2003, defendant TCCC hired Dr. Marc McElhaney, a
clinical psychologist to assessed plaintiff Darryl Wallace's mental stability. Following the orders
of defendants Garris and Costolnick, McElhaney confined plaintiff Wallace to a room against his
free while ignoring requests for representation and breaks for water.

96. On December 2, 2002, Bridgett Wise received a promotion and a bonus, rewards for
her participation in plaintiff Wallace’s termination. At the same time, defendant Garris received
a promotion and bonus as well.

97. No longer able 10 conceal its wrongdoing, U.S. Department of Labor, FMLA
Division, Federal Investigator, Olivia Jones was able to secure a report from Dr. Marc
McEThaney wherein he states unequivocally that there was no evidence substantiating that
plaintiff Darryl Wallace exhibited violent tendencies.

98. On or about January 19, 2003 Taneisha Dixon, a temporary employee provided false
information to Phil Cox and Leslie Davis, Corporate Security Investigators, alleging that plaintiff
Sharron Mangum asked her to falsify statements to them regarding her claims of possible
workplace violence charges leveled against defendant Sherman, Tony Davenport, Chris Georges,
Salvadore Jones, and Joseph Calderara. February 24, 2003, plaintiff Mangum was suspended
pending the outcome of the investigation. The following day, February 25, 2003, Taneisha Dixon
retumed to work driving a vehicle identical in color and model to plaintiff Mangum’s and
boasting about her Jucrative employment contract with defendant TCCC, rewards for her role as
a co-conspirator in Mangum’s firing. Priot to this recent change in status, TCCC violating its

own policy, compensated Dixon for holiday pay while working as a temporary employee.
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99. On or about February 26, 2003, Rosanna Kelly-Adams boasted to a peer, Albert
Nalls, that she told TCCC Corporate Security Investigators, Phil Cox and Leslie Davis that she
observed no one threatening or harassing plaintiff Sharron Mangum and that she {plaintiff
Mangum] was creating a hostile work environment. As a co-conspirator with the other
defendants, Kelly-Adams received a promotion and bonus within months for her testimony.

100. On or about February 27, 2003, Shields McManus (a partner with Gary, Williams,
Parenti, Finney, McManus, Watson & Sperando and Mangum’s legal representation in Civil
Action Numbers 01-CV-2866 and 03-CV-223 filed against defendant Coca-Cola in 2001 and
2003) informed plaintiff Sharron Mangum, “they [Coca-Cola management) hate you, Sharron.
The management team at the plant got together and created this scheme to fire you.” On or about
March 11, 2003, Alan Garber, a local attorney representing Mangum, toid her, “you need to start
looking for another job.” On March 15, 2003, plaintiff Mangum was fired.

101. On or about April 4, 2003, Willie E. Gary (Mangum's legal representation) and
former Mayor of Atlanta, Bill Campbell arrived in Atlanta to discuss the allegations surrounding
plaintiff Mangum’s termination. Ratified by Campbell, Gary stated, “We’ve seen the evidence
Coke has against you. They are preparing to file a motion to have all of your claims dismissed.”
Despite Mangum’s legal representation’s betrayal, legal bungling and threats of prosecution,
case dismissal, and arrest, she refused to admit guilt to something she knows beyond a shadow of
doubt she did not do. Unable to shake plaintiff Mangum, Gary and Campbell abandoned their
attempt to persuade plaintiff Mangum to accept a $28,000 settlement from TCCC.

102. No longer able to conceal its wrongdoing, U.S. Department of Labor, FMLA

Division, Federal Investigator, Olivia Jones was able to conduct an investigation at TCCC
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corporate office and its Atianta Beverage Base Plant. Her report clearly shows a lack of
evidence on TCCC to prove termination of plaintiffs Wallace and Mangum. Additionally, the
report shows an admission by Joe Moan, an attorney for defendant TCCC, referring to plaintiff
Mangum as a “computer hacker.” Moan stated, “an article in yesterday’s AJC [Atlanta Journal
Constitution] is about Sharron. Jt doesn’t mention her by name, but it’s about her.™ The article
entitied, “Hacker could sit in next cubicle” was published May 14, 2003,

103. Evidenced from defendant TCCC’s conduct, these elaborate schemes were an effort
to intentionally and with malice, defame plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum'’s
reputation as well as discount their well-documented descriptions of corporate malfeasance at
TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant.

104, Defendant TCCC, other representatives and agents of defendant TCCC, on
information and belief, have carried out a campaign of defamation against plaintiffs Darryl
Wallace and Sharron Mangum. In their job search, plaintiffs Damryl Wallace and Sharron
Mangum have had to deal with the peculiar distressed looks created by this sham orchestrated
by the defendants.

105. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum made every attempt to work with
TCCC defendants to resolve these problems and to make amends the retaliation, harassment and
abuse they suffered; however, the defendants betrayed their trust and creating an elaborate
scheme to rid itself of them once and for all. Realizing that there was a plan to get rid of them
and in accordance with Georgia statute, Wallace and Mangum engaged in protected activity
under the ERA by making lawful tape recordings that constituted evidence gathering. Wallace

and Mangum’s tape recordings are analogous to other evidence gathering activities that are
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protected under employee protection provisions, such as making notes and taking photographs

that document environmental or safety complaints.

CAUSES OF ACTION
Count I: RICO Conspiracy
(All Defendants)

106. Plaintiffs re-alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs § - 104 with the same
force and effect as if fully set out in specific detail herein.

107. The defendants have conspired and endeavored to violate the Georgia RICO statute,
OCGA § 16-14-4(a), by conspiring and endeavoring, through a pattern of racketeering activity or
proceeds derived therefrom, to acquire or maintain, directly or indirectly, any interest in or
control of any enterprise, real property, and personal property of any nature, including money, all
in violation of OCGA § 16-14-4(c).

108. The defendants have conspired and endeavored to violate the Georgia RICO statute,
OCGA § 16-14-4(b), as persons employed by or associated with any enterprise, that is, an
association-in-fact of the defendants, to conduct or participate in, directly or indirectly, such
enterprise through a pattern of racketeering activity, all in viotation of OCGA § 16-14-4(c).

109. Specifically, the defendants have conspired to and endeavored to engage in, and
have repeatedly committed, the following criminal activities under Georgia and federal law,
which constitute a patiern of racketeering activity under OCGA § 16-14-3(8 & 9): theft in
violation of OCGA § 16-8-1 ef seq.; securities fraud in violation of OCGA § 10-5-24; mail fraud
in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1341; obstruction of justice in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512;
influencing witnesses in violation of OCGA § 16-10-93; tampering with evidence in violation of

16-10-94; and extortion in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1951.
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110. In furtherance of such conspiracy to violate the Georgia RICO statute, in violation
of OCGA § 16-14-4(c), the defendants knowingly and willfully committed extortion against
plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum by illegally taking their jobs away in order to
continue to conduct the defendants’ racketeering enterprise.

111. And in furtherance of such conspiracy to violate the Georgia RICO statute, in
violation of OCGA § 16-14-4(c), the defendants knowingly and willfully committed obstruction
of justice under federal law and influencing witnesses and tampering with evidence in violation
of Georgia law against plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum by illegally influencing
and attempting to influence witnesses and to alter evidence to continue to conduct the
defendants’ racketeering enterprise and to deprive plaintiff Matthew Whitley of his rights to a
fair and just hearing on his complaint.

112. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum have suffered extreme emotional
distress as the result of the extortionate, willful, malicious, and intentional acts of the
defendants.

113. As a result of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including, but not limited to, substantial loss of income, and loss of benefits.

114. As a result of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience, mental anguish,
loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.

115. Plaintiffs seek to redress the wrongs alleged herein, and this suit for equitable,
compensatory, and punitive damages, are plaintiffs only means of securing adequate relief’

116. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum have been injured by reason of such
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violations of OCGA § 16-14-4 and therefore is entitled to three times their actuat damages
sustained, punitive damages, and all attorneys' fees in the frial and gppellate courts and costs of

investigation and litigation reasonably incurred, pursuant to OCGA § 16-14-6(b).

Count IT: Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress
(All Defendants)

117. Plaintiffs re-alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 - 104 with the same
force and effect as if fully set out in specific detail herein.

118. The defendants have maliciously and intentionally engaged in outrageous conduct
against the plaintff.

119. Plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum have suffered extreme emotional
distress as the result of the extortionate, willful, malicious, and intentional acts of the
defendants. The dcfendants first tried to require the plaintiffs to become a criminal in order to
perform their job. Then the defendants extortionately threatened and finally punished the
plaintiffs for being honest and blowing the whistle on their racketeering schemes.

120. In short, the plaintiffs were extorted by members of a RICO enterprise for trying to
protect the economic interests of shareholders, customers, consumers, and employees of
defendant TCCC. Such conduct by the defendants is so outrageous and extreme as to go beyond
all possible bounds of decency, and to be regarded as atrocious, and utterly intolerable in a
civilized community.

121. As a direct and proximate result of the acts identified in this Complaint and such
other acts to be shown by evidence, including the conspiracy to violate the Georgia RICO statute

and commit other illegal acts, including obstruction of justice, and to cover up those illegal acts,
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plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum have suffered injuries to person and property,
including emotional distress that defies human conception.

122. As a result of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including, but not limited to, substantial loss of income, and loss of benefits.

123. As aresult of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience, mental anguish,
loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.

124. Plaintiffs seek to redress the wrongs alleged herein, and this suit for equitable,

compensatory, and punitive damages, are plaintiffs only means of securing adequate relief.

Count III: Wrongful Termination
(All Defendants)

125. Plaintiffs rc-allcges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 - 104 with the same
force and effect as if fully set out in specific detail herein.

126. The defendants have wrongfully terminated plaintiffs by maliciously manufacturing
a false and fraudulent violation of company policy and gross misconduct, thereby limiting
defendant TCCC’s common-law right to fire plaintiffs for any reason of its choosing.

127. As a result of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including, but not limited to, substantial loss of income, and loss of benefits.

128. As a result of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience, mental anguish,
loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.

129. Plaintiffs seek to redress the wrongs alleged herein, and this suit for equitable,
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compensatory, and punitive damages, are plaintiffs only means of securing adequate relief.

Count IV: Tortuous Interference
(All Defendants)

130. Plaintiffs re-alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 - 102 with the same
force and effect as if fully set out in specific detail herein.

131. Defendants TCCC, Dafi, Rushing, Yochum, Buchareti, Pace, Koll, Garris, Tomei,
Sherman, and Costolnick intentionally interfered with plaintiffs’ employment relationship with
TCCC, including his termination rights as exclusively prescribed by defendant TCCC, by
making false and malicious statements about plaintiffs and acting in bad faith which caused
plaintiffs’ termination. The reason for this is that not one individual had the decision-making
authority to fire plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum.

132. The termination process removed from all decision makers at the company the
authority to terminate plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum at will. Consequently,
defendant TCCC is vicariously liable for the actions of the individual defendants under the
doctrine of respondeat superior.

133. As a result of the defendants” actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including, but not limited to, substantial loss of income, and loss of benefits.

134. As a result of these defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and are continuing
to suffer injury including emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience, mental anguish,
loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.

135. PlaintifYs seek to redress the wrongs alleged herein, and this suit for equitable,

compensatory, and punitive damages, are plaintitts only means of securing adequate relief.
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Count V: Conspiracy to Commit Tortuous Interference
(All Defendants)

136. Plaintiffs re-alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 - 104 with the same
force and effect as if fully set out in specific detzil herein.

137. Defendants TCCC, Dafl, Rushing, Yochum, Buchareti, Pace, Koll, Garris, Sherman,
Tomei, and Costolnick conspired to intentionally interfere with plaintiffs’ employment
relationship with TCCC, including their termination rights as exclusively prescribed by
defendant TCCC, causing plaintiffs’ termination.

138. The termination process removed from all decision makers at the company the
authority to terminate plainiffs Darryl Wallace and Sharron Mangum at will. Consequently,
defendant TCCC is vicariously liable for the actions of the individual defendants under the
doctrine of respondeat superior.

139. As a result of these defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and are continuing
to suffer injury including, but not limited to, substantial loss of income, and loss of benefits.

140. As a result of Wise’s, Dixon’s and others actions, plaintiffs have suffered and are
continuing to suffer injury including emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience,
mental anguish, loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.

141. Plaintiffs seek to redress the wrongs alleged herein, and this suits for equitable,

compensatory, and punitive damages are plaintiffs only means of securing adequate relief.

Count VI: Breach of Fiduciary Duty
(Defendants TCCC and Buchareti, Pace, Koll)

142. Plaintiffs re-alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 - 104 with the same
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force and effect as if fully set out in specific detail herein.

143. Defendants TCCC, Buchareti, Pace and Koll owed plaintiffs Darryl Wallace and
Sharron Mangum a fiduciary duty to maintain the trust and confidence entrusted in them when
they shared the incriminating information about the illegal racketeering activities engaged in by
defendants Garris, Tomei, Sherman and Costolnick. But defendants TCCC, Buchareti, Pace and
Koll breached' their fiduciary duties to the plaintitTs in connection with such information,

144. As a result of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and are continuing to
suffer injury including, but not limited to, substantial loss of income, and loss of benefits.

145. As a result of these defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and are continuing
to suffer injury including emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience, mental anguish,
loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.

146. Plaintiffs seek to redress the wrongs alleged herein, and this suit for equitable,

compensatory, and punitive damages, are plaintiffs only means of securing adequate relief.

Count VII: Slander
(All Defendants)

147. PlaintifTs re-alleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 - 104 with thc samc
force and effect as if fully set out in specific detail herein.

148. The defendants have slandered plaintiffs in making false, malicious, defamatory and
derogatory statements about plaintiffs to external sources publically and private, to other
employees of defendant TCCC and through plaintiffs’ forced republication of such statements.

149. As a result of the defendants’ actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to

suffer injury including, but not limited to, substantial loss of income, and loss of benefits.
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150. As a result of the defendants” actions, plaintiffs have suffered and is continuing to
suffer injury including emotional pain, suffering, humiliation, inconvenience, mental anguish,
loss of enjoyment of life, and other non-pecuniary losses.

151. Plaintiffs seek 10 redress the wrongs alleged herein, and this suit for equitable,

compensatory, and punitive damages, are plaintiffs’ only means of securing adequate relief.

Count VIII: Attorneys’ Fees and Costs
(All Defendants)

152. Plaintiffs re-alleges and incorporate by reference paragraphs 1-104 with the same
force and effect as if fully set out in specific detail herein below.

153. All defendants have acted in bad faith and have caused plaintiffs unnecessary
trouble and expense.

154. As a result of the defendants’ conduct, plaintiffs are entitled to attorney’s fees and
costs related to this litigation pursuant to OCGA § 13-6-11.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully prays that this Court assume jurisdiction of this action
and after trial:

a. Issue a declaratory judgment holding that the actions of the defendants violated the
rights of plaintiffs under Georgia law.

b. Enter an order requiring the defendants to make plaintiffs whole by awarding plaintiffs
equitable {including back pay and front pay) damages, compensatory damages, treble
damages, and punitive damages, costs to include costs of investigation, attorney's fees,
expenses, and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest.

¢. Plaintiffs further prays for such other relief and benefits as the cause of justice may
require.

~42 -



Case 1:03-cv-027(9-RWS Document 1 Filed 09/12/03 Page 49 of 170

JURY DEMAND
PLAINTIFFS DEMAND A TRIAL BY A STRUCK JURY.

Respectfully submitted this the 12® day, August 2003.

. ___a&'l/;'\/'
CBarryl Wallace
. 445 Fitzgerald Place
* Atlanta, Georgia 30349
Telephone: 404-545-0781

amon Mangum [ % 7
94 Crestbend Lane )
Powder Springs, Georgia 30127
Telephone: 770-222-8802

IN PROPRIA PERSONA
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Atlanta Beverage Base Pla( (
Allanta, Georgia
December 4-12, 2002

Objectives and Scope

The objectives of the audit were to conduct an independent, unbiased
assessment of the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant to confirm conformance to the
standards of The Coca-Cola Company and to perform a Phase lll assessment of
the plant’s quality system.

The scope of the audit focussed on five key areas of concentrate operations:

Manufacturing

Supplier Management

Environmental, Safety and Loss Prevention
Inventory Management/Logistics

Quality Systems

The following quality programs and plant processes were assessed:

Product Manufacturing and Release Testing

Cileaning and Sanitizing

Container Preparation and Inspection

Control of Nonconforming Materials

Dry and Liquid Parts Filling- Fill control, Labeling, and Date Coding
GMP - Housekeeping

Maintenance and Calibration

Microbiological Testing

Process Monitoring and Control

Product Traceability

Record Keeping

Security (product, plant and formula security)

Shipping and Distribution

Storage, Handling of Ingredients, Packaging & Final Products
Water Treatment

Training

Document Managernent

Corrective Action

intemnal Audit
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Atlania Beverage Base Plant (
Allanta, Georgia
December 4-12, 2002

Approach

The fieldwork portion of the audit was conducted during the period December 4-
12, 2002. The audit was based on:

Physicat inspections of the facility;
interviews and discussions with key plant management, staff, and plant
associates;,

+ Examination of seiected documentation provided by plant personnel; and

e Review of applicable quality requirements and procedures.

it is important to recognize that all issues may not have been identified because
only a sample of plant documentation and practices were reviewed.

Overall Plant Rating

The overall audit opinion is based on the facilities conformance to the policies,
standards and specifications of the Company. As a result of this audit, the

overall rating of the piant is “Meets Applicable Quality Requirements” and is
recommended for Phase ill certification to The Coca-Cola Quality System.

(Definitions of the ratings can be found in section VIL.).

Compliance Audit Findings

Each nonconformance is categorized according to the key areas identified in the
audit scope and rated as critical risk, high risk or potential risk. Definitions
for these ratings are given in section Vill.

A. Manufacturing

1. Merchandise 8 Manufactwring Obsaervation

The plant should revise the SMI for merchandise 8 manufacturing to address
“non-startup batches. The current SMI is specific to "startup batches.

Ciassified: "Confidential” Page 4 of 17
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Allanta, Georgia
December 4-12, 2002

Calibration Verification Potential Risk
[Ref: CPOM MC-RQ-295]

Platform scales are not verified across the full operating range as part of
the monthly calibration, nor are the platform scales verified accros or within
+/- 5 % of the normal range of use. Also, the plant's scale verification
instructions specify verification tolerances of +/- 5%. Thisis a
misinterpretation of the requirement and in no way reflects actual
performance of the scales.

GMP & Houseokeeping Potential Risk
[Ref: CPOM GMP-RQ-240, 245)

Overall, the plant reflects a very high level of compliance to company GMP
and housekeeping standards. Issues identified during the audit were found
to be minor and isolated in nature.,

A separate list of findings was generated by plant personnel for follow up
and action,

Filling & Packaging Potential Risk
[Ref: CPOM LI-RQ-655]

While reviewing the five galion filling line, the checkweigher reject
mechanism was found malfunctioning. The line was immediately stopped
and corrective action taken. It is recommended that the reject mechanism
is verified as part of the line start-up procedure.

Pasteurizer Design Observation

A review of the pasteurizer design revealed several issues. The
temperature RTD used to monitor pasteurization temperature is located at
the inlet of the holding tube. The RTD should be located at the outlet of the
holding tube. Also, the system is not designed with an auto divert in the
event that pasteurization temperature is nol maintained. Instead, the
system is designed to divert based upon product cooling temperature.
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Atlanta Beverage Base Pla (
Allanta, Georgia
December 4-12, 2002

B. Laboratory Operations

A detailed review of the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant laboratory operations was
performed as part of the laboratory capability study performed in February 2002.
During this audit, a traceability exercise was conducted, resulting in a complete
accounting of selecied product lots, retention samples, and associated quality
records.

1. Test Methods High Risk
[Ref. The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual IT-RQ-465]

Laboratory personne! are not always foilowing correct procedures when
performing analytical tests. The following examples were noted:

= The formula for beverage preparation (FP-43.00) to conduct the
appearance, taste and odor tests was incorrect (wrong ingredients and
weights).

= The carbonated beverages were prepared without carbonation. The
CO: tank was empty.

= The end point of NaOH standardization was set up at pH = 8.6 not 8.3
as it is required [(RG-P-006 Reagents Q-Z, IN-P-651).

= The color analysis of S-601 was performed using & 1-cm cell, not a 10-
cm as it is required (IN-P-601).

= The performance of GC method 10 analyze Part 2 of Sprite was not
verified before the sample analysis. Howsver the method was validated
for precision and accuracy.

2. Ingredient Certificates of Analysis Potential Risk
{Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual IT-RQ-460]

Laboratory procedures do not ensure that ingredient C of A’s are reviewed and
in compliance with Company specifications. Examples include:

» The analysts do not always compare {aboratory analytical results against
supplier results. Certificates of analysis for S-801 state results in
different units than specified in Company specifications.

» Certificates of analysis for S-601, lots S095C and S077C, were outside

of Company specifications and there were significant differences in
results of color determination between the supplier’s and the laboratory.

Classified: “Confidential™ Page 6 of 17



Case 1:03-cv-02739-RWS Document 1 Filed 09/12/03 Page 56 of 170

Atiarta Beverage Base Plant (
Allanta, Georgia
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3. Sensory Training Potential Risk
[Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PT-RQ-665)

The sensory evaluation training program is not formalized. The last training was
conducted on 11/25/2002-11/26/2002 to evaluate the difference in prepared
beverages, e.g. flavor, color, and ratic. Off-{aste training for beverage base has
not been conducted within the last 12 months.

4. Laboratory Records Observation
[Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PG-RQ-040}

The program is adequate in ensuring that production and analyticai records
provide traceability between finished products, ingredients, and analytical
results. However, additional focus on record keeping is necessary to ensure
records are accurate and legible. The following issues were noted:

» The foider for S-801G was labeled as S-8019.

» The SPC charts for most of the instruments and methods (titration, GC
method for Sprite analysis and spectrophotometer) did not have records
for traceability to SRM used.

= The package information on Pl worksheet was overwritten several times
and was impossible to read.

» The date of analysis of ingredients in the iaboratory notebook did not
refiect the actual date. The analyst records the date on the page when
all tests on that page are completed (S-604, NADS15221-48)

5. Test Equipment Performance Observation
[Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual EQ-RQ-235]

The laboratory has a program to ensure that quality control test equipment is
operating within performance requirements. However, the issues identified wuld
strengthen the program and provide greater confidence in the accuracy and
validity of analytical results. Examples include:

= Control charts for the auiotitrators had S-651 specification limits instead of
control limits.

= The performance of the spectrophotometer was not verified before
analysis of S-736 on 12/02/02 and 12/04/02.

=  The frequency of standardizing 1N NaOH solution has not been validated
to ensure the stability of the solution over time. The last standardization
was conducted on 9/19/02.
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6. Retention Samples Observation
{Ref: The CPOM IT-RQ-480, Intemal Procedure QA-WA-11.18]

Many of liquid ingredient retention samples were resealed after sampling for
additional testing and no date and initial of the analysts were recorded on the
label after resealing as it is required by intemal procedure QA-WA-11.18.

7. Microbiological Testing Observation
[Ref: The CPQCM Volume 3 GM-P-012.01)

Analyst was wearing a long sleeve lab coat and gioves, which may
contaminate work area. Short or tied sleeves are recommended and hands
should be washed and dried before the tests. In addition, a bleach
solution of unknown chlorine concentration was used for sterilizing the
surface of the work area. A 75% ethanol solution is recommended.

8. Chemicals & Reagents Observation
[Ref: The CPQCM Volume 3]

Reagents are prepared from analytical grade chemicals and labeled
appropriately. One expired chemical was observed, e.g. phenol stock
solution used for S-813 phenol analysis.

C. Environmental, Health & Safety
Conclusion:

The Atlanta Beverage Base plant has effective environmental, safety and loss
prevention (ESLP) systems in place and exhibits a high degree of compliance
with applicable requirements. The ESLP programs were reviewed with respect
to the level of integration into the plant the quality system and compliance with
established requirements.

Classifled: “Confidential® Page 8 of 17




Case 1:03-cv-02739-RWS Document 1 Filed 09/12/03 Page 58 of 170

Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
Atlanta, Georgia
December 4-12, 2002

1.

Hazard Communication Potential Risk
[Ref: eKOsystem Requirement 3.5.1]

The plant’s hazard communication program does not fully ensure that these
materials are handled in accordance with Company standards, as defined in the
Managing Hazardous Materials GEP. Items noted by the audit team include:

The solvent tank in room E, as well as the doors o the laboratory were
not labeled appropriately to indicate potential hazards.

The Hazard Communication plan did not fully describe the process used
to manage MSDS or fully describe the communication with contractors.
Records were not available to confirm all associates received hazard
communication training.

Accesses to areas with high noise levels, such as Rooms F, R and
Merchandise 8 were not posted to indicate hearing protection is required
A current map indicating fire extinguishers and emergency pull stations
was nol available. An associate queried about the iocation of the pull
station could not immediately locate the pull station. A fire pull was used
as the emergency HVAC shutoff at the lab. This was confused as a fire
alarm station.

A wastewater sump in the drum wash area was not labeled to indicate
that it is a confined space.

DOT training has not been provided for all associates who sign the
hazardous waste manifests.

Documented training to "certify” associates who handle rail cars was not
available. The procedure for offloading rail cars did not contain all the
elements described by the DOT for offioading hazardous material railcars
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2. Safety and Loss Prevention Program Potential Risk
[Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PG-RQ-085]

The plant’'s safety and loss prevention program has not fully identified or
controlled all worker safety or loss exposures. Areas of concem noted include:

s Eyewashes were not available at the hazardous waste area in the
Lagrange warehouse, at the CIP area or in the drum wash room.

= Minor electrical system nonconformances were noted with dock lights at
the Lagrange warshouse, open junction box covers, missing conduit plugs
and a damaged conveyor advance switch.

= Light covers were broken on some outside lights and in the wastewater
control room.

= Machine guards were not present on two pumps in Room E and at a pinch
point on the juice unloading rack.

» Seat belts are provided on the forklift trucks but were not used by many of
the drivers.

« Openings were noted in the walls in the manufacturing areas, breaching
fire controls.

» Some chemical hoses had exposed wires on the ends creating a cut/stick
hazard.

= Records were not available to verify that contractors operating company
fork trucks in the Lagrange hazardous waste area are certified.

» Air vents on the 801 pumps were open allowing ethanol mists to vent into
the tank farm.

* PPE (gloves, dust masks) were stored with poisons in the lab toxic
chemical storage room

3. Storm Water Management Program Potential Risk
[Ref: eKOsystem Requirement 3.11]

The plant's stormwater management program does not inciude all required
elements. Examples include:

= The annual comprehensive plan review and certifications were not
available.
The annual monitoring exception certifications were not available.

= The non-stormwater discharges evaluations and certification was not
available.

= The plan did not include certain potential impacts such as the juice
unloading area or wastewatler-cffioading areas (concentrate tank, the
wastewater treatrnerm area).
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= Records were not available to verify that the annual stormwater training
has been conducted,

4. Emergency Response Programs Potential Risk

[Ref: eKOsystem Requirement 3.5.1; The Concentrate Plant Operations
Manual PG-RQ-080 and PG-RQ-085)

The plant's emergency response programs have not implemented ali the
elements required by local regulations and Company standards. Items noted by
the audit team include:

* The emergency response pian (4/01) does not accurately describe
current practices. As examples, the medical procedure indicates ABB
associates provide first aid and CPR; this is not done. Also, another fire
plan and emergency action plan has been developed and is in use.

» The ER plans do not provide a link into the Incident management plan.

= An unloading procedure for the fuel oil (required for the SPCC plan) was
not available. A procedure was developed during the audit.

* Training records were not available to verify annual SPCC training was
conducted for associates who handie oils.

« Records were not available to confirm that the annual spill drill is
conducted.

= A SOP for conducting assessments/evaluations of drills was not available.
Corrective actions were not documented for gaps identified in the last
evacuation drill.

» Drain plugs were not installed in 4 of 6 drains in the inside bulk storage
area.

= Records were not available to confirn 40 hour HAZWOPER training has
been completed by contractors working in the hazardous waste area.

5. Waste Management Potential Risk
[Ref. eKOsystem Requirement 3.12]

The plant's waste management program does not fully ensure that these
materials are handled in accordance with Company standards. Issues of
concem include:

= The Hazardous Waste Minimization Plan has not been updated since
1996.

« The Hazardous Waste Contingency Plan (recently revised) has not yet
been sent to local ER agencies.

* The map in the 2000 contingency plan does not include the newly
established waste storage area.

= A mercury spill kit was not provided in the used lamp storage area.
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D. Supplier Management

The supplier management program at ABBP is designed to ensure that the
plant only purchases approved ingredients from authorized suppliers that are
listed in the vendors and manufacturers database. The auditing of these
suppliers is conducted by the Americas Hub Supplier Authorization Group and
The Minute Maid Company. Supplier performance is tracked as a part of the
MRPII process in SAP. The requirements of this program are documented in
the Logistics Program.

1. Supplier Management Procedures Observation
[Ref: CPOM PG-RQ-400]

The plant should formally document the procedure to be used to notify ail

relevant personnel of a late delivery. The current procedure is dependent
upon the Planner / Buyer with no assurance of a consistent process being
followed.

E. Inventory Management/Logistics

The Atlanta Beverage Base Plant is receiving, storing and shipping ingredients
and finished products according fo the requirements of The Coca-Cola
Company. Nonconforming materials are effectively managed through SAP and
physical segregation. ABBP achieved MRPII Ciass B status in August 2002,

No nonconformances noted

The Coca-Cola Quality System

1. Internal Audits Potential Risk
[Ref. The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PG-RQ-055}

The documented program does not reflect actual practices with respect to
handling of critical nonconformances, overall reporting of nonconformances, and
analysis of nonconformances for adverse trends.

For example, the program states that corrective action plans addressing critical

nonconformances are submitted to the corrective action program owner. The
actual practice is for the program owner of the affected area submits the
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corrective action plan to the auditor who forwards to the intemat audit program
owner.

In terms of reporling, the program states that an Internal Audit Summary Report
(AU-FM-02.1) is prepared. In reality, this report is not generated and the form
has been deleted.

A key measure for the program is the analysis of nonconformances for adverse
trends and input into the corrective action program. Currently, this analysis is
not performed.

2. Recordkeeping Potential Risk
[Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PG-RQ-045]

The record keeping program is designed to ensure that appropriate records are
maintained to demonstrate compliance with company standards. The plant
maintains a master records list specifying retention periods and filing & storage
areas. A review of the production records revealed the following issues:

» [ot numbers of the filter aid used for Sprite manufacturing are not
recorded

» The plant does not maintain records of individual drum fill weights.
Operators record the number of drums filled and the total weight plus
any remnant for yield calculation
The use of white liquid paper
Incomplete records, e.g. batch information transferrerd from SAP Pl
sheets to internal forms

» Use of incorrect descriptions (e.g. $S-6519 for super sacs of S-651)

= Scoring out of information, instead of placing a line through and initialing

3. Training Potential Risk
[Ref. The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PG-RQ-050)

Environmental, health & safety training has not been fully integrated into the
plant's quality system, resulting in lapses in implementation. For example,
required training such as stormwater management and SPCC is not included
and hearing conservation training is not always compieted for all affected
employees within the prescribed timeframe. Also, the program couid be
strengthened by incorporating a process to follow-up and ensure that employees
missing required training sessions are included in subsequent training.

4. Corrective Action Potential Risk
[Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PG-RQ-060]
Clasaified: “Confidential™ Page 14 of 17
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Corrective actions initiated from internal EH&$ audits and inspections have not
been integrated into the plant's corrective action system.
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5. Process Monitoring and Control

The Process Monitoring Program is designed to assure that equipment and
manufacturing processes produce products meeting Company standards. The
program covers all equipment and manufacturing processes, including prior to
use verification on merchandises, ingredients and equipment, as well as finished

package inspection.

No nonconformances noted

6. Document Management

A. Required Documentation Potential Risk
[Ref: The Concentrate Plant Operations Manual PG-RQ-045]

All necessary documentation has not been fully integrated into the plant’s quality
system. Examples include:

SOP’s and processes related to Environmental Health & Safety
A work-aid to assist with SAP movement transactions

Internal audit CAR form

Management review process, .g. management routines

7. Customer Service

The customer service program at the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant addresses
the handling of all customer needs fo ensure the plant provides the highest level
of service and continues to meet customer expectations through a customer
feedback mechanism.

No nonconformances noted
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VI. Corrective Actlon Plans

A comrective action plan (CAP) must be forwarded to Corporate Quality by
January 12, 2003. The CAP must include the following:

o Brief description of the nonconformance

¢ Plans for comrecting the nonconformance

+ ldentification of individual(s) responsible for carrying out the cormrective
action plan

+ The date each corrective action is due to be complete

« Plans for determining effectiveness of the comrective action in terms of
eliminating the root cause (measures of effectiveness).
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Vil. Overall Plant Rating Definitions

“Meets Applicable Quality Requirements” — This opinion will apply
when the audited facility is in compliance with virtually all applicable
requirements. The few, if any, exceptions noled are occasional,
anomalous, and minor in nature in light of the facility's quality programs
and its overall record of compliance and quality performance; or

“Meets licable Quality Requi ts With Some Ex jons” —
This opinion will apply when the audited facility demonstrates a high
degree of compliance with applicable requirements, but several exceptions
are noted that are more than anomalies and reflect weakness (es) in the
design and/or a lapse in the implementation of the facility's quality
programs; of

“Does Not Meet Applicable Quality Requirements” — This opinion will
apply when a number of exceptions to applicable requirements are noted

at the audited facility. These exceptions reflect a significant departure from
applicable requirements, or the absence of or a fundamental weakness
(es) in the facility’s quality program, or prolonged inattention to the
resolution of previously identified quality issues.

Note: Planis that receive a critical risk nonconformance will
automatically receive audit opinion.
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VHI. Categorizing Audit Nonconformances

Process and quality system nonconformances will be rated according to the feollowing
classifications:

Critical Risk: Any issue having a potential or real significant adverse impact on product
quality, image and trademark of The Coca-Cola Company. These conditions include but are
not limited to:
s Use of unauthorized ingredients or packaging.
e« Use of an unauthorized supplier or supply point
» Release of an ingredient or product prior to completion of appropriate testing to
determine “fitness for use”.
Use of unauthorized test procedures or test methods
Products shipped to bottlers without identifiable tamper-evident seals.
Environmental or safety concems that could potentially damage the environment,
cause injury to company personnel, impact the Company’s image and trademark or
result in a regulatory penalty.
+ Local regulalory concems that could potentially impact the image and trademark of the
Company.
= Any issue creating a health and/or safety concemn requiring production to be stopped
and corrective action to be taken immediately.
e Any issue creating an imageé or trademark concemn that has a high probability of
affecting current or future sales.
¢ Misuse, adulteration or misbranding of products.

Note: Comrective actions for nonconformances that are assessed as a critical isk must be well
defined, and where practical, implemented before the audit team leaves the facility.

High Risk: Any issue having a potential or real adverse affect on the quality of products and/or
services provided, or on the effectiveness of the quality system. These conditions include but
are not limited to:
* Any operational or quality program that leads to or has the potential to lead to
unacceptable process performance or business practices
* A breakdown of one or more key quality programs i.e.
- A lack of a key program(s) or procedure(s) in the quality system and/or
- A lack of adherence to the stated instructions in a key program or procedure

Potential risk: Nonconformance is assessed as low risk i.e. Intemal controls exist, however
the nonconformance is isolated in nature and is having no apparent adverse affect on the
quality of products or services provided, or on the effectiveness of the quality system.

Observation: An issue having no immediate impact on the process, but if not addressed,
could lead to a nonconformance. An observation could also be a recommendation to improve
or, to increase the effectiveness of a process. Observations have neither a positive or
negative impact on the outcome of the audit
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Note: Repeat Nonconformances will be considered for escalation to the next Jevel of rating

(e.g. high risk to critical risk) irespective of the actual risk associated with the
nonconformance.
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s Rosa lvette Munoz To: Craig HardinflUS/INA/TCCC@TCCC
-- _ oc: Priscilla PorterfUS/INATCCC@TCCC, Patrice
‘ 10/09/2002 02:24 PM Krant/USNATTCCC@TCCC, Grize! E.

-
‘\

\ Lopez/PRAA/TCCC@TCCC, Rengen
v/ LUS/NAITCCC@TCCC
Subject Minority suppfiers goat 2003 - Puerto Rico

Helto Craig it has been a long we have not talked.

Regarding below e-mail we have some questions:

e what will be the process to qualify 2tier suppliers?

e if there is any legal clause to include in any capital expenditure to encourage
MWO spending?

® to who we can contact to request that Supplier Diversity training class could be
performed in our plant. The reason for this request is that in our plant we have
approximate 25 associates than handles purchases.

Regards.

Rosa I. Mufioz
CPS Americas — Cidra, P.R.
B 787-739-8452, x. 352

1 787-649-5540
n 787-739-4405
B mmunoz@la.ko.com
— Forwarded by Rosa lvette Munoz/PRAATCCC on 10/09/2002 02:12 PM ——
Patrice Krant To: Grizel E. Lopez/PRAATCCC@TCCC, Rosa Ivetta
. Munoz/PRILAITCCC@TCCC, Priscilla
10/07/2002 04:41 PM Porter/USINATCCC@TCCC

cCc:
Subject: Re: Minority suppliers goal 2003
Rosa, Grizel and Priscilla:

| attended a Supplier Diversity update today led by Cece Webster and Johnnie Booker.
Coca-Cola North America, Fountain and TMMC are all well over their 2002 goals, but
Corporate is coming in at less than 50% of its 2002 goal of $50 MM, so of course the
Chairman's office and the Diversity office are very concemed, (Technical, however, will be
over its goal of $3.9 MM for 2002 thanks to youl) The Corporate goal includes Technical,
Business Systems, External Affairs, Corporate Communications, the Executive Offices,
Finance, HR, Legal, Marketing, McDonald's Account Group, Science, Security & Aviation,
ServiceSource and miscellaneous.

The Company's overall goal for 2003 is $175 MM, which is 30% higher than its goal of $1356
MM for 2002. | know we have talked about setting the Cidra and ABBP goals 5% higher than
2002, but | am prefty sure we are going to be asked to cornmit {o more than a 5% increase.
Simce Cidra and ABBP are both going to exceed their 2002 goals, can you look at your
numbers again and see if, based on the capital work planned for next year and the new
suppliers you think will get certified, you would feel comfortable raising your goal to 15%
higher than the 2002 goals?

A couple of ideas for places 1o look for additional MWOQ spend opprotunilies:
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1. 2nd tier suppliers: as an exampils, if we purchase a million dollars worth of computer
equipment from IBM, it doesn't count as minority spend because they are a majority-owned
company. But if they use a minority firm to manufacture the keyboards, we can get credit for
the amount of money 1BM spent with the MWO firm for the keyboards they sell to us. Craig
Hardin is available to help you iocok for and qualify second tier spend, so piease give him a
call.

{Rosa, this relates 10 your email question today about second tier suppliers, but | do not know
the answer to whether there is a contract clause to use about this. Certainly, if you hire a
non-MWO firm to do a capital construction project and they hire minority firms to do some of
the work, you can get credit for the second-tier spend, as long as you document it. |
recommend you give Craig Hardin a call about the contract clause and then let us all know
the answer (thanks!i).]

2. Legal fees: Sharon Case was at the meeting, and she told me that both Cidra and ABBP
have tegal bills for environmental counsel, labor claims, litigation, elc. If the firms are certified
minority firms, you need to add that spend to your reports each month and be sure 1o let
Rengen Li know so he can flag the supplier's vendor number in SAP if it is not already there. |
am going to ask Anthony Cabrera fo give me & report each month so | can check it for
certified legal services suppliers, but you should check with your Finance organizations to see
if any of these firms are being used in the plants already.

3. Minority suppliers who are not officially certified MWO: Craig Hardin is available to help you
with the "sales” call to encourage minority suppliers to become certified MWO suppliers.
Priscitla, he is going to give you a call, but if you have not heard from him in a couple of days,
please call him at 404-676-8800. Craig can help you leam to overcome any supplier
objections to getting certified.

Also: | got a definite feeling we will have to add reporting MWO spend as a percentage of
total "impactable” spend by the plant next year. This means you will need to take out any
purchases you don't control (such as the ingredients negotiated by GP&T, TMMC and CIS,
aven though you influence some of the purchasing decisions on these, plus anything else you
don't control the purchase decision on). What's left is your "impaciable” spend. For
November 15, 1 will have 1o report your 2003 target as total doliars and es % increase over
last year. In anticipation of being asked to also include your goal as a percentage of total
impactable spend, please calculate this and let's discuss prior to November 15.

Traning: there is a one-day Supplier Diversity training class held here at the office once a
maonth. it is mandatory training for all buyers in Fountain and Minute Maid. While it is not
mandatory in Corporate yet, | strongly recommend you take it. Call Rengen Li for details and
schedule.

One 1ast thing: atthough the meeling was very focused on getting suppliers certified and
spending money with certified suppliers, we did take a few minutes to talk about what TCCC
can be doing for the suppliers, such as asking the certifying agencles to make certification
more attractive so suppliers see a definite benefit anddon’t have to be coaxed into certifying,
teaching suppliers how to go through the certification process, and giving suppliers some
e-procurement training and access to tools so they can participate with us as our
e-procurement goals grow.

| think that about covers the subjects from the mesting. If | think of anything else, | will send
another message. If you have any questions, please call me.

Thanks and regards,
Patrice
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Patrice Krant

Director, Supply Management and Planning

Commercial Products Supply

The Coca-Cola Company, P.O. Box 1734, Atlanta, GA 30301
Phone: 404-676-2485 Fax: 404-676-2783

Grizel E. Lopez
te ® Grizel E. Lopez To: Patrice KranUS/NA/TCCC@TCCC
- ‘% Subject: Minority supplers goal 2003

Hello, Patrice for your record

CRI, MWO 2003 Goal as agreed.

$2,963,228(2002 MWO Goal
$3,100,000/2003 MWO Goal
$ 136,772|Diff

5%|% Inc

Grizel E. Lopez
Caribbean Refrescos, Inc.
S2grioperfila ko.com

B 787-739-8452, x 328

&5 787-402-2337 unit 994.5762

o 787-T39-4405
-— Forwarded by Grizel E. Lopez/PR/ILA/TCCC on 10/07/2002 03:24 PM —
; Rosa lvetts Munoz To: Patrice KrantUSNA/TCCCRTCCC
. . cc: Grizel E. Lopaz/PRALATCCC@TCCC
\ 10/07/2002 01:57 PM Subject: Minorit fiors goal 2003

Patrice confirming my voice, minority expenditure goal for next year is 5% increase. If the
proposed capital expenditure is approve for Cidra the expenditure could increass, but at
present we can not make any commitment

By the way, in the case of hiring somebody to manage the capital expenditure, their is any
contraci clause that we can include covering our program to the second tier suppliers?
Regards

Rosa

Rosa I. Mufloz

CPS Americas — Cldra, P.R,
B 787-739-8452, x. 352
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4 787-649-5540
2 787-739-4405

B rmunoz@la.ko.com
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Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters
Primary Covered Transactions

This certification Is required by the regulations impiementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and
Suspension, 13 CFR Part 145. The regulations were published as Part Vil of the May 26, 1988 Fedora/

Bus
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Register (pages 19180-19211). Coples of the reaulationa ara avaabie from local offices o'f the L.S. Small
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If any of you have these s concerns (please read message below), pl complete an intemal
deviation form for the corr e action team to research. | am not aware that this is an issue, but | am
also not the expert on this subject matter.

. Thanks
Bridgett
— Forwarded by_Bridgau Wise/USINAITCCC on 07/24/2002 08:15 AM —

Darryl Walace To: Brdgett Wise/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC

) cc:
07/24/2002 07:13 AM Subject: plant safaty

Bridgett,

it was brought to my attention yesterday by several people in the plant (different areas) that thera is a
targe amount of alcohol being stored on the third floor. Individuals have reported smelling strong vapors
when entering this floor and have reported that the area is in quite a mess. Last night during the
thunderstorm, members from maintenenca reported that the building shook from the thunder. Traffic
lights at Fulton Industrial and Camp Creek were hit by lighting and stopped working.

All of this raises the issue of whether we have a safe working environment or are there explosives being
stored on site that are highly flammable. | was told that maintenance put cut a memo waming employees
not to take radios to the third floor, because the spark could ignite an explosion. Also, it's my
understanding that the MSDS lists this material as being capable of travelling via its vapor to an ignition
source and returning the ignition to the body thereby causing an explosion. With all of this on my mind last
night, | was unable to sleep, often waking up every hour during the night.

Please let me know if these facts can be substantieted. If they are In fact true, | would like to request a
taptop to work from home until the situation is resolved or a transfer to a downtown office where | can feel
safe and not at risk of a plant explosion. itis imperative that | receive some concrete information from you
on this issue as soon as possible.

Sincerely,

Darryl Wallace

Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
The Coca-Cola Company
{404) 676-2390 office

(404) 515-3144 fax

?D\o,;lu’ﬁ :?[;:Ad' 3}@1‘{: ;:0‘( b‘/ ('jl\+n;l’8 '7/7—3/7»00’2’-
‘*\/"\:S undin 4
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-2-
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and subsmitting this proposal, the prospective primary participant is providing the certification set
out below.

2. The inabifity of & person to provide the certification required below wili not necessarily result in denlal of par-
ticipation in this covered transaction. The prospective participant shall aubmit an explanation of why % cannot provide
the certification set out below. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the department or
agency's determination whether 1o enter into this transaction. However, fallure of the prospective primary participant
to furnish a ceriification or an explanation shafi disquaiily such pefson from participation in this ransaction.

8. The cerification in this clause ia a material representation of fact upon which reflance was placed when the
department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is iater determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous ceritfication, in addition (o other remedies avallable to the Federal Gov-
omment, the department of agency may terminate thia transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary parlicipant shall provide immediate writien nctice to the department or agency to
whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant lsams that its certification was
amronsous when submitted or has become emroneous by reason of changed ckcumsiances.

5. The terns "covered transactions,” “'debarred,” "suspended,”’ "hohﬂ:la ** “lower ter covered transaction,”
“participant,” "‘person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarlly excluded,” as used
in this clause, have the meanings set 0w In the Definitions and Coverage soections of the rules implementing Execu-
iive Order 12548, You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for assistance
in obtaining 8 copy of thoss reguistions (13 CFR Past 145).

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, shouid the propossd coversd
transaction be entered info, & shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier coverad transaction with a person who is
debasred, suspended, declared ineligible, wmmﬁunpuﬂdp-ﬁonhmmmmbn unless
authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction.

7. The prospective primary participant further sgrees by submitting this proposal that it wil Include the clause
titled “Cartification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, inefigibliity and Voluntary Excliusion—Lower Tier Covered
Transaction,” provided by the dapertment or agency entering info this coverad transaction, without modification, in att
fower ter covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower fier covered bransactions.

8. A participant in a covered trensaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a lower ter
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, inefigible, or voluniarlly excluded from the covered transaction,
unieas i knows that the certification s erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it
determinas the eligibiitty of its principats. Each participant may, but 1s not required o, check the Nonprocurement
Liat.

9. Nathing contained in the foragoing shall be construed to require sstablishment of a system of records in
order 1o render in good falth the cerification required by this cisuse. The knowiedge and information of a participant
mewwMMMEMWWaMmhmuﬂmmdmm
dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of thess instructions, if a perticipant In a coveroed
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who s suspended, debarred, ineligi-
béa, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this trensaction, in addition to other remacdies avaliable to the Federal
Governmaent, the department or agency May terminate this transaction for cause oc defmul.
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Darry! Wallace To: Joseph J. Costolnick/US/NA/TCCC
_ cc Bridgett WisslUS/NATTCCC@TCCC, Elizabeth
04/25/2002 02:49 PM Hayes/US/INA/TCCC@TCCC

Subject: Re: Request For Payment

According to CRY, in an atiempt to reconcile the intercompany accounts, it is important that individual
areas book their own entries to intercompany. This aliows the individual responsible for reconcilliation the
ability to focus on the balances.

There are a lot of enfries that should be taking place regarding invoices/accounts receivable. On a
monthly basis, the account’s payable person should accrue any invoices thal wili not be paid during the
month. In that Elizabeth has access to and is in charge of this area, it's only fair that she book the entry
and reverse it whan she is ready to pay the invoice.

Pm not opposed to doing someone else's job, but if we are to focus on workflow and what's best for the
business; we would pattemn our responsibilities after the CR! model. It has {aken me a lot of time to track
down different pleces of the intercompany puzzle and it will only make intercompany that much harder to
reconcile if | have 1o make all the intercompany entries. An intercompany entry is just like any other
journal entry. In this case, Elizabeth would compleie a Y9 joumal entry

Below is Elizabeth’s CRI counterpart's entry to record and invoice he has decided not to pay:
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Doc. number 6608001443 Coapany cods 76869 Fiscal year 28082
Doc. date B84/85/26882 Posting date 84/05/2002 Period 04
Ref .doc. Jivd-p4

Doc.currency ush
Doc .head .text BBP accrual

e ey e m— ———— e——

L
| e2/27:2002] 22 191 COCA-COLA Rorth America 23,056.39
R |03/2712002| 22 101 COGCA-GOLA North America 33,316.27
| 03/27/20802] 22 191 COCA-COLA North America 5,323.45
B3727/28082| 22 161 COCA-COLA North 4America 2,275.18
= 83/2712002| 22 161 COCA-GCOLA North America 2,847.98
Pl |e3/27/2002| 22 191 COCA-COLA North America 74 .676.96
R i03/27/2082| 22 191 COCA-CGLA North America 11,191 .22
83/27/2002| 22 181 COCA-COLA Worth America T2.47
= 83/27:2082| 22 101 COCA-CDLA North America 52,744 .20
B} 03/27/2002| 22 101 COCA-COLA North America 6,285.20
| 03/27/2002) 22 181 COCA-COLA North America 218,966.11
[ ] 56 241101068 [6AP GRIR account 430 ,671.44-

The process involved to determine whether an invoice needs to be accrued or not it totally within
Elizabeth's role of responsibility. Booking the entry is part of that process.

Joseph J, Costolnick
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Joseph J. Costolnick To: Damyl Wallace/USMAITCCC@TCCC

"/ \/
. cc: Elizabeth Hayes/US/NATCCC@TCCC, Bridgett
N < 04/25/2002 12:30 PM Wise/US/NATTCCC@TCCC
A Subject: Re: Request For Payment

Darryl, please record this intercompany transaction so that you remain fully aware of all activity and can

more easily reconcile our intercompany accounts.
—— Forwarded by Joseph J. Costoinick/US/NATCCC on 04/25/02 12:23 PM —

Elizabeth Hayes To: Joseph J. Costolnick USNATCCC@TCCC
cc:
i 04/256002 12:06 PM Subjact: Re: Request For Payment

Joe-

| am not sure how to book this intercompany accrual. Should | contact Jose Luis? Please advise.

Thanks,
Elizabeth
—-— Forwarded by Elizabeth HayesfUS/NA/TCCC on 04/25/02 12:06 PM —
Darryl Wallace To: Elirabeth Hayes/USINATCCC@TCCC

Guzman/PRAATCCC@TCCC, Bridgett Wise/lUSNAITCCC@TCCC
Subject: Re: Request For Payment

Elizabeth,
The accrual should be handled by you. Please speak with Jose Luis should you need heip on recording

this accrual.

Thanks,
Darryl
Elizabeth Hayes
Elizabeth Hayes To: Maira Pujals/PRAATCCC@TCCC
. cc: Chrystal Lazenbermry/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC, Danryl
04/25/2002 10:31 AM Wallace/US/NAITCCC@TCCC

Subject Re: Request For Payment

Maira,

Our policy at BBP is to not pay until we can maich a goods receipt to the invoice and order for all of our
suppliers. As sooit ag | have a goods receipt to show that we have the merchandise, | will clear the
invoice for payment. Darryl will handle the actrual on our side.

Regards,

Elizabeth Hayes

Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
404-676-2790
404-515-3144 - fax

Maira Pujals
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_ Maira Pujals To: Elizabeth HayesUS/NA/TCCC@TCCC, Danyl
i . Wallaca/US/NATCCC@TCCC
NG f 04/25/02 08:26 AM cc: Chiystal Lazenberry/US/NATTCCC@TCCC
ey - cat Subject: Re: Request For Payment

Elizabeth:
We need to clarify if your payment terms is upon receipt of merchandise ,please verify with your
accounts payable department.

Darryl:

The receivable (in the inter company account) is recognize at the moment the shipment is done, since
Elizabeth will not pay it , you need 1o accrue this amount in your intercompany account in order to
minimize the differences at month end. if you need assistance Jose Guzman could expiain the procedure
for merchandise in transit at month end.

Regards
Elizabeth Hayes
Ellzabeth Hayes To: Chrystal Lazenbermy/US/INATCCC@TCCC
" cc: Damyl WallaceUSINA/TCCCERTCCC, Malra
04/24/02 05:50 PM Pujals/PR1 ATCCC@TCCC

Subject: Re: Request For Payment

Chrystal,

The following invoices can be paid:

Invoice # Sales Order Amount

90037733 39951 21,378.96
90036308 39455 2,997.76
90039454 41350 7,167.28
90038957 43458 31.,383.10

Please do not pay invoice 90039729 for sales order 43460 for $166,887.82. We have not received this
shipment yet and are not expecting it to amrive for at least a week.

Regards,

Elizabeth Hayes

Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
404-676-2790

404-515-3144 - fax

Chrystal Lazenbarry

Chrystal Lazenberry To: Elizabeth Hayas/lUSNATTCCC@TCCC
) cc:
u 04/24/02 01:12 PM Subject Request For Payment
Elizabeth

Please let me know by Thursday 12:00. DMG prepares payment on Thursday aftemoon

Thanks,
Chrystal
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—- Forwarded by Chrystal Lazenberry/US/NA/TCCC on D4/24/2002 01:19 PM —

Darryl Wallace To: Elizabeth HayedUSﬁNl’ cCCgTCcC
. cc: Chrystal Lazenbermy/USINA/TCCC@TCCC
04/24/2002 12:31 PM Subject: Request For Payment
Elizabeth,
Please review the five invoices below and let Chrystal know whether they are okay to pay.
Thanks,
Darmyl Wallace
Atlanla Beverage Base Plant
The Coca-Cola Company
(404) 676-2390 office
(404) 515-3144 fax
— Forwarded by Damyt Wallace/US/NA/TCCC on 04/24/2002 12:48 PM —
., Maira Pujais To: Chrystal Lazenberry/lUSINA/TCCC@TCCC, Damryl
+ . . Wallace/US/NATCCCGTCCC
1 04/24/2002 12:47 PM ce: Jeri Finlay/US/NATCCC@TCCC, Sheita V.

Sesco/lUSINAITCCC@TCCC, Brett Taylor/US/INAVTCCC@TCCC, Juan
L Bemioa/PRAATCCC@TCCC, Carlos
Tomassinl/PRAATCCC@TCCC, Ruthis
Holmes/USMNATCCCETCCC, Sheila
Baskervlile/US/NATCCC@TCCC, Deborah F,
EcholsUS/INATCCC@TCCC, Dana A. Hasty/USINA/ITCCCQTCCC,
Joseph J. Costolnick/JSINATCCC@TCCC

Subject: Request For Paymant

Chrystal/Darryl:
Following are invoices for shipments made to CCUSA . Please make payment to Caribbean

Refrescos, inc. on Friday April 26, 2002. Should you have any inconvenience 1o pay
on this day , please let me know.
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ThankYou

Maira

Reforence

43717
42736
44761
60004756
44298
44302
44303
43911
40667
45046
44866

43460
41350
43458
39951
39455

Amount

62,103.03
1,524,038.68
12,205.90
(435.30)
196.00
17,472.00
22,033.60
3,447.60
62,103.03
24,791.20
4,672.10

166,887.82
7,167.28
31,383.10
21,378.96

1,962,442.76

Logation

1058
1058
1058
1058
1058
1058
1058
1058
1058
1058
1058

101
101
101
101
101
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Darryl Wallace To: Elizabeth Hayes/USNATCCC
cc: Joseph J. Costolnick/lUS/NATCCC, Bridgett Wise/US/NA/TCCC

04/25/2002 05:44 PM Subject: Intercompany Invoices

“lizabeth,
The following invoices
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Heldi Burdette To: Darryl Wallace/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC, Bridgett
) Wise/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC, Josaph J.
11/29/01 02:20 PM Costohnick/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC

ce: Elizabeth W. Todd/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC, Anatoly
Khramtsov/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC
Subject: 4Q 2001 BBP Zero NBV Assets

In compliance with Corporate Audit, Property Accounting needs your assistance to identify CCUSA
fully depreciated assets that should be removed from the Fixed Asseat System {FAS) it they meet
the following criteria:

® missing

¢ obsolete and have been physically disposed of

e broken and have been physically disposed of

This review is conducted on a semi-annual basis. Property Accounting will facilitate the
identification of all assets with a zero Net Book Value {NBV) and distribute the reports to the
appropriate department managers. The department managers will be responsible for reviewing and
notifying Property Accounting of those assets that meet the criteria mentioned above, and shouid
be written-off via an approved Request For Authorization (RFA).

This review is critical tor the Company in that TCCC pays property taxes on the origina! cost of all
recorded tangible fixed assets. Thus, this process will help to reduce the amount of taxes paid, as
well as, provide a more accurate representation of the fixed assets on the Company's Balance
Sheet.

Action ftems:

1. Review the attachad listing of assets currently listed on FAS as of October 28, 2001 for your
respective area.

2, For all missing, obsolete or broken assets that have been physically disposed of, prepare an RFA
and obtain proper approvals per CCUSA's Chart of Authority.

3. Approved RFA's must be received by Property Accounting no later than Friday, December 14,
2001.

4. Property Accounting will process the asset retirements in FAS for the Decamber Manth-End
Close.

CCUSA FAS Downiload
NBV vs, Zero NBV Summary Analysis (excluding FET)

$668,660,091.7 $334,430,029. l334.242.734.0£ 24,243
£26,854,027.0 $10,051,448.04l $16,802,579.0 573
$7,392,995.2 $7,392,995.2 $ 6§71
$34,247,022.30 $17,444,443.26 $16,802,579.04 1,144

If you have questions, please contact me on extension x62217 or Beth Todd on extension x61146.

4

4Qtr 2001 Zero NBV Analysis_BB
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Citation and Notification of Penalty ¢

To: Inspection Number: 303941306
Coca Cola 1nspection Date(s): 07/22/2002- 08/13/2002
and ils successors Issuance Date: 08/23/2002

1001 Great Southwest Parkway
Alants, GA 30336

Inspection Site:
1001 Great Southwest Parkway

Atlanta, GA 30336

This Citation and Notification of Penalty (this Citation) describes violations of the Occupational Safety and Health
Act of 1970. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these violations. Yoo mmst abate the violations
referred to in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the penalties proposed, unless within 15 working days
(excluding weekends and Federal holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty you mail
a notice of contest to the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown sbove. Please refer to the
enclosed booklet (OSHA 3000) which outlines your rights and responsibilities and which should be read in
conjunction with this form. lssuance of this Ciiation does not constitute s finding that a violation of the Act has
occurred unless there is a failure 10 contest as provided for in the Act or, if contested, unless this Citation is
affirmed by the Review Commission or a court.

Posting - The law requires tha: a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a
prominent place at or near the location of the violation(s) cited herein, or , if it is pot practicable because of the
nature of the employer's operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employees. This Citation
must remain posted until the violation(s) cited herein has (have) been sbsted, or for 3 working days (excluding
weekends and Federal holidays), whichever is longer. Thbe penalty dollar amounts need not be posted and may
be marked out or covered np prior to posting.

Informal Conference - An informal conference is not required. However, if you wish to have such a
conference you may request one with the Area Director during the 15 working day contest period. During such
an informal conference you may present any evidence or views which you believe would support an adjustment
to the citation(s) and/or penalty(ies).

If you are considering a request for an informal conference to discuss any issues related to this Citation and
Notification of Penalty, you must take care to schedule it early enough 1o allow time to contest after the informal

C:3u0n and Notification of Penalty Page ) of 8 OSHA-2(Rev. 6/93)

.o-'af
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conference, should you decid® to do 50. Please i:ecp in mind that a written letter of intent to contest must be
submitted to the Area Director.within 15 working days of your receipt of this Citation. The running of this comtest
period is not interrupted by an informal conference.

If you decide to request an informal conference, please complete, remove and post the page 4 Notice to Employees
next to this Citation and Notification of Penalty as soon as the time, date, and place of the informal conference bave
been determined. Be sure to bring to the conference any and al! supporting documentation of existing conditions >~
as well as any abatement steps taken thus far. 1f conditions warrant, we can enter into an informal settlement
agreement which amicably resolves this matter without litigation or contest.

Right to Contest - You have the right to contest this Citation and Notification of Penalty. You may contest
all citation iterns or only individual items. You may also contest proposed penalties and/or abatement dates without
contesting the underlying violations. Unless you inform the Ares Director in writing that you intend to coutest

the citation{s) and/or jes) within 15 wo aft the d

the citation{s) and/or preposed pepalty(ies) within 15 working days after receipt, the citation(s) and the
proposed penslty(ies) will become a final order of the Occupetional Safety and Health Review Commission
and may not be reviewed by any cou 8

Penalty Payment - Penaltics are due within 13 working days of receipt of this noiification unless consesied.
(See the enciosed booklet and the additional information provided related to the Debt Collection Act of 1982.)
Make your check or money order payable to "DOL-OSHA®. Please indicate the Inspection Number on the
rernittance.

OSHA does not agrec 10 any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check or money order for less
than the full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these restrictions, conditions, or
endorsements do Dot exist.

Notification of Corrective Action - For violations which you do not contest, you should notify the U.S.
Department of Labor Area Office promptly by letier that you have taken appropriatc corrective action within the
iime frame set forth on this Citation. Please inform the Area Office in writing of the abatement steps you have
taken and of their dates, together with adequate supporting documentation, e.g., drawings or photographs of
corrected conditions, purchase/work orders related 10 abateinent actions, air sampling results, etc.

Employer Discrimination Unlawful - The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an employee
for filing a complaml or for exercising any rights under this Act. An employee who believes that he/she has been
discriminated against may file a complaint no later than 30 days aficr the discrimination occurred with the l,l S.
Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above.

Employer Rights and Responsibilities - The enclosed booklet (OSHA 3000) outlines additional employer
rights and responsibilities and shoyld be read in conjunction with this notification.

Citation and Notificatioo of Pemmlty Pagc2of B OSHAMev. 693)



Notice to Employees - » gives an employee or his/ber representa  he opportunity to object to any
abatement date set for a violation if be/she belicves the date 1o be nnreasonable. The coatest must be mailed to
the U.S. Rights and Responsibilities - The enclosed booklet (OSHA 3000) outlines additional employer rights and
responsibilities and should be read I conjunction with this notification.

Case 1:03-cv-02 339-RWS Document1 Filed 09/12/Oi’ Page 87 of 170
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Notice to Employees - The law gives an employee or his/her representative the opportunity to object to any
abatement date set for a violation if be/she believes the date 10 be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed to

the U.S. Deparument of Labor Arca Office at the address shown above and postmarked within 15 working days =
(excluding weekends and Federal holidays) of the receipt by the employer of this Citation and Notification of k_

Penalty.

You should be sware that OSHA publisbes information on its inspection and ciiation activity on the Internet
under the provisions of the Electronic Freedom of Information Act. The informatios related to your
inspection will be available 30 calendar days afier the Citation Issuance Date. You are encouraged to review
the information concerning your establishment at www.osha.gov. If you have any dispute with the accuracy
of the information displayed, please contact this office.

Ciwation and Notificavon of Penaley Page 3 ef 8 DOJHA-2(Rev. 6/93)
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U.S. Department of Lab®. (
Occupational Safety and Health Admisistration

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE

An informal conference has been scheduled with OSHA to discuss the citation(s) issued on
08/23/2002. The conference will be held at the OSHA office located at 2400 Herodian Way,

Suite 250, Smyma, GA, 30080 on at . Employees and/or

representatives of employees have a right 10 attend an informal conference.

Ciation and Natification of Pemalty Paged of 8 OSHA-2{Rev. 6/93)
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 303941306
Occupationat Safety and Health' Administration Inspection Dates:07/22/2002 -08/13/2002
Issuance Date: 08/2372002

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Coca Cola
Inspection Site: 1001 Great Southwest Parkway, Atlanta, GA 30336

The alleged violations below have been grouped becanse they involve similar or related hazards that may increase
the potential for injury resulting from an accident.

Citation 1 Item 13 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.106(b}4XivXd): Openings for manual gaging, if independent of the £ill pipe, shall be provided with
a vapor tight cap or cover:

(2) 3rd Floor Liquid Mixing Area - Tanks 10, 11, 27, T12 and T13 storing over 40,000 pounds of ethy)
alcobol. Covers not vapor tight 10 prevent vapor release. Hazard of overexposure from contact or
inhalation.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION AND CERTIFICATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection
Proposed Penalty: $ 3150.00

Citation 1 ltem b Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.106(b}4)ii)}(h): Tanks inside buildings shall be equipped with a device, or otber means shall be
provided, to prevent overflow into the building:

(2) 3rd Floor Liquid Mixing Deparument - Tanks T]2 and T13 were nol provided with overfiow prevention
equipment to prevent the overfilling of over 40,000 pounds ethy! alcohol. Hazard of inhalation or contact.

ABATEN\[ENT DOCUMENTATION AND CERTIFICATION REQUIRED

Date By Which VigJation Must be Abated: 10/10/2002

Scz pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on cmployer and emplovee rights and responsibilities.

Ciavion and Noification of Penalty Page50f 8 OSHA-2 (Rev. 9/93)
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Issuance Date:; 08/23/2002

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Coca Cola
Inspection Site: 1001 Great Southwest Parkway, Atlanta, GA 30336

Citation 1 Jtem 2 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.11%eX7): The employer did not retain process hazards analysis, updates, or revalidation for each
covered process, as well as the documented resofution of recommendations described in 29 CFR 1910.11%(eX5)
for the life of the process:

(a) Liquid mixing area - Inadequate process hazard analysis conducied prior 10 a change of process for
storage of over 40,000 pounds of ethyl alcobol. Hazard of fire or explosion.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION AND CERTIFICATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 09/19/2002
Proposed Penalty: $ 4500.00

The alleged violations below have been grouped tecause they involve similar or relaied hazards that may ipcrease
the potential for injury resulting from an accident.

Citation 1 Item_3a Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.119(X1): The employer did pot establish and implement wrinien procedures to manage changes to
process chemicals, technology, equipment, and procedures; and, changes 10 facilities that affect a covered process:

(a) Liquid mixing area - Inadequate writien program on the management of change 10 the process and
procedures used to siore over 40,000 pounds of ethyl alcoho). Hazard of fire of explosion.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION AND CERTIFICATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 09/19/2002
Proposed Penalty: $ 3150.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Mo cation of Penalty for information on employer anic employee rights and responsibilities.

Citation and Notification of Penalty Page 6 of 8 OSHA-2 (Rev. 9/93)
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U.S. Department of Lalk : Inspection Num _J3941306
Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Dates:07/22/2002 - 08/13/2002
\ Issnance Date: 0872372002

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name; Coca Cola
Inspection Site: 1001 Great Southwest Parkway, Atlanta, GA 30336

Citation 1 Item 3b Type of Violation: Serious
29 CFR 1910.119(1X3): Employees involved in operating a process and maintenance and contract employees

whose job tasks will be affected by a change in the process were not informed of, and trained in, the change prior
to start-up of the process or affected part of the process:

(a) 3rd Floor Liquid Mixing Area - Inadequate employee training for employees affected by the changed
process for unloading and storing over 40,000 pounds of ethyl alcohol. Hazard of fire or explosion.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION AND CERTIFICATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 09/19/2002

See pazes 1 through 4 of this Citsuon and Notificauon of Pemalty for information on arcploxer and employee rights and responsibilities.

Citation and Notificanon of Penalty Page 7 of 8 OSHA-2 (Rev. 9/93)
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U.S. Department of Libor Inspection Number: 303941306
Occupational Safety and Health Administration InspectionDates: 07/2272002 - 08/13/2002
1ssoance Date: 08/23/2002

Citation and_Notification of Penalty

Company Name: Coca Cola
Inspection Site: 1001 Great Southwest Parkway, Atlants, GA 30336

Citation 2 Item ] Type of Violaion: Other

29 CFR 1910.1200{fX5X3): The employer did not ensure that each container of hazardous chemicals in the
workplace was labeled, 1agged or marked with the identity of the hazardous chemical(s) contained therein:

(a) 2nd and 3rd Floor Liquid Mixing Areas - Tanks 10, 11, 27, T12 and T13 storing over 40,000 pounds
of cthyl alcohol were not 1abeled to identify the hazardous chemical. Hazard of fire or explosion.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION AND CERTIFICATION REQUIRED

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection
Proposed Penalty: $ 0.00

Ot Q. W

PATRICIA A. MORRIS
Acting Area Director

TO SET UP AN INFORMAL PLEASE CALL HAROLD GILL
OF MY STAFF AT (770) 984-9026.

See pages 1 through 4 of this Chation and Notification of Penahty for information on employer and employee sights and responsibilities.

Ciwtion and Notification of Penalty Page 80f 8 QOSHA-2 (Rev. $/93)
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U.S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health’ Administration
2400 Herodian Way

Suite 250

Smyma, GA 30080

Phope: (770)984-8700 FAX: (770)984-8855

INVOICE/
DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Company Namez Coca Cola
Inspection Site: 1001 Great Southwest Parkway, Atlanta, GA 30336
Issuance Date: 08/23/2002

Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number 303941306

Citation 1, Serions = § 10800.00
Citation 2, Other = § 0.08
TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES = § 10800.08

To avoid addidonal charges, please remit paymeat promptly to this Area Office for the total amoum of the
unconiested penalties sunonarized above. Make your check or mooey order payable to:
*"DOL-OSHA". Please indicate OSHA’s Inspection Number (indicated sbove) on the remitiance.

OSHA does not agree (o any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check or money order for less
than full smount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these restrictions, conditions, or endorsements
do Dot exist.

Pursuant 10 the Debt Collection Act of 1982 (Public Law 97-365) and repulations of the UU.S. Deparunent of Labor
(29 CFR Part 20), the Occupational Safety and Health Administration is required to assess interest, delinquent
charges, and administrative costs for the collection of delinquent penalty debts for violations of the Occupational
Safety and Health Act.

Interest. Interest charges will be assessed at an annual rate determined by the Secretary of the Treasury on all
penalty debt amounts pot paid within one month (30 calendar days) of the date on which the debt amount becomes
due and payable (penalty due date). The current interest rate is 6%. Interest will accrue from the date on which
the penalty amounts (as proposed or adjusted) becomne a final order of the Occupational Safety and Health Review
Conunission (that is, 15 working days from your reccipt of the Ciiation and Notification of Penalty), unless you
file a notice of contest. Interest charges will be waived if the full amount owed is paid within 30 calendar days
of the final order.

Page 1 of 2
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[

Delinguent Charges. A debt is considered delinquent if it has not been paid withis one month (30 calendar days)
of the penalty due date or if a satisfactory paymeat arrangement has ot been made. If the debt remains delinquent
for more than 90 calendar days, a delinquent charge of six percent (6 %) per anoum will be assessed accruing from
the date that the debt became delinquent.

Administrative Costs. Agencies of the Department of Labor are required to assess additional charges for the
recovery of delinquent debts. These additional charges are administrative costs incurred by the Agency in its
ancmpt to collect an unpaid debt. Administrative costs will be assessed for demand letiers sent in an attempt to
collect the unpaid debt.

e O B 3 a3 Jos

PATRICIA A. MORRIS Date
Acting Area Director

NOTIC
The penalties assessed for this inspection already reflect reductions granied to the employer.
The original penalty was: $19,000.00

The reduced penalty is: $10,800.00

Page 2 0f 2
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DZ . Applicstion for ApProval3245-0331
T@. 8(a) Business Development (8(a) BD) and ,_Ef.":',”" Oste: 7131172004
’-’:%m Ve Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) Certification To be completed by SBA
syeb Date Received
Iﬂ_@'_'ﬂl!!ﬂ&d.ﬂﬁm’_]_i% E. Teacking¥:
| THIS APPLICATION ISFOR [/ 8s)* | SDBony  CERTIFICATION I

*Flrms that %) cemﬁed are cerfified as SDBs (

NOTICE: A firm and the socially and economically dtnd'mtqd ludmduak of the firm can only participate as disodvantaged in the B(a) program one
time.
YOUR SIGNATURE ON THIS APPLICATION for the 8(a) program INDICATES THAT YOU FULLY UNDERSTAND THIS
LIMITATION AND THAT YOU RAVE NOT PREVIOUSLY USED YOUR ELIGIBILITY. Any sensitive information colfected in this application
ir necessary 1o mmrw compiy with statutory and regulstory requirements,

SECTION I:
Business Profile

Name of Fimn: W{Q WC\C‘&“’ \Dd(\fmqr;’_g& —:‘C‘;LO %{85 quq

cry: (\@2>Nan County: Qowe+0— smr: A\ m*""w(z‘f

Primary NAICS Code: \’L] ' PRONe® Identification No: n ] 2/
(North American Industry Classification System) Mandstor} for 8(a) Certification
This firm was established on: qg/ 1 (We) have ouned this firm since: '%/]/[Q'?g
Dunn Number: H’IDM-)
- D"::J Ao aF ‘Huo‘lfM.
This firm is (check all applicable):  {7] A For-Profit Business [ A Proprictorship A Corporation
(] APaership (] A Limited Liability Compeny A Broker

[ Located in a HUBZone {7} DOT-Certified Disadvantaged Busincss Entesprise (DBE)

mlvalgcnumburnfm:ployﬂﬂnﬁrm(mthmnfﬂlm)hddumglhepdIzmonﬂuwu ” 2 . The average annual
rcvmmfnrhm(mdnsﬁﬁlE)d wring the fast three years was § 3:590 wmwccmgenf&eﬁmsmmmwnedm

the primary NAICS Code is %

Al applicaits nuist aiiack a detalied explanation, inclading supporting documentation, noting the section ond question number for
each "Yu"ruponzmﬁcfmm

1. Is the firin dedinguent io filing sny spplicable businces (s retums? [ ]Yes [ No
2. Does the firm have any past duc taxes or any other delinquent Federal, state or Jocal financial

obligations outstanding or liens filed against it? [ ]Yes [X]No
3. Are thare any lawsuits pending against the firm? [ 1Yes [X]No
4, Does the firm have any existing management, joint veature, indemnity, consulting, distributorship,
licensing or feanchisc agreements? { ]Yes [X]No
5. Have there been any changes in ownership in the past two yesss? t 1Yes PQNo
6. Docs the firm have an ownership interest in any other firm? [ 1 Yes [X]WNo
7. Docs any other business concern have an ownership intarest in the firm? f } Yes [X] No
8. Does the firm buy from, sell or use the services of facilities of any other firm in which a principal of
! the applicant firm has a financial or any other interest? [ 1Yes [DX1No
' 9 Has the firm or any principal of the firm previously applied for 8(a) or SDB certification? [ 1Yes [>dNo
r [ 1Yes JN]No

10. Has the firm or any principal of the firm received an SBA loan?

i

witr V. 0 ooy ABD  somt msuoeling 8 mindspriAY o I F3 3K

L —— — . — —, el * F o = e S — - — —

CN A Neae INIAFTIALY Dasas |1
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i SECTION 1
Business Profile (continued)
Only 8(a) Applicants must answer the Jollowing questions and attsch & detailed explanation, Inciuding supporting
documentation, noting the section and question number for eack "Yes™ response:
11. Has the firm ever been certified as an 8(a) BD Program participani of own any assets of a previously certified
&a) BD Program participant? [ ]Yes PY]No
12. Does the firm have a ncgalive net worth or working capital position? { 1 Yes P} No
13. ‘Has the firm eamed revenues in its primary NAICS code for less than the immediate past two years? [ 1Yes [X]No
—
SECTION DI
Business Mansagement and Administration
Please provide the following information on cll owners, directors, mansgement members, and officers
(add additionsl pages if necessary):
Narne Position Percentage of | Hours Devated 1o | Access to fims |Socially and Economiocally
in Firm Ovwnership the Management | Bank Account Disadvantaged
Interest in Firm of firm YM) om
T Ty SOREECY - ,
}'<(:’( V) ﬂle S Pw £ &6’\4" b l o | 4,.,'_1'1'_,@{:'{1” Y N

L]

-:\;"’ J —Flmﬁ\\? l)lo

z B L9 lanhoeik- \\/ I\

All applicants wuust stiach a detailed explanation, including supporting documentation, noting the section and quextion number
and any supporting docusments for eack "¥es”™ response to the following questions:

14. Doesany non-disadvantaged individual or entity furnish a required license of professional certification? { 1 Yes }'A No
15. Does any non-disadvantaged employee, owner, director, officer or management member receive
compensation from the firm in any form, including dividends, that exceeds the compensation of the highest .
ranking officer of the firm? [ ] Yes [\\/f No
16. Does any individual or entity other than the individual(s) claiming disadvantage provide financial or :
) bonding support, office space, or cquipment o the Grm? { ] Yes [_\(j No
17. s sny owner, director, officer or management member a former employee or a principal of & former
employer of any individuai(s) claiming disadvantage? [ ] Y D No
15. Does any owne, director, officer of management member have an ownership interest in any other firm? { ] Yes [}(f No
19. Is any owner, director, officer or management member cumently a Federal employee or haye a bouschold
mnbawhoisumwﬂyaFedanlmployee? [ 1 Yes [}\,INo
20. Docs any owner, director, officer or management member have any delinquent Federal obligations, past V
due taxes or liens against him/her or hisher spouse? [ } Yes "} Ne

BA Form 1010{7/01) Paee. 2
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]_ SECTION I
Personal Information

Please provide the following information en all individual applicants whe claim socisl and economlc disadvantage
(sdd additional peges if necessary): o
e
Name of Individual Designated Group US. Citizenship  Place of Birth /36// Veteran
Membership or Basis of YN — MfF YN
Disadvartage * //
L

"

i S / _ _ i

Each individual claiming disadvantage must submit & narrative siatement describing his/her economic dissdvantage.

Applicants who are not members of a designaied group must also submit 2 narmstive staternent detsiling how befshe

personally experienced social disadvantage im American socicty and sny supporting evidence.

Note: Appiicants sucst sttoch a detailed explanstion, incliuding supporting documentation, noting the section and gpuestion number
and any pipporting documents for each "yes” response io the following grestions in this section.

With respect to sach individual claiming disedvaniage:

21. Issny individual delinquent in filing hisher personal Federal or local tax retums? [ ] Yes [§<] No
22 Has any individual transferred any personal assets during the last two yoars to any immediste
family member for lexs than fair merket value? [ ] Yes [XNO

Oniy with respect to each B(n) individval cloiming divadvantape (not SDB applicant):

23. Has any individual previously used his/her cligibility to qualify a firm for 8(a) BD Program
participation?

24. Doces any individual own individually, or in aggregate with the applicant finn and/or immediate
family members, more than a 20% ownership intcrest in a current 8(a) BD Program participant? I ] Yes [5{] No

25. Does any individual's immediate family member own individaally, or in aggregate with other
iramediate family meanbers and/or the applicant firm, more than a 20% ownership interest in a
current §(a} BD Program participant?

26. Does the applicant finn have more than a 20% ownership interest in a current 8(a) BD Program

participsnt?

[ ]Yes [£]No

[ 1Yes PGNo

] Yes ¢<]No

—

27. Has any individual ever been arresied? (If Yes, submit a Fingerprint Card.) { ] Yes [)(NO
Only with respect to 8(s) applicardts:
28. Does any non-dissdvantaged owner of the applicant firm own individually, oc in the aggregate with

immediate family members, more than 10% of a current 8(a) BD Progrmm participant? [ } Yes [{)(Nu
29. Does any non-dissdvantaged firm in the same or similar line of business own more than a 10%

interest in the applicant firm? [ ] Yes [¥}No

*  List of Designated Groups: (1)Black Americans, (2)Hispanic Americans, (3)Native Americans, (#)Asian Pacific Americans, and
{5)Subcontinent Asian Americans
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Under Title 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and Title 15 US.C. § 645, any person who misrepresents a firm's status as an 8(s)
Program participant or SDB concern, or makes any other false statement in order to influence the certification
process in any way, or to obtain a contract awarded under the preference programs established pursuant to section
B(a), 8(d), 9 or 15 of the Small Business Act, or any other provision of Federal Law that reference Section §(d) for a
definition of program eligibility shall be: (1) Subject to fines and imprisonment of up to 5 years, or both, 2 stated in
Title 18 U.S.C. § 1001; subject to fines of up to $500,000 and imprisonment of up to 10 years, or both, as stated in
Title 15 U.S.C. § 645; (2) Subject to civil and administrative remedies, including suspension and debarment; and 3
Ineligiblc for participation in programs conducted under the suthority of the Small Business Aci.

I hereby certify that the information provided in this application and supporting documents relating to the applicant,
to mae personally, and to my dis? antsged status is true and accurste.

Sdiasd g e
By: _ ‘t:r_/?,"\r---'_L/‘- r:j_]:]“» h’@—/

President/CEO/Proprictor/Management Member/Partner

1 hereby certify that the information provided in this application and supporting documents relating to my
disadvantaged status and me is true and accurate.

Signature Date
Signature Date
Signsture Datz
Signsture Daic
Signature Date

PLEASE NOTE: The estimated burden for completing this form is 2.5 hours per response. You are not required to respond to any
collection of information vnless it displays a curreiitly valid OMB approval number. Comments on the burden should be sent to U.S. Small
Busincss Administration, Chicf, AIB, 409 3rd St, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20416 and Desk Officer for the Small Business Administration,
Office of Management and Budget, New Executive Office Building, Room 10202, Washingten, D.C. 20503. OMB Approval (3245- ).

PLEASE DO NOT SEND FORMS TO OMB.
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10.

OMB Approval No. 3245-0101
Expiration Date: 9-30-99

SBA FORM 355
APPLICATION FOR SMALL BUSINESS SIZE DETERMINATION

Carelully read these instructions and the SBA Size Regulations before completing this form.
Applications not fully compieted will nat be accepted.

General Instructions

This appfication should be used by anyone seeking a size determination for the purpose of receiving assistance
available to small businesses under any program administered by this Agency, excapt for the SBIC program which
utlizes SBA Form 480. A small business is a concem which is independently owned and operated, not dominant in
its fiok! of operation, and does not exceed the size standard applicable to the procurement or program for which the

business Is applying.

SBA is authorized to make size determinations pursuant to the Smalt Business Act and regutations thereunder for
the purpose of deciding small business protests and to defermine eligibility for program assistance. SBA's size
reguiations are found generally at Title 13, Code of Federal Regutations, Part 121. SBA may, al its discretion,
request additional relevanl information rot specificaity identified on this form.

The originsl and one copy of SBA Form 355, with additional sheels attached as needed, should be retumed to the
SBA Area Government Conbracting or Disaster Office closest o the applicant’s principal place of business. The
person signing this form must be authorized by the appiicant to do so. Non-employee representatives of the
applicant, such as altorneys of accountants, must provide a leller authorizing them to represent the firn for this
purpose. All information requested must be supplied. Failure 1o do 30 will cause a delay in making the size or

siatus determinstion.

All possible zHiliates of the applicant, whether acknowledged of not, and whether foreign or domestic, must be
included in completing this form. SBA criteria for defining affifiates should be carefully reviewed, and can be found
at Part 121.103 of tha Regulstions. Completion of Parts |V and V of this form does not constititte an admission that

the concemed entiies are affiliated.

Where the applicable size standard involves “number of employees.” a concem’s average employment for the 12
months preceding the application or offer is examined, including all employees of both domestic and forelgn
affiliates, and including persons employed on a full-time, part-time, temporary or other basis. See Part 121.108 of
the Regqulations. For purposes of Economic Injury Disaster Loans, the 12 months preceding the disaster are
examined.

Where the applicable size slandard involves ™ anhual receipts.” 2 toncen’s annual receipls meen total income (or
gross income in the case of a sole proprietorship) plus the cost of goods sold, as reported to the Internal Revenue
Service on its Federal Income Tax Retum. See Part 121.104 of the Regulations.

In some cases, SBA must determine the primary business activity of a concern as part of its size determination
process. in making that determination, consideration is given to various criteria, such as distibution among a fum's

activities of receipis, employment, and costs of doing business.

For purposes of this form, consider principal stockholders as those persons of concemns which awn 10 or more
percent of the voling stock, in cases where ho indivicual or concern owns at least 10 percent of the voting stock.

the five largest stockhoiders and their percentages of stock must be listed.

Where certaln financia assistance programs are Involved, applicants must include thve courty in which they are
located, end state whether the funds 1o be received will be utlized in a Labor Surplus Area. Labor Surphus Areas
are defined in the Depariment of Labor publication "Area Trends.” See Part 121.301(e} of the Regulations.

Certaln industries require special additional information. lelﬂteSezeS!andardsTableandltsiooMesatPan
121.201 of the Reguiations. These special industries are:

Depository Institulions (SICs 8021, 6022, 6029, 6035 or 6036) Tires and Inner Tubes (SIC 3011)
Dredging and Surface Cleanup Activities (SIC 1628) Real Estate Agents and Managers (SIC
Conference Management Services (SIC 8741, parl). 6531)

Petroleum Refining (SIC 2911) Trave! Agencies (SIC 4724)
Food Canning and Preserving (SIC 2033)

SBA Form 355 (8-86) Previous Edition is Obsolete Advertising (SICs 7311-19)

Electric Services (SIC 4911)

Thin form was alectonicsl woduced by Elle Federsl Forms. Ine. —
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li: SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION ,
APPLICATION FOR SMALL BUSINESS SIZE DETERMINATION l

!

i

Part I. Information relating to Applicant Only:

by ?s'u:t.u:ny”g:: X Zo Gode) b "6 FZ}'["@' ' °=." megg informmation: |
*‘/‘vev.l"\ W‘DM” 6/ “FFO3D~s 453 —l’hgi{,

ffﬂl/é’ éfa A qt:% = Telephone Na.: ?ﬁb’?éw Dpﬁk_{ 5
2zl '

YT Uy -
a ng {4 ﬁ& courty. 1d.  Sixe/Staius Deierminalion requested for purpose of receiving:
if determination is for & francial sssistance progeam Business Loan Saction &{a) Eepibility

other than surety botd guaranies, will assistance funds be 5 . .
used in & labor sUrplus Bree? Emhp.lyDuasbrLuan— Section B{a} Contrect )
Yeos No Cert. of Competency Sunaty
Govt Prime Contract Stats X
Gov't Subconiract ) Oth .
——
1e. Daie applicand’s business was established of incorporsted: &’- "—q% .
Note: N applicant is a corporation, ® copy of Its latest annual report ko by-lwws, snd aiticdes of Incorporation must be sdachaed to this

application. If appBcan! ls a parinership, a copy of the Partnarship Agreement must be attached.

1t Overall primary business sciivity (inciuding Standand 19. Has spplicant previously been of a formal SBA sizs determination?
Industriat ClaasHication (SIC) Code): _ Yes No. i yes, by which SBA office?
When?

Applicant’s major products or services: |

i 2.
%\ svnSeniis ) Clasaation (S1C) Coce S eawoty compiend s paar
R . e O R e Doltar valug
T VSO
@ _ ! ) .
@ V\'\*PC/M«AM-Q, -%QW/‘M
@)
B s e o e e |
. P " 1
‘< e L b f oo oo, £l ko o oppcnt (el Auvmores
| 55
200 '
NN\, Ay 70027 - g
\ {—t~. ey C{ &
b Od"j} r'\kfhﬂ/ﬁiﬂ/ajj 53 torltbcsd a
- ) Pt Spaiar nt J
5. Names & sdcresses of s Officers of appéicant '-.-%L,*i)}..?__ Offica(s) heid n spplicant.

g K"@'v‘-‘ Wosse~ Fresident” —-—S‘cm&?_.g | T |
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Namea & adcresses of sk Officers of applicant (Continusd) Office{s) held in applicant

B, Names & addresses of all Directors of appicant (if 8 corporation),

Ta Are any stock options outstanding? Y No. |f yes, identify of concarn holding option{s) on attached sheet and furnish
a topy of agreement{s). -

7h ts the stock haid by o lander or Othes party a3 pledged cofrieral? Yes No. ¥ yes, stiach 8 copy of the agreament.

7c Is any stock voted under a proxty sgreement, & rust or voling nnt? Yes Ho. |f yes, attach a copy of the agreement or trusi,
together with sy Sxplansiory malecal.

.~
8. Has applicart agreed 10 combing with or merge with shother concem in the ture by sale of slotk of assets? Yeos \og No, ifyes,

fumish detalls snd coples of applicable dociamants.
in questons 4, 5 or 6 above an owner, paitner, direclor, officers, employas or principal stockholder in aay other

Ba. I3 applicant or any of the
concemy{s)? Yas Na. Hyes, complate section 95 beitey.
#b. Names of individuals Mdmmm Position held % of voling slock

(Streel, City, Stale & Zip Code) of of busineas cwned
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Part 1l

Information relating to employee-based size standards.

10,

Apphicants number of empioyees. (See instructions for definkion of term “numbe of empioyees.”) o \m\m’

Part lll. Information refating to revenue-based size standards. 128 \"f v Wl"\..f; SQQ\ -’Eﬂ-l e (C’-b‘”'

1.

What is the applicant's fiscal year ending date? +C MJU{LQ rgise

12

Total sales or receipis of applicant for each of Ity most recently completad three fiscal ysars as of the date of application or offer. Far the purposa of
Ecbnornlc'lnjuyohashrLﬂns.Mmmmummwnmhhdmwmm\u

19 5
198 $
19 s
Total $
Part IV. Information relating to alleged, ackriowledged, or possible affillates of applicant, including
those firms listad under Part I, item %b.
13 Afilaws Of appicant (dormestic and forsign)
NOTE: For each concem which s a corporation, 8 copy of the latest annual report to the stockholders, K available, and a copy of its articles of
Incorparaion and by-laws rasst be altached. For esch affiiale which Is a parinevship, stiach a copy of its partnership agresment.
13- Names & aodessss % of voting s1ock or ownership % of voling 310tk or ownership Major products of servicas of
(Street, City, State & Zip Code) of concem heid by applcent of applicant heid by concem concem (inciude SIC code)
13b, Names & addresses of owners, partners, officers, direciors, and principat Position Held % of voting stock or
stockholders of esch concem listed 13a. (Street, City, State, & Zip Code) ownership of concem
1_3—& Number of employess of each concamn lsted in 138, (Attach separute shoel i needed.)
1.
concem # of smployees
2
CONCam # ol employees
. .
concem ¥ of empioyess
13d. Total eales or recelpts of each concem ke sach of fis most recantly completed Bvee fiscal years a1 of tha date of appiication or offer, Fotlhopu'pou

of Economic Injury Disaster Loans, show the sales for the thiee fiscal years completsd priar 1o the disaster.

1, 2, 3,
COoncem CONCeIm . CONCEm
19 19 s 19 s
19 19 ¢ 19 s
19 s 197 g 19 s
Total § Tofal $ Tolal §
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(

14a. Are sny of the persons listed In question 13b above aleo owners, partners, direclors, officers or principal stockhokders in any other company?

Yas Na i angwer s yes, complate secion 140 below,
14b. Name of Peraon Hmledmmulsm Position Held % of voling stock ar
{Street, City, State & Zip Code) ownership of company held

Part V. Information relating to applicant and alleged, acknowledged or possible affillates.
Note: Complete questions 15 through 22 in a¥l cases whers you are contesting an alleged 2Mliation. K you are not contesfing an allegad
affiiation, complede questions 15 through 22 only ¥ requested by SBA. For abve determinations pertsining to procursmert programa,
questions 23-29 must also be completed. Attach » separsts explanstion for sny question answered “yes "

15. Have any owners, officars, dimcton, key employees o of applicant ever besn smployed by or performed similar work for sny of the alleged,
acmowiedged or postible afiiates? Yes | No

16, Al the ime of bid opening or appiiction for assistance of at b have any sefvices been perfonmed by sppiicant for any of the alleged,
acknowiedged ot possible sffiEsies, or vice verss? Yoy No

17. Mhmdulﬂdmﬁguwhmdﬂmea“Mawﬂwdh-m
acknowiedged or possibie affiiales7 (e.g. elephone lines, office space, vehicles, receptionis], #ic.)

18 In preparing the subject bid or apphication lor assisiancs, was any assisiance provided by on alleged, ible affifiate io the applicant
of by the spplicant i an slleget, acknowisdged of poxsible fflwle? _ Yes . Mo

‘I—”-- Hlve-n:mbeen tham sny cument fnancial obligations betwaen applicant and an alleged, acknowiadged or posyible affliate?

Yas Mo

20. mmwmm;hmmwmmWbmmnmuumdwnmmwm
guaranbeas, who are 1ol ouners, officers, drecions, empioyess, pariners. or principal stockholders of spplicant? Yes [’Em

21. Does any tamily mambes of an owner, parines, officer, dicector, or A deM'mth“dmm
acknowdedged or possibie sfilistes? Y No

22, MSBAMMNWDNMWMJMM.MNMMN bhhﬂdm
delarmined any of the alleged. acknowledgad or possibla affilistes 10 be affilated with each other? g Wyes,
sitach & copy of he determination(s) ¥ avaliable, or descrive the detorminaton(s) made by SBA.

23 WA anry of it alieged, acknowiedged or possibie of advy of thelr principaly, provide an indermnily of guaranly 10 8 surely 1o faciltale
& contrect award to apphcant? 'ra . Has such sn indemnity or guacanty been provided within the pas! two Yesrs?
_ Y= ﬁ No
u. Have any of the slieged, atinowiedged or pozsibie sfiiliaiss sysisted in aranging for any of the neaded for parformancs of this contract
or sy conkact swerded 1o spplicant within the past two yean? Yea No
25. Have there been g any actuel or praposed subooniracts between applicant a1 eny of the alleged, acknowiedged or poasible affiiates?
Yes No
26 Were thore any 2340 spacific ferms or conditions relpting to the subject which took place between applicant and any of the alleged,
asCkrowiadged of sffiintes prior W bid opening? Yes No .
n. MMydhmquMWMMmzspumdﬁlm
28, Iw“hbelumudehdmluawmmmm Mmmdh“tpﬂ acinowiedged or
possibie gifiates of their principaly?
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SMALL BUSINESS ACT PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS:

Section 16(a) of the Small Business Act, as amended, (the “Act”) (15 USC 645 (a)), makes it a
criminal offense punishable by fine of not more than $5,000 or imprisonment for not more than two (2}
years, or both, to make a willfully false statement or misrepresentation to the Small Business .
Administration (SBA) for the purpose of influencing in any way the action of the SBA for the purpose of :
obtaining a loan or extension thereof by renewal, deferment of action, or otherwise, or the acceptance,
release, or substitution of security thereof, or for the purpose of obtaining money, property, or anything
of value.

Section 16(d) of the Act, (15 USC 645(d)), makes it a criminal offense to misrepresent in writing the |
status of any concem as a "small business concern” in order to obtain for oneself or another any prime
contract 1o be awarded pursuant to section 9 or 15 of the Act, or any subcontract to be awarded
pursuant to section 8(a) of the Act, or any subcontract included as part or all of a goal contained in a
subcontracting pfan required pursuant to section 8(d) for the Ac, or any prime or subcontract to be
awarded as a result or in furtherance of any other provisions of Federal law that specifically references
section 8(d) of the Act a definition of program eligibility (such as the Small Disadvantaged Business
contracting program). Violations of section 16(d) are punishable by a fine of not more than $500,000
or by imprisonment for not more than ten years or both, and can result in certain adrmmstratwe
remedies, including suspension and debarment.

CERTIFICATION:

-1 hereby certify that ali information contained above and in exhibits and attachments hereto is true and
complete to the best knowledge and belief of the applicant and is submitted for the purpose of
inducing the Small Business Administration to make a determination as to the size of the applicant, in
order that the applicant may receive assistance as a small business under any of the faws
administered by the Smalt Business Administration.

< A
(Individual, parthership, trade hame of co

/em Woﬁf

:f (LHO{*
Date %‘Oylm_ £ VULM’S, 9_5—;%)9_

PLEASE NOTE: The estimated burden hours for the completion of this form is 4 hours per response.
You will not be required to respond to this information collection if a valid OMB approval number is not
displayed. If you have any questions-or comments conceming this estimate or any other aspect of this
information collection, please contact the U.S. Small Business Administration, Chief, Administrative
Information Branch, 409 3rd St., S.W., Washington, D.C. 20416 and/or Office of Management and
Budget, Clearance Officer, Paperwork Reduciion Project (3245-0101), Washington, D.C. 20503.
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OMB APPROVAL NO XM5-01
Explration Dete-/30/200

United States of America
SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
STATEMENT OF PERSONAL HISTORY

3
L]
L

h,"n_,_,:o

Pleass Read Carefully - Print or Type

Each member of the smat business or the development compeny requesting sssistanc
must submit this form in TRIPUIGATE for filing with the SBA sppiicalion. This form mus
be filed out and submitied by:

1. By the propristor, ¥ & scla proprivtonship.
2.- By each parinar, If & punecship,

3. By each officer, director, and addmonally by each: holder of 20% of mwve of the
cwnership stock, if 8 coporaion, Bmited Jablity company, or a developinent compary.

mmmuwﬁmﬁmmxmw Emte, lﬂﬂZlPCﬂ-)

N Ty L] B\, e

A DRV Ares O

At Appied o (e sppRcabie) e No. {1 inown)

("a)ia 5"%5&2 Eﬁ% *g’\ .}H;

only, inclicats inftial)) mdmmmmmmmmw. Lise
sepurate sheet ¥ necassary.

Al

Frst

. 4 ¢
P

More

Neme and Address of paricipating lender or suraly co. (when applicable and known)

2 Dete of ERth (Monih, day, and yaar)

3. Piace of Birky, {City & 5isie or Forsign Coury)

T Give e percantags of ownatship of $tock owned of

L7 i PP i

US Glin? [JVEE  [J#0

K no, give allen registration number:

o BRuEA - 1645

To. (TN }\BJ
1 Pt““@' fAnc-
2’% it Qh’%b@)/%

Home Tetephone Mo, (inchuds AKCY: ‘}ej}«D m /3,5{
7D°5%

e ‘Ai?iiéz;ﬁ

l,cwﬂr‘emem e ap '.SDJ&

T IS IMPORTANT THAT THE NEXT THREE QUESTIONS BE ANSWERED COMPLETELY,

AN ARREST OR CONVICTION RECORD WILL NOT

JECESSARILY DISQUALIFY YOU; HOWEVER, AN UNTRUTHFUL ANSWER WILL CAUSE YOUR APPLICATION TO BE DENIED

F YOU ANSWER "YES" YO 8, 7, OR 8, FURNISH DETAILS ON A BEPARATE BHEET.

INCLUDE DATES, LOCATION, FINES, SENTENCES,

MHETHER MISDEMEANOR OR FELONY, DATES OF PAROLE/PROBATION, UNPAID FINES OR PENALTIES, NAME(S) UNDER WHICH CHARGED,

AND ANY OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION.

8. Are You presently Indictment, on parale or probation?
DY- Ko

(1f yua, indicele dels parole or probalion 5 10 expire.)

7. anoywmmn.ﬁpd

with and or armestsd for sny criminel offense Other than a minor molor vehicle viclalion? inciude offensss which heve bean diamissed, dischaged, or
charges raust be disciossd nd sxplsinad on an stiached sheet )

0 vee ﬁg/m

& Have you
» minor

(] Yo

piscad on pratriel diversion, or pilacad on any form of probabon, including adjudication withheld pending probation, fof any criminal offernsa other ther

of Ganeral I0

criminal rocond informaton sbout e Fom criminal justios sgancias for the purpose of

wihortzs the ApeciOr requast
mummmummmnmmmﬂusmlmmmu

AUTION: KnMnglymw.ﬁhQMnimHlbmhlmdFMIhmmmmhamﬂmm Sigificant civil penaities, &hd & Senial of your toan

ety bond, or other program

. A faise sintenent s punisheble under 18 USC 1001 by imprisonment of not more than five years andior 3 fine of not mosm than $14,000

mdar 15 USC 6483 by Imprisonmént rummwmnm-mmummmummnnmuuﬁmwhwmm under 18 USC 1014

uandwlhdmlnmﬂ-nﬂ
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0. DFthWUM

L__] Fingerprints Required
Dwia Sent to OIG

Dae Aoprcving Aoy

Date Approwing Aulhority

1". D Cleared for Processing

Dsw Appraving Authority

D Raquesi a Characier Evaiuaiion

[ Approving Authorly
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NOTICES REQUIRED BY LAW
The following is a brief summary of the laws applicable to this solicitation of information.
Paperwork Reduction Act (44 U.S.C. Chaptor 35)

SBA is collecting the information on this form to make a character and credit eligibility decision to fund or deny y«
a loan or other form of assistance. The information is required in order for SBA to have sufficient information to
determine whether to provide you with the requested assistance. The information collected may be checked
against criminal history indices of the Federal Bureau of Investigation,

Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a)

Any person can request to see or get copies of any personal information that SBA has in his or her file, when tha
file is retrievable by individual identifiers, such as name or social security numbers. Requests for information
about another party may be denied unless SBA has the written permission of the individual {o release the
information to the requestor or unless the inforration is subject to disclosure under the Freedom of information

Acl.

Under the provisions of the Privacy Act, you cannot be compelled to provide social security numbers; nor can you
be denied a loan or other form of assistance solely because you did not provide a social security number.
Disclosures of name and other personal identifiers are also voluntary. However, SBA requires an individual
seeking assistance from SBA to provide it with sufficient information for SBA to make a character determination.
In determining whether an individual is of good character, SBA considers the person's integrity, candor, and
disposition toward criminal actions. In making loans pursuant to section 7{a){6) the Small Business Act ( the Act) , 1!
USC § 636 (a)(6), SBA Is required to have reasonable assurance that the toan is of sound value and will be repaic
or that it is in the best interest of the Government to grant the assistance requested. Additionally, SBA is
specifically authorized to verify a loan applicant's criminal history, or lack thereof, pursuant to section 7(a)(1)(B),
15 USC § 636(a)(1)(B). Further, for all forms of assistance, SBA is authorized to make all investigations
necessary to ensure that a person has not engaged in acts that violate or will violate the Act or the Small Busines:
Investment Act. 15 USC §§ 634(b)(11) and 687b(a). As a result, if you do not provide your social security numbe
and other personal identifiers, SBA may not have sufficient information upon which to reach a favorable

determination.

When this information indicates a violation or potential violation of law, whether civil, criminal, or administrative in
nature, SBA may refer it to the appropriate agency, whether Federal, State, local, or foreign, charged with
responsibility for or otherwise involved in investigation, prosecution, enforcement or prevention of such violations.
See 56 Fed. Reg. 8020 (1991) for other published routine uses.
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OMB Approval Mo, Y45-0108

PERSONAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT

As ot 4"25/ 07

this form + or (£)-each mmmm;wmmw

St T
mmm«mu‘w&gm«{hmmummummum

e oiin AL e P 5355

Reidonca dcress /<L 1) QJMMﬂanJ By Rasiderce Prone (7770 S 5'3-3/3/
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SwomandBonds . . . ... - ... $__ ) & Mo. Paymonis
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ROMESIMO . « . . .o e s (}0}_‘.‘&0 Morgages on Rosl Estate . . . . . . . . . $
(Describe in Saction 4) (Dascribe in Sacion 4)
Aormoble-Pressnt Value . . . . . . . . $ L{BD@ UnpaidTaoces . . . . . . .. ... .... $
Othor Permonal Propeity . . . - . - . . . $ w2 {Dascribe in Section 6)
{Deacribe in Seclion 5) y Other Linbilien
OherAssols . . . . . . 2 oa s e s {Doacribe in Seclion 7)
(Deacitba in Saction %) TolsiLiables . . . . . ... ... . $ ]
. Networth . . . . .. ... ....... s
Tou..sa]ggI@ Total $
Buction 1. . SOUTOR DI MICOME &~ 6, "oy - D o [ COROe R R - T
SEmY . .. . . i e e e e e e e e $ MEndoreer or Co-Melesr. . , . . . .. ., $
Net investmontincome . . . . . . . . . ] lepe Clame & Judgments . . . . . ., . . $
RoslEsamincome . . . . . .. .o e s Provislon for Fodersl Income Tax . . . . . $ :I
Other Income (Decribe below)* . . . . - . $ OmwrSpeciatDebt . . . . ... . .... 3
Sescription of Oty i X Gocion 1. T : ;l
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Retum Exscuted Coples 1, 2, and 3 to SBA o LN 22e
- Please Read Carehully - Print or Type

1, BUS . . Each member of he small business or the devalopment company requesting assiets

;.‘ ¢ United Stales of America . Mmumhmmmreuum-musmm This form 1

ba fillad out snd submithed by:

SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION }1. 8y e propriexr, K s sole propristovahip.

3% %5 STATEMENT OF PERSONAL HISTORY |2 8 s5th peres. ¥ s prirsh.
ot 3. By sach officer, direcir, mnd sddiionally by each hokder of 20% or more of the
Name and Asiiress of Applicant [Flirn Name)(GTrest, CRy, Stsie, and 2P Code) mm';uww“mm of 8 dovelopment compan
MES ‘Spma.lH Pelding. Ine.
20k A ’% tood) Aerourk Aopked T (o sppicabie) [P N, W s

e 1o o in ull, ¥ no middie name, state (NWIN), or Fintfial | Neme and AJGrees of paricipeling nder Or Surely co. (when Sppkcable and Kiown)
onuhduhl-ﬁ) m-mmmmmmmmmm = o

saparmie shee! § nocassary.

Lot

K@( \ﬂ. A—w\ﬂé MBJ%& 2 Duia Of B4th Mioriiy, day, Shd your)

3. Plece of Bitie. (Cly & Staée or Foreign Counwy)

L Give he percentage of ownership of Siock owned o | Social Securiy Ho.
10 be ownad in e smed usiness or e devsicprent

ey e [ 5T 12 - EAL P o ~9~"°

T IS IMPORTANT THAT THE NEXT THREE QUESTIONS BE ANSWERED COMPLETELY. AN ARREST OR CONVICTION RECORD WILL NOT
{ECESSARILY DISQUALIFY YOU; HOWEVER, AN UNTRUTHFUL ANSWER WILL CAUSE YOUR APPLICATION TO BE DENIED.

F YOU ANSWER "YES" TO 8, 7, OR 8, FURNISH DETAILS ON A SEPARATE SHEET. INCLUDE DATES, LOCATION, FINES, SENTENCES

VHETHER MISDEMEANOR OR FELONY, DATES OF PAROLE/PROBATION, UNPAID FINES OR PENALTIES, NAME(S) UNDER WHICH GHARGED:
WND ANY OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION.

i, Ape You presandly ynsier ingichment, on perdle or probelion?
{] Y k{m {1 yes, inciceie date pavole or probation is 10 epire.)

mmmmdhmﬁumummmmm-mmmw Inciude offenses which have been diessed, discharged, or
not prosec BT (AN arvests and charges sl be disciossd snd sxpiained on sn attachad shest )

D Yoo
. mMMMMMMmMmWWGMMMWMM Tor Sty Criminal Cfenss olher ther
»

D Yes No

] the Adminatralion of Inspacior Genarsl 1o request Crinine record Informstion sboul e iom criminal uedice agencies Tor the purposs of
Salarmining my slighiity lor programe suthorized by the Small Business Act, snd he Bl Business invesiment Act

UTION: Knowingly making s taise sistament on fhis form s a viollion of Federal luw and could resut in criminel proseculion, significant cvil penelias, and e denial of your ioan,
iy bond, OF Oiher program pavicipwion. A false statement i punisheble under 18 USC 1001 by imgeisorunent of not mone then five years sndXr 8 s of not ore than $10,000;
Jar 15 USC 845 by

of nol Mare Than two yeary snd/or 8 Bine of not more than $5.000; and, ¥ submitied 10 » Federally insunad instiution, under 18 USC 1014 by
not more thirly yesrs sndior & ine of not more 000,000,
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S Apiroving Aoy 0 e Approving Aoy |

Fingerprints Required Raquest & Charucter Evaluation

D Dol Approving AuthorRy D . Date Approving Authorlty l
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NOTICES REQUIRED BY LAW
The following is a brief summary of the laws applicable to this solicitation of information.
Paperwork Reduction Act (44 U.S.C. Chapter 35)

SBA is collecting the information on this form to make a character and credit eligibility decision to fund or deny y:
a loan or other form of assistance. The information is required in order for SBA to have sufficient infonmation to
determine whether to provide you with the requested assistance. The information collected may be checked
against criminal history Indices of the Federat Bureau of Investigation.

Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a)

Any person can request to see or get copies of any personal information that SBA has in his or her file, when tha
file is retrievable by individual identifiers, such as name or social security numbers. Requests for information
about another party may be denied unless SBA has the written permission of the individual to release the
information to the requestor or unless the information is subject to disclosure under the Freedom of Information

Act.

Under the provisions of the Privacy Act, you cannot be compelled to pravide social security humbers; nor can you
be denied a loan or other form of assistance solely because you did not provide a social security number,
Disclosures of name and cther personal identifiers are also voluntary. However, SBA requires an individual
seeking assistance from SBA to provide it with sufficient information for SBA to make a character determination.
In determining whether an individual is of good character, SBA considers the person's integrity, candor, and
disposition toward criminal actions. In making loans pursuant to section 7(a)(6) the Small Business Act ( the Act) , ¥
USC § 636 (a)(8), SBA is required to have reasonable assurance that the loan is of sound value and will be repai
or that It is in the best interest of the Government lo grant the assistance requested. Additionally, SBA is
specifically authorized to verify a loan applicant's criminal history, or lack thereof, pursuant to section 7(a)(1)(B),
15 USC § 636(a)(1)(B). Further, for all forms of assistance, SBA is authorized to make all investigations
necessary to ensure that a person has not engaged in acts that violate or will violate the Act or the Small Busines:
Investment Act. 15 USC §§ 634(b)}11) and 687b(a). As a result, if you do not provide your social security numbe
and other personal identifiers, SBA may not have sufficient information upon which to reach a favorable

determination.

When this information indicates a violation or potential violation of law, whether civil, criminal, or administrative In
nature, SBA may refer it to the appropriate agency, whether Federal, State, local, or foreign, charged with
respansibility for or otherwise involved in investigation, prosecution, enforcement or prevention of such violations.
See 56 Fed. Reg. 8020 (1891) for other published routine uses.
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Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibllity Matters
Primary Covered Transactions

This certification is required by tha regulations Implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and
Suspension, 13 CFR Part 145. The regulations were published as Part Vil of the May 26, 1988 Federa/

Register (pages 19160-19211). Copies of the regulations are available from local offices of the U.S. Small
Business Administration.

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE)

(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and bellef that it and its
principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily exciuded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtalning, attempting to obiain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transac-
tion or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

making faise staternems, of recelving stolen property;

{c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental en-
tity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(1){b) ot this certification; and

{d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public trans-
actions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unabie to certify to any of the statements in this cer-
tification, such prospective primary participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.
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Atlanta wﬁawwmo Base Plant

November 14, 2002
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Bashen

~

> Employees contacted for interviews
>
>

Employees invited to volunteer for interviews

76 employees interviewed

26 volunteers
37 African Americans, 31 Caucasians, and 7 other races
52 males and 26 females

33 hourly, 25 salaried, non-managerial, and 18 managers
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» Strengths

» Opportunities for Improvement
» Differences in Perception

> Key Themes

» Open environment and conflicting perceptions of how
policies are enforced

> Recommendations
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> Job Feedback

» Communication of Expectations

» Job Support
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Bashen

» Key Themes

=  Accountability and Consistency

> Recommendations
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» Equal Opportunities
» Training, Education and Support
» Communicating Promotion Opportunities

» Recommendations
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» Key Themes

= Communication, Speed of Resolution and Confidentiality

» Recommendations
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Bashen

» Facility Upgrades
» Quality

> Plans for Improved Engagement,
Communication and Training
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The first step to improvement

» Communication

Page 124 of 170
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SURVEY METHODS

Coca-Cola retained Bashen Consulting to conduct an employee
survey at the company’s Atlanta Beverage Base Plant.

A random sampling of 30 percent of the plant population was
selected to be contacted for interviews. Consultants divided
interviewees based on certain criteria such as job position, race,
gender and age, for the purpose of selecting associates representing
all groups in the plant.

Bashen also invited interviewees io volunteer, and a significant
portion of the plant population volunteered to participate.

Five consultants conducted a series of interviews between October 9,
2002, and November 1, 2002.

76 employees interviewed

26 volunteers

37 African American, 32 Caucasian, 7 other races
52 males, 24 females

33 hourly, 25 salaried, non-managerial, 18 managers

Thank employees for the high level of participation.

PLANT ENVIRONMENT

Approximately half of responding employecs believe that the facility.
fosters an environment of openness and honesty.

Over half of the employees reported that the facility fosters an

environment that accepts the differences in backgrounds and
lifestyles of others.

Strengths:
Improved Infrastructure

Balancing productivity with quality of product
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Improved quality of life — more headcount, fewer hours, health and
safety emphasized

Personal development - increased training opportunities

Management working diligently to improve work environment,
implementing plans for improving communication and beginning the
“Rewards and Recognition” program.

Opportunities for Improvement

High level of stress — employees would like incentives and
compensation to reward work ethic.

Need to enact clear policies, guidelines and expectations, and then
uniformly enforce policies.

Plant is divided; trust does not exist among all employees and
managers. Some belicve lack of trust originated with previous
management; others cite perceived breaches of confidentiality by
current managers.

Poor communication

Perception of favoritism

Differences in Perception

Differences in perception existed along racial lines on some issues.
Example — promotion of equal opportunity.

Some African-Americans believe that Caucasians are treated more
favorably; some Caucasians believe that African-Americans are
favored

On some issues, employees were unified — example, perception that
various policies need to be clarified and consistently enforced.

Need to find common ground to come together as a community to
move the plant forward.
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Recommendations

1) Implement management and non-management training regarding
employment policies, civil rights laws and diversity.

2)  Provide diversity awareness training for all employees.
3) Uniformly enforce all employment policies.
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
. Job Feedback
- Over half of responding employees said they receive feedback.
- Associates desire more individualized feedback.

- Hold hourly employees accountable for positive and negative job
performance.

- Managers desire additional training for performance management.

. Job Expectations

- Over half of responding employees said that job expectations are
communicated.

- Many believe plant managers are doing a sound job relaying
expectations.

- Some employees communicated that they do not receive

communication regarding job expectations because their managers
assume they know their jobs.

o Job Support
- Over half said that job support is provided.

- Most employees lauded their managers and supervisors for
supplying them with adequate staffing, training and equipment.

- Some employees reported communication problems between first
and second shift and between supervisors.
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Recommendations

1) Continue the plant’s existing performance appraisal system,
“Rewards and Recognitions.”

2)  Institute formal performance appraisal system for hourly
employees.

3)  Provide more informal performance feedback for all employees.

4)  Assess training needs of managerial staff, and where appropriate,
provide performance assessment training.

5) Communicate performance expectations.

DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION

Over 75 percent of responding employees feel that discipiinary and
termination policies are not followed.

Many employees related that discipline is rarely administered.

Over 75 percent of responding employees believe that discipline is
not administered equally to all employees.

Many employees relayed that the facility’s disciplinary policies are
100 vague. Example: Drug testing policy.

Recommendations

1) Update and/or modify existing employment policies. Implement
policies where none exist. Communicate policies.

2)  Eliminating opportunity for subjectivity in policies, which will
assist in the enforcement of these policies.

3) Uniformly enforce all employment policies, regardless of
cmployee status.

4) Implement management and non-management training regarding

employment policies.
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PROMOTIONS AND ADVANCEMENT

. Equal Opportunities

- Over half of responding employees believe that the facility promotes
equal opportunity for all employees.

- Many employees perceive favoritism by managers.

- A common perception by employees is that plant management tends
to favor external candidates over qualified internal applicants.

. Training, Education, and Support

- Over half of employees believe that training, education and support
are provided to increase job skills for advancement.

- Many employees expressed satisfaction with the increasing
availability of training opportunities.

- Some allege favoritism in selecting employees for training.
- Some employees expressed that cross training should be increased
and that career development guidance is needed to help associates

select the training that will be most conducive to advancement.

- Some employees believe that advancement and reclassification
requirements are unknown.

. Communicating Promotion Opportunities

- Over half of responding employees relayed that promotion
opportunities are communicated effectively.

- Many employees cited better consistency by human resources in
posting jobs, and others believe the POP external job posting system
is cffective,

- Some employees alleged failure to effectively post certain jobs.

- A perception among some employees is that plant management pre-
selects employees for promotions.
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Recommendations

1)

Update or modify existing employment policies regarding
training, selection, and posting. Communicate policies.

2) Uniformly enforce all employment policies, regardless of
employee status.

3) Implement management and non-management training regarding
hiring and promotion practices.

4) Cultivate, encourage and promote internal candidates. Develop
individual employee career development plans.

COMPENSATION
i Adequacy

Over half of responding employees believe they are not adequately
compensated.

Most base this conclusion on the perceived pay rates in other Coca-
Cola facilities.

Some employees expressed frustration at failing to receive pay raises
they believe were promised 1o them.

Fairness

Over half of responding employees believe they are not compensated
fairly in comparison with others in the organization.

Some employees believe employees in other departments should not
earn more, and other employees believe they should eamn more than
employees in other departments with less demanding
responsibilities.

Scveral employees said that it is unfair if two individuals are
performing the same job but eaming different pay rates.

Some employees believe overtime opportunities are given unfairly.

Recommendations
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1)  Rectify all obvious pay disparities not supported by legitimate
business justifications.

2)  Update and/or modify existing employment policies regarding
compensation and distribution of overtime. Broadly
communicate policies and programs.

3)  Conduct equity analyses when new employees are hired.

ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

Over 75 percent of people responding indicated that they
participated in the Hewitt Engagement Survey conducted at the
plant.

More than 50 percent of these Engagement Survey participants
believe there were discrepancies with the reporting of the results.

Many believe the perceived problem was unintentional, while others
believed the perceived problem was purposeful.

PROBLEM RESOLUTION/COMMUNICATION

Over 50 percent of people responding believe there is an effective
communication system in place for airing concems, complaints or
gricvances.

Most employees agreed that there are ample sources of
communication available to employees.

Associates also cited slow response time from plant officials and
external departments in resolving complaints.

Approximately half of people responding reported that they are
uncomfortable communicating their concerns to at least one member
of management.

Some associates cited problems with breaches of confidentiality
inside and outside the plant.
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Some employees indicate a general lack of trust regarding some
managers

Approximately 25 percent of people responding indicated that they
had utilized SOLUTIONS, and over 75 percent of these employees
were not pleased with the results.

Assaciates cited problems with confidentiality and responsiveness.

Recommendations

1) Promptly respond to all EEQ and employee relations complaints.

2) More management/employee team building.

3) Use Roundtable for opening lines of communication.

4) Improve internal complaint system, possibly wusing an
independent entity and/or an independent 1-800 number for -
internal complaints and complaint investigations.

PLANT IMPROVEMENTS

Facility Upgrades

Improvements include new additions to the break room, second floor
to the Dry Parts department, new equipment, new paint, and
improved cieanliness.

Improvements have cased safety and health concerns.

Improved Output

Quality of product has improved.

Customer service has improved.

Plans for Improved Engagement, Communication, and Training

Roundtable meetings to improve engagement.

Plant meetings and increase in posting information have improved
communication.
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- Availability of and focus on training has increased.

CONCLUSION
. Thank employees again for participating and allowing us to help
them with this opportunity to make the plant a better environment
for everyone.
. Improving the plant is the responsibility of everyone in the plant,

and communication is the first step.

. We are excited that we had the opportunity to help the plant
employees voice their impressions and opinions regarding the
workplace, and we are confident that employees and managers are
ready to take the next steps toward making the plant a better place to
work.
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Sharron Mangum To: Milagros Tomel/US/INATCCCQ >

S : . cc: Jim Sepulveda/IS/INATCCC@TCCC

R 2 B 01/30/2003 04:55 PM Subjact: Please respond by Wednesday, February 5, 2003

Milagros,
There are several issues that we have discussed that are slili outstanding. Please review these ilems
below and provide me with a response by Friday, February 7, 2003.

Regards,

Sharron Mangum

HR Training Coordinator
404-676-3906

Thou wilt keep him in perfect peace, whose mind is stayed on thee: because he trusteth in thee. Isaiah 26:3

1. 1 brought to your attention on at least four occasions when 1 perceived Raymond Sherman's behavior
10 be threatening and intimidating. Friday, January 24, 2003 Joseph Calderara pulled me into a
meeting with Sal Jones and Raymond Sherman. The purpose of this meeting was to provide me with
feedback on the off-site fraining that | coordinated for the hourly professionals. As neither of these
gentlemen had communicated prior o this meeting that there were any issuas with the training, |
perceived their conduct to be harassing and threatening. Their communication was confrontational
and antagonistic. At one point in the mesting Raymond attempted to pull me into a verbal attercation
with him; however, when he was unsuccessful he abruptly arose from his seat and lefl the room.

Tuesday, January 28, 2003 while setting up the front conference room for training, Chris Georges and
| engaged in a discussion regarding the location for his Hazardous Communication training. Again,
Raymond Sherman in a hostile condescending manner interjects his unsolicited opinion in the
discussion and then abruptly walked away.

| have made you aware of the following situations since retuming from disability: 1) Tony Davenport
threatened my life on Thursday, January 9, 2003; James Garris cursed at me on December 12, 2002;
| suspected Karen Kiansek hid training records in my office on Friday, October 25, 2002; and, James
Garris on several occasions from (November 1 until my retumn to work December 12) communicated
to co-workers how he wanted to "get rid™ of a few people, namely me. | have expressed co-workers’
concemns about being seen or communicating with me as they perceive it as a direct threat to their job.
This conduct gives me no other choice but to believe that Raymond Sherman is seeking assistance
from other employees to support his cause and that he and the peopie named above are a threat to
my safety and well-being.

In each of these instances | have asked for help from you, Amanda Pace, and Corporate Security
managers’ Leslie Davis and Phil Cox, only to have my pleads ignored or discounted. | contacied Jim
Sepulveda in your absence on Friday, January 24, 2003 only to be instructed that | needed to talk 1o
you. As aresult, | am asking that an armed police officer is placed on site to monitor the environment.
This would be consistent with the armed officers that are on site at Corporate. Furthermore, | will be
carrying a recording device in plain sight at all times during my continued employment at ABBP.

2. It has been some months since | began the process to have the HR Training Coordinalor position
evaluated following the guidelines in Compensation Delivery as communicated by Dianna Haddon. All
of the necessary steps and documentation were completed and as a result | expected this matter to
be resolved in October 2002 based on communication | received. Unfortunately, my medical leave
occurred before | had an opportunity to follow up with her and now it is my understanding that Dianna
retired in December.

! have asked you on numerous occasions to provide me with the outcome, but | have not received a8
response to date. In an effort to bring this matter to a close | would like for you or someone from
Corporate fo communicate the outcome as soon as possible.

3. Inlight of the situation that occured with the reclassification of the Quality Analyst position from
exempt salaried job grade 8 to non-exempt salaried, | now believe that my position along with all
ABBP non-management positions below job grade 10 should be consjdered for the same evaluation.
Upon careful review of the existing job description for HR Training Coordinator and comparison to like

l
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positions within the Company. my existing job does not meet the criteridior FLSA exempt status.
Additionally, my previous position as a Training and Development Coordinator (exempt salaried job
grade 7) from January 1, 1997 to April 15, 2001 does not meet the criteria for FLSA exempt status. |
would like these positions reviewed for back pay including interest and merit increase pay.

It was communicated to me by Kevin Johnson upon my first day of employment at the ABBP that our
standard work week was 40 hours a week. However, my base pay is calculated at 37.5 hours a week.
You stated on January 21, 2003 that the standard work week for ABBP was 37.5 hours. Additionally, }
leamed from the Quality Analyst that they are now held to a 37.5 work week, but prior to their change
in stafus they worked a 40 hour work week. As an announcement has not been made regarding the
change in the standard work week salaried associates, including myself, continue to work 40 hours a
week as the standard. | would like to be compensated for the period that | worked 40 hours a week
from April 16, 2001 to January 31, 2003. Per your communication, effective February 1, 2003 | will cut
my standard work week to 37.5 hours.
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To: Peter Simpson/USINAIT CCC@Tg.s.‘
cc: miomei@na.ko.comm, Joseph Calderara/lUS/INAITCCC@TCCC
Subject: Training Program

Sharron Mangum
10/21/2002 05:09 PM

Peter,
1 have chosen to decline your offer to change the Training Program's last audit assessment from a
“critical” to a "major” nonconformance. | will pursue other options in getting this matter resocive.

Regards,

Sharron Mangum

HR Training Coordinator

TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Piant
1001 Great SW Parkway

Allanta, GA 30336

Training Program Update

Certification Testing

1. Re-lest Maintenance Wednesday, October 23
2. 2nd Shift Wednesday, October 23

Visyal and Verbal Assessments
1. Complsted by Friday, November 1

Training Plans
1. In place by Friday, November 1

Training Program changes completed 10/18/02.
Sharron Mangum
Shafron Mangum To: Peter SimpsonfUSINATCCC

7 . cc: momei@na.ko.com, Joseph CalderaraUS/INA/TCCC@TCCC
09/27/2002 11:55 AM Subject: Re; Review of training program

Peter,
| appreciate you working with me on the Training Program’s last audit assessment. | am still considering
your offer, but have not arrived at a final decision. | will make my decision next week.

Next Steps:
* Training to be compieted by October 4. (less than 20 people remnaining)

e Certification Testing o be completed by October 4. (Dry Parts and 2nd Shift)
s Training files can be viewed at your discretion (any date or time).
e  Ongoing Training Program Refresher Training with Supervisors through December.
Sharron
Peter Simpson
x" Peter Simpson To: Shamon Mangum/US/NA/TCCC@TCCC
; cc: Miagros TomeVUS/NATCCC@TCCC, Joseph
A9 Q) 09/25/200201:32 PM Caiderara/USINATCCC@TCCC
" Subject: Review of training program
Sharron

| am summarizing my meetings with each Program Owner so that they can finalize preparations for the
audit in December. Here is my summary of your meeting, please let me know if | have missed anything

Criticat nonconformance from last audit
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You expressed concern Over the critical given in the last audit and were( .~sught that there was
confusion as to how the Audil Program explains when criticals are assigned (o an audit finding.

| explained to you that the criteria listed in the program are guidelines and do not exclude other
findings from allowing an auditor to assign a critical (I designed our program to ba flexibie). As you
know TCCQS Phase 3 is one of the plant's major goals for 2002, therefore during the run up to
Phase 3, } decided (based upon discussion with experienced associales) that a critical could be
assigned to any program that may prevent the plant's certification.

In order to clarify this position, | rewrote the audit program in August to include this guideline.
However because your audit was before August this clarification would nol have helped you
understand the process. Due to this confusion and in the spirit of developing a respected audit
program that we can all be proud of, | offered to reduce the critical fo a number major
nononformances related 1o specific findings. By taking this step | hope that we can focus upon the
few remaining issues thai relate 1o your program (mostly around awareness training ) instead of
debating their classification. You said that you would consider this offer.

Next steps

Complete the corrective actions from the previous audit, especially around completing training of
associates on the program (piease provide me a deadline for completion) and update their training
records

t will release program documents with the understanding that all records for outstanding training are
given to me ASAP | will bring over the tracking forms for you to sign

Thoroughty review Corporate requirements for the Training Program and be able to navigate through
your program with ease

Complete certification tasting and (job skills analysis?)

One thing we did not mentlon, | would like to review your training record files either Friday (9/27) or the
following Monday, you do not need to be available for this.

! look forward to your continued support of our Quality System, let me now if you have questions
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Sharron Mangum To: Elizsbeth Hayes/USNA/TCCCRTOLC
i cc: Milagros Tomel/USINATCCC@TCCC, Bridgett
07/30/2002 08:00 AM WisaUSNATCCC@TCCE

Subject Re: Invoice Status

Elizabeth,

I recetved two invoices from Langevin Leaming Services that are severely past due. Could you please
check the status and provide me with an update? If they have already been paid, please provide the
check number, check date and the mailing address.

Thank you,
Sharmmon Mangum, X63908
Invoice #A88211 $799.00 Rec'vd March 13, forwarded to Millle for signature and
processing.
Invoice #ABS832 $160.65 Rec'vd April 15, forwarded to Millie for signature and
processing.
Sharron Mangum

Sharron Mangum Ta: Elizabeth Hayes/US/NA/TCCC

0B/25/2002 . eC.

06:07 AM Subject Re: Invoice Status

Thank you.
Elizabeth Hayes

Elizsbeth Hayes To: Sharon Mangum/US/NA/TCCC@RTCCC

. cc. Mitagros TomelJSINVTCCCRTCCC
0072472002 05:29 PM Subject Re: Irwvoice Sigt

i have the copies that | kept when | subrmitied both invoices, but they do not seem to have paid yet. ! will
call DMG tomorrow moming when they open to get g status from them.

Elzabeth Hayes

Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
404-876-2790

404-515-3144 - fax

Sharron Mangum

Sharron Mangum To: Elizabeth Hayes/USINA/TCCC@TCCC
. cc. Mitagros Tomei/lUSINATCCC@TCCC
06/24/2002 05:23 PM Subiect Invoice Stat

Elizabeth,
Langevin Leaming Services notified me today of two outstanding invoices (see below). Could you
please check the status and provide me with an update at your earliest?

Thank you,

Shamron Mangum, X63908

invoice #A88211 $799.00 Rec'vd in March 13, forwarded to Millie for signature
and processing

Invoice #AB9098 $1.099.00 Rec'vd in Aprif 4, forwarded 10 Millie for signature and

processing
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|
James Ganris To: Milagros TomeiIUS/*AIT CCC@TCCC
cc!
04/03/02 10:45 AM Subject: Discussion ltems

Millie:

A couple of things we need to discuss when you return......

|
1) Brenda is stij concerned about her pay gap with Tony. She wasn't officially filing a concern with
|

me but ! can tell she is not clear on why there is 2 differencd of $10,000 - this is the number she
was given by sdmeone. Not sure what next steps are but pgrhaps you and Joe need to meet to
clarify? | think ioe has a concern with Joan's pay since shelis managing & night shift alone???

2) | wes asked
extension?

bout AOL offer. it is soon to expire {July). Have you heard of any talk to get an

[
3) We need to discuss the EOM sent by Mark Harden last wgek. It indicated temporaries and

contracts who would be on-gite more than 10 days hed to hgave a background check. | believe we
need to understind how our tamp agency ¢an comply.

Thanks. [
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To: Kevin ‘HR' Johnson/US/NA/TC iCCC
cc: Dougias N. DafflUS/NATCCC@TCCC, Coretha

Sharron Mangu

10/08/2001 09:29 AM Rushing/US/NAITCCC@TCCC, Patricia V.
Please respond by Powell/US/NATCCC@TCCC, Philippe Del
10/09/2001 Piano/PRILA/TCCC@TCCC, Tracy KoWUS/NA/TCCC@TCCC, James

Garris/US/INA/TCCC@TCCC, LESBIA BLANCO/PRALATCCC@TCCC,
Dr. Williem Yang/US/NAITCCC@TCCC
Subject: A Recap of Thursday, October 4

. -

Kevin,

This memo is to recap our discussion of Thursday, October 4, when pursuant to my
physician's release, 1 returned to work. Prior to returning to work, it was not clearly
communicated that I needed documentation in addition to what is required by
FMLA. As a result, you ordered me to leave the premises. You stated as a result of
your conversation with unnamed sources in The Coca-Cola Company’s Legal and
Medical Services Departments that you needed additional documentation to support
my return to work authorization. In addition, you stated that the document that 1
provided did not contain the limitations associated with performing my work

duties.

Compliance to Standard Equipment

In my discussions with Dr. Bill Yang prior to returning to work, it was not
mentioned that The Coca-Cola Company required that my physician supply
additional supporting documentation. On October 4 I asked Dr. Yang if my
physician was required to submit documentation for standard tools and equipment
afforded every associate (permanent and contract) of The Coca-Cola Company. He
stated that it was not a requirement, but that it would *“lend support to Kevin getting
those things in place for you.”

On October 4 Dr. Bill Yang contacted Healthworks on my behalf. As a result,
Debbie MacLean contacted me at home on Friday, October S to inquire what sort of
chair was needed. I told her that I was requesting the standard ergonomic chair that
was provided to all associates (permanent and contract) of The Coca-Cola
Company. She stated that she would request a chair from Facility Services and
would follow up our conversation via email. She further stated that if I liked
Healthworks would do a workstation assessment. Since I am still without an
assigned work location, I stated that I would set up an appointment as soon as I had
a location.

1 would like to add that since my hire date of April 16, 2001 I have not had an
assigned work location. I had worked from another associate’s desk while she was
part of the SAP Implementation team. During this time, I used my personal cell
phone to conduct company business. Furthermore, when Susie Shealey retumed
the week of July 9, I was relocated to sharing a desk with you, Kevin. Since the
chair was not in compliance with The Coca-Cola Company’s ergonomic code, it
agitated my back injury. At this time you authorized me to order a chair and a_
lumbar support.
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Compliance to Standard Work Hours
As you are aware the standard number of hours for The Coca-Cola Company in a

workday is 7.5 and the workweek is 37.5. On October 4 you stated that the Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant does not follow the standard work hours of The Coca-Cola
Company. While I am aware that we are considered a field office and that field
offices generally alter the procedures and policies of The Coca-Cola Company to
meet the demands of the business, however, the field offices are bound by the
standards set forth by The Coca-Cola Company.

During my ortentation as HR Representative for the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant,
you asked if I would start my workday at 8:00 am. and end it at 5:00 p.m. 1
brought to your attention that this was longer than the standard work hours of The
Coca-Cola Company. You stated that it was the desire of James Garris, Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant General Manager, to have someone available in the HR
Department at 8:00 a.m. and that he doesn’t like office personnel to leave before
5:00 p.m. You further stated that you “would be flexible when I needed to take
time off for any reason.”

Since my injury, I have requested to work the standard hours of The Coca-Cola
Company and to adjust my hours as business situations arose. You further stated
that if 1 worked the standard number of hours set forth by The Coca-Cola Company,
I would not be able to fulfill the requirements of my position. I*m not sure how you
can qualify this statement as your display of satisfaction with my work quality and
performance carried over into my disability.

You may recall that during one of our many phone conversations while I was at
home on disability, you asked what was HR policy concerning contacting associates
at home for work related guidance. I stated that you are not to contact me while |
am out on disability as it could be considered harassment. Although I knew that
this was not a requirement to maintain employment with The Coca-Cola Company,
1 complied with your requests because of the questionable terminations that have
occurred during my employment at the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant. Furthermore,
you expressed such strong opinions that nothing was wrong with me as a result of
my automobile accident, and in an effort to protect my position with The Coca-Cola
Company as welil as out of concern for the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant achieving
TCCC Quality System certification, I felt that I had no other choice but to respond
to your work-related inquiries. You even called my cell phone to discuss
work-related tasks while I was working online from home.

As previously mentioned, you stated that if | worked the standard number of hours,
I would not be able to fulfill the requirements of my position. In an effort to fuifill
the needs of the division in meeting The Coca-Cola Quality System standards, I
have been working primanly in the capacity of a Trainer. A non-employee worker
continued to work in the capacity of the HR Representative for which she was hired
several months prior to my start date, April 16.

On July 24 you forwarded an email from Patrice Kant which allocated funds for
two months to the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant to assist with the temporary support
of the HR Department. If you recall, while out on disability, you asked me to
complete the business justification document which requested additional financial
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support to retain the contract worker and to add an additional headcount to the
Atlanta Beverage Base Plant HR Department for the 2002 Business Plan. The
additional headcount would be used to split the duties of the HR Representative
into two positions—full time HR Representative and full time Trainer—to
consistently meet the training requirements of The Coca-Cola Company Quality
System.

As a result of the concerns that you have expressed, and the budgetary constraints
which resulted in the loss of the financial support for the contract worker, it leads
me o believe that you would like for me to continue to fulfill the needs of a full
time Trainer as well as begin my duties to fulfill the position of HR Representative.

Additional Documentation Request

1 did not anticipate the length of time it would take to reach my physician. My
physician is an Orthopedic Surgeon that works out of thee separate office locations
and is on staff at several different hospitals in the area. I have attempted to reach
him on several occasions. As this is a non-emergency situation, his office staff has
reassured me that he will contact me at his earliest opportunity.

As a result of your request that my return to work is contingent upon the additional
documentation you requested, this memo is to serve as notice today, Monday,
October 8, that I will not return to the office until such time or unless authorized by
a Coca-Cola Company Representative.

In following your instructions, I have sought company policy to substantiatc
utilization of my accrued time. Since I have been unable to locate said policy, I
rescind my agreement to use Friday, October 5 as a vacation day. Furthermore, it
appears that this time out of the office should not be charged against my accrued
time, PTO or vacation nor should it be considered time without pay. I will seck HR
and FMLA guidance regarding this matter.

The HR Technician job description that you provided on October 4 is to be
reviewed by my physician. You stated that my physician is to provide a statement
as to my ability to perform the duties in this particular job description. After
careful review of the HR Technician job description, I realized that it had been
modified from the original job description of HR Representative that I interviewed
and was hired for on April 16, 2001. I am referring specifically to the Safety and
Occupational Health Responsibilities, Quality System Responsibilities, and General
Aspects of the Position that were outlined. I will seek direction from HR and -
FMLA as to how this request should be handled.

Summation

Based on the aforementioned occurrences, it could easily be interpreted that you are
deliberately requesting that I provide non-essential documentation for returning to
work to substantiate a non-justifiable termination. As a result of your actions, I am
going to utilize The Coca-Cola Company’s resources to reach a reasonable solution
to this situation. In the interim, I would like for you to outline in your response:

. The documented FMLA policies that the unnamed Medical Services personnel
provided that led you to believe that my physician needed to provide additional
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documentation to support my return to work.

The documented policies that the unnamed legal personnel referred to concerning

the standard tools provided every associate (permanent and contract) of The

Coca-Cola Company (chair, workstation and the standard workweek).

. Specifically which job functions you alluded to in the original HR Representative
job description that I would not be able to perform. What is it as a result of my

physical injury that leads you to believe that I cannot continue to perform my work

functions that you were clearly satsfied with prior to my injury?

. The documented authorization to modify the HR Representative job description and

the reason why I was not made aware of the changes in responsibility.

My original email requested that I receive the standard tools afforded every
associate (permanent and contract) of The Coca-Cola Company. Iam saddened
that your response escalated a simple request to a potentially unfavorable situation
and that your behavior overshadowed the efforts of Dr. Bill Yang, James Garris and
other personnel at Corporate and the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant to make my
return a pleasant one.

I would appreciate immediate resolution to this situation so that we can move
forward in continuing the success of The Coca-Cola Company.

Best Regards,

Sharron Mangum

HR Representative, Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
404-676-3906

Sharron Mangum

Sharron Mangum To: Kevin HR' Johnson/US/NA/TCCC
. cc: Dr. Wiilliam Yang/US/NASTCCC@TCCC, James
' 09/20/2001 12:36 PM Gama/USINATCCC@TCCC

Subject: In response to your questions and concems.

Hi Kevin,

Thanks for your response and your support of the accommodations, However, to answer your question,
my request is neither personal nor medical in nature except for the lJumbar support. ) have known since |
started that the ABBP was working on the facility issues and | have been extremely patient throughout the
process. However, because of my recent injury, it is critical that | receive the same accommodations as
any other associale of the Company. These requests are to minimize any stress or agitation to my injury
while continuing the heaiing process.

From an HR perspective, it is a Company standard that each associate has the proper equipment to
perform their essential job functions, that includes, a telephone, computer, ergonomic chair, workstation,
and whatever other necessities that the position may require. The 37.5-hour workweek is also a standard
of the Company. The lumbar support Is the only request that is non-standard. 1 am happy to provide
whatever documentation needed to support this request.

You suggested getting legal mvolved. ¥ my requests were outside the standards of the Company, | would
fully agree. | think that this matter is pretty simple in nature and 1 think that it is something that we can
resolve on our own. Piease advise.

Dr. Yang,
Piease advise what documenteation is needed other than what has been provided prior to my retumn to
work.

Best Regards,
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Please respond accordingly®
Look forward to seeing you on October 8th, 2001. Feel free to call me @ 66084,

Kevin,
Sharron Mangum

Sharron Mangum To: Kevin 'HR® Johnson/USINATTCCC@TCCC
. oc: Dr. William Yang/USINA/TCCC@TCCC, James
08/19/01 09:46 AM Gamis/USINATCCC@TCCC

Subject: Return to Work Accommodations

Kevin,

Since my injury, 1 know that my absence has been a sirain on the HR Department. | sincerely appreciate
your patience and support during this difficult time. | wilt be returning to work in two and half
weeks—aproximately October 8. In preparation of my return there are some things that we can do to
ensure minimal agitation occurs to my back injury. Below | have listed some things (others may arise after
| return) that will help me re-acclimate io ABBP's work environment. After reviewing the information
below, please provide me with your thoughts, questions and concerns.

| look forward to seeing you all soon.

Best Regards,

Sharron Mangum

HR Representative, ABBP
404-676-3906

1. Workstation and File Space Accommodations
Prior to my leave, | was dislocated. 1 did not have a workstation or filing space. In actuality | was
working from a chair and using the floor as my file cabinet.

2. Ergonomic Chair and Lumbar Support
| was utilizing a decorative office chair, which will not supply the support | need for my back injury. |
requested an ergonomic chakr and a lumbar support prior io my leave. Please ensure that they are
available upon my retum.

3. Adjust Work Schedule to 8:30 to 4:30
We agreed that my normal work schedule would be 8:00 to 5:00. You have expressed concern in
reference to me retuming to work part time. As a result, | propose that | strictly adhere 1o the
Company's 37.5-hour workweek unless a situation arises in which | need to work extended hours.

4. Please keep in mind that these changes are to limit the strain to my back injury and to continue the
healing process without consistent agitatio
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= Communication, Speed of Resolution and Confidentiality

» Recommendations
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» Facility Upgrades

» Quality

> Plans for Improved Engagement,
Communication and Training
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SURVEY METHODS

Coca-Cola retained Bashen Consulting to conduct an employee
survey at the company’s Atlanta Beverage Base Plant.

A random sampling of 30 percent of the plant population was
selected to be contacted for interviews. Consultants divided
interviewees based on certain criteria such as job position, race,
gender and age, for the purpose of selecting associates representing
all groups in the plant.

Bashen also invited interviewees to volunteer, and a significant
portion of the plant population volunteered to participate.

Five consultants conducted a series of interviews between October 9,
2002, and November 1, 2002.

76 employees interviewed

26 volunteers

37 African American, 32 Caucasian, 7 other races
52 males, 24 females

33 hourly, 25 salaried, non-managerial, 18 managers

Thank employees for the high level of participation.

PLANT ENVIRONMENT

Approximately half of responding employees believe that the facility.
fosters an environment of openness and honesty.

Over half of the employees reported that the facility fosters an

environment that accepts the differences in backgrounds and
lifestyles of others.

Strengths:
Improved Infrastructure

Balancing productivity with quality of product
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- Improved quality of life — more headcount, fewer hours, health and
safety emphasized

- Personal development - increased training opportunities
- Management working diligently to improve work environment,

implementing plans for improving communication and beginning the
“Rewards and Recognition” program.

. Opportunities for Improvement

- High level of stress — cmployees would like incentives and
compensation to reward work ethic.

- Need to enact clear policies, guidelines and expectations, and then
uniformly enforce policies.

- Plant is divided; trust does not exist among all employees and
managers. Some believe Iack of trust originated with previous
management; others cite perceived breaches of confidentiality by
current managers.

- Poor communication

- Perception of favoritism

. Dijfferences {n Perception

- Differences in perception existed along racial lines on some issues.
Example — promotion of equal opportunity.

- Some African-Americans believe that Caucasians are treated more

favorably, some Caucasians believe that African-Americans are
favored

- On some issues, employees were unified — example, perception that
various policies need to be clarified and consistently enforced.

- Need to find common ground to come together as a community to
move the plant forward.
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Recommendations

1)

2)

3)

Implement management and non-management training regarding
employment policies, civil rights laws and diversity.

Provide diversity awareness training for all employees.

Uniformly enforce all employment policies.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

Job Feedback
Over half of responding employees said they receive feedback.
Associates desire more individualized feedback.

Hold hourly employees accountable for positive and negative job
performance.

Managers desire additional training for performance management.

Job Expectations

Over half of responding employees said that job expectations are
communicated.

Many believe plant managers are doing a sound job relaying
expectations.

Some employees communicated that they do not receive

communication regarding job expectations because their managers
assume they know their jobs.

Job Support
Over half said that job support is provided.

Most employees lauded their managers and supervisors for
supplying them with adequate staffing, training and equipment.

Some employees reported communication problems between first
and second shift and between supervisors.
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Recommendations

1)  Continue the plant’s existing performance appraisal system,
“Rewards and Recognitions.”

2) Institute formal performance appraisal system for hourly
employees.

3)  Provide more informal performance feedback for all employees.

4) Assess training needs of managerial staff, and where appropriate,
provide performance assessment training.

5) Communicate performance expectations.

DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION

Over 75 percent of responding employees feel that disciplinary and
terrnination policies are not followed.

Many employees related that discipline is rarely administered.

Over 75 percent of responding employees believe that discipline is
not administered equally to all employees.

Many employees relayed that the facility’s disciplinary policies are
too vague. Example: Drug testing policy.

Recommendations

1)  Update and/or modify existing employment policies. Implement
policies where none exist. Communicate policies.

2) Eliminating opportunity for subjectivity in policies, which will
assist in the enforcement of these policies.

3) Uniformly enforce all employment policies, regardless of
cmployee status.

4) Implement management and non-management training regarding

employment policies.
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PROMOTIONS AND ADVANCEMENT

. Equal Opportunities

- Over half of responding employees believe that the facility promotes
equal opportunity for all employees.

- Many employees perceive favoritism by managers.

- A common perception by employees is that plant management tends
to favor external candidates over qualified internal applicants,

° Training, Education, and Support

- Over half of employees believe that training, education and support
are provided to increase job skills for advancement.

- Many employees expressed satisfaction with the increasing
availability of training opportunities.

- Some allege favoritism in selecting employees for training.
- Some employecs cxpressed that cross training should be increased
and that carcer development guidance is needed to help associates

select the training that will be most conducive to advancement.

- Some employees beliecve that advancement and reclassification
requirements are unknown.

. Communicating Promotion Opportanities

- Over half of responding employees relayed that promotion
opportunities are communicated effectively.

- Many employees cited better consistency by human resources in
posting jobs, and others believe the POP external job posting system
is effective.

- Some employees alleged failure to effectively post certain jobs.

- A perception among some employees is that plant management pre-
selects employees for promotions.
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Recommendations

1)

Update or modify existing employment policies regarding
training, selection, and posting. Communicate policies.

2) Uniformly enforce all employment policies, regardless of
employee status.

3) Implement management and non-management training regarding
hiring and promotion practices.

4)  Cultivate, encourage and promote internal candidates. Develop
individual employee career development plans.

COMPENSATION
° Adeguacy

Over half of responding employees believe they are not adequately
compensated.

Most base this conclusion on the perceived pay rates in other Coca-
Cola facilities,

Some employees expressed frustration at failing to receive pay raises
they believe were promised to them.

Fairness

Over half of responding employees believe they are not compensated
fairly in comparison with others in the organization.

Some employees believe employees in other depariments should not
earn more, and other employees believe they should earn more than
employees in other departments with less demanding
responsibilities.

Several employees said that it is unfair if two individuals are
performing the same job but eamning different pay rates.

Some employees believe overtime opportunities are given unfairly.

Recommendations
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1)

2)

3)

Rectify all obvious pay disparities not supported by legitimate
business justifications.

Update and/or modify existing employment policies regarding
compensation and distribution of overtime. Broadly
comrnunicate policies and programs.

Conduct equity analyses when new employees are hired.

ENGAGEMENT SURVEY

Over 75 percent of people responding indicated that they
participated in the Hewitt Engagement Survey conducted at the
plant.

More than 50 percent of these Engagement Survey participants
believe there were discrepancies with the reporting of the results.

Many believe the perceived problem was unintentional, while others
believed the perceived problem was purposeful.

PROBLEM RESOLUTION/COMMUNICATION

Over 50 percent of people responding believe there is an effective
communication system in place for airing concerns, complaints or
grievances.

Most employees agreed that there are ample sources of
communication available to employees.

Associates also cited slow response time from plant officials and
external departments in resolving complaints.

Approximately half of people responding reported that they are
uncomfortable communicating their concerns to at least one member
of management.

Some associates cited problems with breaches of confidentiality
inside and outside the plant.
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Some employees indicate a general lack of trust regarding some
managers

Approximately 25 percent of people responding indicated that they
had utilized SOLUTIONS, and over 75 percent of these employees
were not pleased with the results.

Associates cited problems with confidentiality and responsiveness.

Recommendations

1) Promptly respond to all EEOQ and employee relations complaints.

2) More management/employee team building,

3) Use Roundtable for opening lines of communication.

4) Improve internal complaint system, possibly using an
independent entity and/or an independent 1-800 number for -
internal complaints and complaint investigations.

PLANT IMPROVEMENTS

Facility Upgrades

Improvements include new additions to the break room, second floor
to the Dry Parts department, new equipment, new paint, and
improved cleanliness.

Improvements have eased safety and health concerns.

Improved Qutput

Quality of product has improved.

Customer service has improved.

Plans for Improved Engagement, Communicatiou, and Training

Roundtable meetings to improve engagement.

Plant meetings and increase in posting information have improved
communication.
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Availability of and focus on training has increased.

CONCLUSION

Thank employees again for participating and allowing us to help
them with this opportunity to make the plant a better environment
for everyone.

Improving the plant is the responsibility of everyone in the plant,
and communication is the first step.

We are excited that we had the opportunity to help the plant
employees voice their impressions and opinions regarding the
workplace, and we are confident that employees and managers are
ready to take the next steps toward making the plant a better place to
work.
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Sharron Mangum To: Milagros Tomel/USINA/TCCC@TRLC
L . . cc: Jim Sepulveda/USINATCCC@TCCC
i Ra? 01/30/2003 04:55 PM Subject; Please respond by Wednesday, February 5, 2003

Milagros,
There are several issues that we have discussed that are still outstanding. Please raview these items

beiow and provide me with a response by Friday, February 7, 2003.

Regards,

Sharron Mangum

IR Training Coordinator
404-676-3906

Thou wilt keep him in perfect peace, whose mind is stayed on thee: because he trusteth in thee. Isaiak 26:3

1. 1 brought to your attention on at least four occasions when | perceived Raymond Sherman's behavior
to be threatening and intimidating. Friday, January 24, 2003 Joseph Calderara pulled me into a
meeting with Sal Jones and Raymond Shefman. The pumose of this meeting was 10 provide me with
feedback on the off-site training that | coordinated for the hourly professionals. As neither of these
gentlemen had communicated prior to this meeting that there were any issues with the training, |
perceived their conduct to be harassing and threatening. Their communication was confrontational
and antagonistic. Al one point in the meeling Raymond attempted to pull me into a verbal altercation
with him; however, when he was unsuccessful he abruptly arose from his seat and left the room.

Tuesday, January 28, 2003 while setting up the front conference room for training, Chris Georges and
| engaged in a discussion regarding the location for his Hazardous Communication training. Again,
Raymond Sherman in a hostile condescending manner interjects his unsolicited opmion in the
discussion and then abruptly walked away.

| have made you aware of the following situations since retuming from disability: 1) Tony Davenport
threatened miy life on Thursday, January 9, 2003; James Garris cursed at me on December 12, 2002;
! suspected Karen Klansek hid training records in my office on Friday, October 25, 2002; and, James
Garris on several occasions from (November 1 until my return to work December 12) communicated
to co-workers how he wanted to “get rid” of a few people, namely me. | have expressed co-workers’
concems about being seen or communicating with me as they perceive it as a direct threat to their job.
This conduct gives me no other choice but to believe that Raymond Sherman is seeking assistance
from other employees ta support his cause and that he and the people named above are a threat to
my safety and well-being.

In each of these instances | have asked for help from you, Amanda Pace, and Corporate Security
managers’ Leslie Davis and Phil Cax, only to have my pleads ignored or discounted. ) contacted Jim
Sepulveda in your absence on Friday, January 24, 2003 only to be instructed that | needed 10 talk to
you. As aresult, | am asking that an armed police officer is placed on site 10 monitor the environment.
This woukl be consistent with the armed officers that are on site at Corporate. Furthermore, 1 will be
camying a recording device in plain sight at all times during my continued employment at ABBP,

2. It has been some months since | began the process to have the HR Training Coordinalor position
evaluaied following the guidelines in Compensation Delivery as cormmunicated by Dianha Haddon. All
of the necessary steps and documentation were completed and as a result | expected this matter to
be resolved in October 2002 based on communication | received. Unfortunately, my medical leave
occurred before | had an opportunity to follow up with her and now it is my understanding that Dianna
retired in December.

| have asked you on nurmerous occasions fo provide me with the ocutcome, but | have not received a
response to date. in an effort to bring this matter to a clpse | would iike for you or someone from
Corporate fo communicate the outcome as soon as possible.

3. In light of the situation that occurred with the reclassification of the Quality Analyst position from
exempt salaried job grade 8 1o non-exempt salaried, | now believe that my position along with all
ABBP non-management positions below job grade 10 should be consjjered for the same evaluation.
Upon careful review of the existing job description for HR Training Coordinator and comparison to like

l
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positions within the Company, my existing job does not meet the criteriaur FLSA exempt status.
Additionally, my previous position as a Training and Development Coordinator (exempt salaried job
grade 7) from January 1, 1997 to April 15, 2001 does not meet the criteria for FLSA exempt status. |
wotuld like these positions reviewed for back pay including interest and merit increase pay.

It was communicated to me by Kevin Johnson upon my first day of employment at the ABBP that our
standerd work week was 40 hours a week. However, my base pay is calculated at 37.5 hours a week.
You stated on January 21, 2003 that the standard work week for ABBP was 37.5 hours. Additionally, |
leamed from the Quality Analyst that they are now held to a 37.5 work week, but prior to their change
in status they worked a 40 hour work week. As an announcement has pot been made regarding the
change in the standard work week salaried associates, including myself, continue to work 40 hours a
week as the standard. 1 would like to be compensated for the period that § worked 40 hours a week
from April 16, 2001 to January 31, 2003. Per your communication, effective February 1, 2003 | will cut
my standard work week to 37.5 hours.
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Sharron Mangum To: Peter Simpson/USNATCCC@ C
. cc: mtomei@na.ko.com, Joseph Calderara/US/INATCCC@QTCCC
10/21/2002 05:09 PM Subject: Training Program

Peter,
i have chosen to dedline your offer to change the Training Program's last audit assessment from a
“critical” to a "major” nonconformance. | will pursue other options in getting this matter resoive.

Regards,

Sharroh Mangum

HR Training Coordmator

TCCC Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
1001 Great SW Parkway

Atlanta, GA 30336

Training Program Update

Ceitification Testing

1. Re-test Maintenance Wednesday, October 23
2. 2nd Shift Wednesday, October 23

Visual and Verbal Assessments
1. Compieted by Friday, November 1

Training Plans
1. In place by Friday, November 1

Training Program changes completed 10/18/D2.

Sharron Mangum

Sharron Mangum To: Peter SimpsonVUS/INATCCC
. cc: miomei@@na.ko.com, Joseph Calderara)SINAMTCCC@ETCCC
09/27/2002 11:50 A g\ ipjact: Re: Review of training program

Peter,
| appreciate you working with me on the Traming Program's last audit assessment. | am still considering
your offer, but have not arrived at a final decision. 1 will make my decision next week.

Next Steps:
¢ Training to be completed by October 4. (less than 20 peopls rsrnaining)
e Coertification Testing to be completed by October 4. (Dry Parts and 2nd Shift)
s Training files can be viewed at your discretion (any date or time).
e Ongoing Training Program Refresher Training with Supervisors through December.
Sharron
Peter Simpson
Peter Simpson To: Shamon Mangum/US/INAITCCC@TCCC
f‘ ) cc: Milagros Tomel/USMNA/TCCC@TCCC, Joseph
A9 gl 08/25/200201:32 PM Calderara)SINATTCCC@TCCC
k Subject: Review of training program
Sharron

| am summarizing my meetings with each Program Owner so that they can finalize preparations for the
audit in Decemnber. Here is my summary of your meeting, please let me know if | have missed anything

Critical nonconformance from last audit




Case 1:03-cv-027€-RWS Document1 Filed 09/12/03[ Page 161 of 170

e You expressed concern Gver the critical given in the last audit and -.stght that there was
confusion as 10 how the Audit Program expleins when criticals are assigned to an audit finding.

I explained to you that the criteria listed in the program are guidelines and do not exclude other
findings from allowing an auditor to assign a critical (! designed our program to be flexible). As you
know TCCQS Phase 3 is one of the plant's major goals for 2002, therefore during the run up to
Phase 3, | decided (based upon discussion with experienced associates) that a critical could be
assigned to any program that may prevent the plant's certification.

In order to clarify this position, | rewrote the audit program in August to include this guideline.
However because your audit was before August this clarification would not have helped you
understand the process. Due to this confusion and in the spirit of developing a respected audit
program that we can all be proud of, | offered 1o reduce the critical fo a number major
nononformances related to speciic findings. By taking this step | hope that we can focus upen the
few remaining issues thai relate to your program (mostly around awareness training ) instead of
debating their classification. You said that you would consider this offer.

Next steps

e Compleie the corrective actions from the previous audit, especially around completing training of
associates on the program (please provide me a deadline for completion) and update their training
records

e | will release program documents with the understanding that all records for outstanding training are
given to me ASAP | will bring over the tracking forms for you to sign

¢  Thoroughly review Corporate requiremants for the Training Program and be able to navigate through
your program with ease

¢ Complete certification testing and (job skills analysis?)
o One thing we did not mention, | would iike to review your training record files either Friday (9/27) or the
following Monday, you do not need to be available for this.

| look forward to your continued support of our Quality System, let me now If you have guestions
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Sharron Mangum To: Elizabeth Hayes/USINA/TCCCE >
! cc. Milagros TomeVUSINAITCCC@TCCC, Bridgett

Subject: Re: Invoice Status

Elizabeth,

I received two invoices from Langevin Leaming Services that are severely past due. Could you please
check the status and provide me with an update? if they have already been paid, please provide the
chack number, check date and the mailing address.

Thank you,
Sharron Mangum, X83906
Invoice #A88211 $799.00 Rec'vd March 13, forwarded to Millie for signature and
procassing.
Involce $AB0832 $160.685 Rec'vd April 15, forwarded to Millie for signature and
processing.
Sharmon Mangum

Sherron Mangum To: Elizabeth Hayes/US/NAITCCC

06/25/2002 D8: (3

08:07 AM Subject. Re: Invoice Status

Thank you,
Elizebeth Hayes

Elizabeth Hayss To: Sharron Mangum/USINAITCCC@TCCC

062472002 05:29 PM o Milagros TomeiAUSINA/TCCC@TCCC

Subject Re: Invoice Status

i have the coples that { kept when [ submitted both invoices, but they do not seem 1o have paid yet. | will
calt DMG tomomrow moming when they open to get a status from them.

Elizabeth

Atlanta Beverage Base Plant

404-876-2790

404-515-3144 - fax

Shamon Mangum
Sharron Mangum To: Elizabeth Hayes/USINATCCCRTCCC

. ce: Milagros TomelUSNATCCCETCCC

08/24/2002 05:23 PM Subiect Imvoice Stat

Efizabeth,

Langevin Leamning Services notified me today of two outstanding invoices (see below). Could you
please check the status and provide me with an update at your earliest?

Thank you,

Sharron Mangum, X63506

Invoice #A88211 $769.00 Rec'vd in March 13, forwarded 1o Millie for signature
and processing

Invoice #AB9008 $1,090.00 Rec'vd in April 4, forwarded to Millie for signature and

processing
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Jomj Garris To: Milagros TomeiIUS/+AIT CCC@TCCL
ot
04/0 a] 02 10:45 AM Subject: Discussion ltems

?

Mitlie: |

A coupia of thin*;s we need 1o discuss when you return......

me but | can tell she is not clear on why thare is a differencd of $10,000 - this is the number she
was given by sameons. Not sure what next steps are but pgrhaps you and Joe need to meet to
clarify? ! think Joe has a concern with Joan's pay since shejis managing a night shift alona??? -

|
1) Brenda is stij concerned about her pay gap with Tony. She wasn't officially filing a concern with
!

2) | was asked gbout AOL offer. It is soon to expire {July}. Have you heard of any talk to get an
extansion?

|
3) We need to discuss the EOM sent by Mark Harden last week. It indicated temporaries and
contracts who vyrould be on-site more than 10 days had to hive a background check. ) believe we
need to undarstand how our temp agency can comply.

Thanks. |
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To: Kevin'HR' Johmm CC (CCC

. cc: Douglas N. De CCC@TCCC, Corstha

10/08/2001 09:29 AM Rushing/lUS/NA/TCCC@TCCC, Patricia V.

Please respond by PowelfUS/NATTCCC@TCCC, Philippe Dej

10/06/2001 Piano/PRILAITCCC@TCCC, Tracy KoWUSNATCCC@TCCC, James
Gamis/lUS/NATCCC@TCCC, LESBIA BLANCO/PRALATTCCC@TCCC,
Dr. William Yang/USNATTCCC@TCCC

Subject: A Recap of Thursday, Oclober 4

. I T R

Kevin,

This memo is 1o recap our discussion of Thursday, October 4, when pursuant to my
physician's release, | returned to work. Prior to returning to work, it was not clearly
communicated that I needed documentation in addition to what is required by
FMLA. As aresult, you ordered me to leave the premises. You stated as a result of
your conversation with unnamed sources in The Coca-Cola Company’s Legal and
Medical Services Departments that you needed additional documentation to support
my return to work authorization. In addition, you stated that the document that 1
provided did not contain the limitations associated with performing my work

duties.

Sharron Mangum

Compliance to Standard Equipment
In my discussions with Dr. Bill Yang prior to returning to work, it was not

mentioned that The Coca-Cola Company required that my physician supply
additional supporting documentation. On October 4 I asked Dr. Yang if my
physician was required to submit documentation for standard tools and equipment
afforded every associate (permanent and contract) of The Coca-Cola Company. He
stated that it was not a requirement, but that it would *“lend support toc Kevin getting
those things in place for yow.”

On October 4 Dr. Bill Yang contacted Healthworks on my behalf. As a result,
Debbie Maclean contacted me at home on Friday, October 5 to inquire what sort of
chair was needed. I told her that I was requesting the standard ergonomic chair that
was provided to all associates (permanent and contract) of The Coca-Cola
Company. She stated that she would request a chair from Facility Services and
would follow up our conversation via email. She further stated that if T liked
Healthworks would do a workstation assessment. Since I am still without an
assigned work location, I stated that I would set up an appointment as soon as I had
a location.

1 would like to add that since my hire date of Apnl 16, 2001 I have not had an
assigned work location. 1 had worked from another associate’s desk while she was
part of the SAP Implementation team. During this time, ] used my personal cell
phone to conduct company business. Furthermore, when Susie Shealey returned
the week of July 9, I was relocated to sharing a desk with you, Kevin. Since the
chair was not in compliance with The Coca-Cola Company’s ergonomic code, it
agitated my back injury. At this time you authorized me to order a chair and a
lumbar support.
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Compliance to Standard Work Hours (
As you are aware the standard number of hours for The Coca-Cola Company in a

workday is 7.5 and the workweek is 37.5. On October 4 you stated that the Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant does not follow the standard work hours of The Coca-Cola
Company. While I am aware that we are considered a field office and that field
offices generally alter the procedures and policies of The Coca-Cola Company to
meet the demands of the business, however, the field offices are bound by the
standards set forth by The Coca-Cola Company.

During my orientation as HR Representative for the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant,
you asked if I would start my workday at 8:00 a.m. and end it at 5:00 p.m. I
brought to your attention that this was longer than the standard work hours of The
Coca-Cola Comparny. You stated that it was the desire of James Garris, Atlanta
Beverage Base Plant General Manager, to have someone available in the HR
Department at 8:00 a.m. and that he doesn’t like office personnel to leave before
5:00 p.m. You further stated that you “would be flexible when I needed to take
time off for any reason.”

Since my injury, I bave requested to work the standard hours of The Coca-Cola
Company and to adjust my hours as business situations arose. You further stated
that if I worked the standand number of hours set forth by The Coca-Cola Company,
I would not be able to fulfill the requirements of my position. I’m not sure how you
can qualify this statement as your display of satisfaction with my work quality and
performance carried over into my disability.

You may recall that during one of our many phone conversations while I was at
home on disability, you asked what was HR policy concerning contacting associates
at home for work related guidance. I stated that you are not to contact me while §
am out on disability as it could be considered harassment. Although I knew that
this was not a requirement to maintain employment with The Coca-Cola Company,
I complied with your requests because of the questionable terminations that have
occurred during my employment at the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant. Furthermore,
you expressed such strong opinions that nothing was wrong with me as a result of
my automobile accident, and in an effort to protect my position with The Coca-Cola
Company as well as out of concern for the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant achieving
TCCC Quality System certification, ] felt that I had no other choice but to respond
to your work-related inquiries. You even called my cell phone to discuss
work-related tasks while I was working online from home.

As previously mentioned, you stated that if | worked the standard number of hours,
I would not be able to fulfill the requirements of my position. In an effort to fulfill
the needs of the division in meeting The Coca-Cola Quality System standards, I
have been working primarily in the capacity of a Trainer. A non-employee worker
continued to work in the capacity of the HR Representative for which she was hired
several months prior to my start date, April 16.

On July 24 you forwarded an email from Patrice Kant which allocated funds for
two months to the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant to assist with the temporary support
of the HR Department. If you recall, while out on disability, you asked me to
complete the business justification decument which requested additional financial
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support to retain the contract worker and to add an additional headcouh to the
Atlanta Beverage Base Plant HR Department for the 2002 Business Plan. The
additional headcount would be used to split the duties of the HR Representative
into two positions—full time HR Representative and full time Trainer—to
consistently meet the training requirements of The Coca-Cola Company Quality
System.

As a result of the concems that you have expressed, and the budgetary constraints
which resulited in the loss of the financial support for the contract worker, it leads
me to believe that you would like for me to continue to fulfill the needs of a fuil
time Trainer as well as begin my duties to fulfill the position of HR Representative.

Additionsl Documentation Reguest

1 did not anticipate the length of time it would take to reach my physician. My
physician is an Orthopedic Surgeon that works out of thee separate office locations
and is on staff at several different hospitals in the area. I have attempted to reach
him on several occasions. As this is a non-emergency situation, his office staff has
reassured me that he will contact me at his earliest opportunity.

As a result of your request that my return to work is contingent upon the additional
documentation you requested, this memo is to serve as notice today, Monday,
Qctober 8, that 1 will not return to the office until such time or unless authorized by
a Coca-Cola Company Representative.

In following your instructions, 1 have sought company policy to substantiatc
atilization of my accrued time. Since ] have been unable to locate said policy, 1
rescind my agreement to use Friday, October 5 as a vacation day. Furthermore, it
appears that this time out of the office should not be charged against my accrued
time, PTO or vacation nor should it be considered time without pay. I will seek HR
and FMLA guidance regarding this matter.

The HR Technician job description that you provided on October 4 is to be
reviewed by my physician. You stated that my physician is to provide a statement
as to my ability to perform the duties in this particular job description. After
careful review of the HR Technician job description, I realized that it had been
modified from the original job description of HR Representative that | interviewed
and was hired for on April 16, 2001. 1 am referring specifically to the Safety and
Occupational Health Responsibilities, Quality Sysiem Responsibilities, and General
Aspects of the Position that were outlined. 1 will seek direction from HR and
FMLA as to how this request should be handled.

Summation

Based on the aforementioned occurrences, it could easily be interpreted that you are
deliberately requesting that I provide non-essential documentation for returning to
work to substantiate a non-justifiable teyrmination. As a result of your actions, I am
going to utilize The Coca-Cola Company's resources to reach a reasonable solution
to this situation. In the interim, I would like for you to outline in your response:

. The documented FMLA policies that the unnamed Medical Services personnel
provided that led you to believe that my physician needed to provide additional
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documentation to support my return to work.

. The documented policies that the unnamed legal personnel referred to concerning

the standard tools provided every associate (permanent and contract) of The

Coca-Cola Company (chair, workstation and the standard workweek).

. Specifically which job functions you alluded to in the original HR Representative
job description that I would not be able to perform. What is it as a result of my

physical injury that leads you to believe that ] cannot continue to perforrn my work

functions that you were clearly satisfied with prior to my injury?

The documented authorization to modify the HR Representative job description and

the reason why | was not made aware of the changes in responsibility.

My original email requested that I receive the standard tools afforded every
associate (perrnanent and contract) of The Coca-Cola Company. 1 am saddened
that your response escalated a simple request to a potentially unfavorable situation
and that your behavior overshadowed the efforts of Dr. Bill Yang, James Garris and
other personnel at Corporate and the Atlanta Beverage Base Plant to make my
return a pleasant one.

I would appreciate immediate resolution to this situation so that we can move
forward in continuing the success of The Coca-Cola Company.

Best Regards,

Sharron Mangum

HR Representative, Atlanta Beverage Base Plant
404-676-3506

Sharron Mangum

Sharron Mangum To: Kevin HR' JohnsonWUS/INATCCC
. cc: Dr. William Yang/US/NATCCC@TCCC, James
_ 09/20/2001 12:36 PM Gamis/USINAITCCC@TCCC
Subject: In response to your questions and concems.

Hi Kevin,

Thanks for your response and your support of the accommodations. However, to answer your question,
my request is neither personal nor medical in nature except for the lumbar support. 1 have known since |
started that the ABBP was working on the facility issues and | have been extremely patient throughout the
process. However, because of my recent injury, it is critical that | receive the same accommodations as
any other associate of the Company. These requests are 1o minimize any stress of agitation to my injury
while continuing the healing process.

From an HR perspective, it is a Company standard that each associate has the proper equipment to
perform their essential job functions, that includes, a telephone, computer, ergonomic chair, workstation,
and whatever other necessities that the position may require. The 37.5-hour workweek is also a standard
of the Company. The lumbar support is the only request that is non-standard. | am happy to provide
whatever documentation needed to support this request.

You suggested getting legal mvolved. If my requests were outside the standards of the Company, | would
fully agree. | think that this matter is pretty simple in nature and 1 think that it is something that we can
resolve on our own. Please advise.

Dr. Yang,
Please advise what documaniation is needed other than what has been provided prior fo my retumn to
work.

Best Regards,
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Please respond accordingly,

Look forward to seeing you on Oclober 8th, 2001. Feel! free to call me @ 66084,

Kevin,
Sharron Mangum

Sharron Mangum To: Kevin 'HR' JohnsonUS/NATCCC@TCCC
! cc: Dr. Wilkiam Yang/US/NAITCCC@TCCC, James
06/19/01 09:46 AM Ganis/US/NATCCC@TCCC
Subject: Retum to Work Accommodations

Kevin,

Since my injury, | know that my absence has been a strain on the HR Department. | sincerely appreciate
your patience and support during this difficult time. | will be returning to work in two and half
weeks—aproximately October 8. In preparation of my return there are some things that we can do to
ensure minimal agitation occurs to my back injury. Below | have listed some things (others may arise after
| retun) that will help me re-acclimate to ABBP's work environment. After reviewing the information

below, please provide me with your thoughts, questions and concerns.

| look forward to seeing you all soon.

Best Repards,

Sharmon Mangum

HR Representative, ABBP
404-676-3906

1. Workstation and File Space Accommodations
Prior to my Ieave, | was dislocated. | did not have a workstation or filing space. In actuality | was
working from a chair and using the floor as my file cabinet.

2. Ergonomic Chair and Lumbar Support
| was utilizing a decorative office chair, which will not supply the support | need for my back injury. |
requested an ergonomic chair and a lumbar support prior to my leave. Please enswre thal they are
available upon my retum.

3. Adjust Work Schedule to 8:30 to 4:30
We agreed that my normal work schedule would be 8:00 to 5:00. You have expressed concem in
reference to me returning to work part time. As a resutt, | propose that | sirictly adhere {o the
Company's 37.5-hour workweek unless a situation arises in which | need to work extended hours.

4. Please keep in mind that these changes are to limit the strain to my back injury and to continue the
healing process without consistent aghatio
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

ATLANTA DIVISION

DARRYL WALLACE AND )
SHARRON MANGUM, )
)
Plaintiffs, )

) CIVIL ACTION FILE NO.
V. )
)
THE COCA-COLA COMPANY, )
DOUGLAS DAFT, CORETHA )
RUSHING, FRED YOCHUM, STEVEN )
BUCHARETI, AMANDA PACE, )
TRACY KOLL, JAMES GARRIS, )
MILAGROS TOMEIL RAYMOND )
HERMAN AND JOSEPH )
COSTOLNICK )
)
Defendants. )
)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that I have served a true and correct copy of the within and
foregoing DEFENDANTS’ NOTICE OF REMOVAL by depositing same in the
U.S. Mail with sufficient postage thereon and addressed as follows:

Mr. Darryl Wallace Ms. Sharron Mangum

445 Fitzgerald Place 94 Crestbend Lane
Atlanta, Georgia 30349 Powder Springs, Georgia 30127
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This 12th day of September 2003.

David Tetrick, Jr.
Georgja Bar No. 713653






